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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EV X 80

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the results of Common Splendor International
Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”)
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group is committed to building itself into an international leading
healthcare conglomerate. It is expected to focus on life healthcare and
industrialization development in respect of khuman health solutions. By
employing the development strategy of “global integration, global layout”,
the Group will continue to draw in top talent and technology, deploy
services, products and various resources, and through acquisition and
reorganization, in order to achieve rapid expansion in the life healthcare
industry, as well as seeking various investment development opportunities
from time to time in the healthcare field.

At present

Following the Group’s adjustments to its development strategy in the
recent years, the Group has already formed a complete business
structure in the medical anti-aging sector, including “Medical Anti-aging”
which mainly aims at inner and “Medical Beauty Anti-aging” which mainly
aims at outer, and “Health Preservation Base” which covers traditional
medical anti-aging. As long as China continues its economic growth, the
wealthy population and the number of elites will continue to expand and
their spending power will be strengthened. In addition to the basic clinical
services, demand for better healthcare services is ever increasing. The
Company believes that the Group has a good position in this arena and
will gradually expand its businesses on such basis to cope with the
demands of the market.

The Board continues to be optimistic on the outlook of the healthcare
industry and will, from time to time, adjust the Group’s development
strategy according to the industry changes as and when needed. The
Group’s overall strategy is to gradually optimise its main business, and
develop its core businesses while holding the largest possible stake in
such core businesses. Non- core businesses and segments of the Group
is expected to be held by way of investments and be adjusted as and
when appropriate based on the principle of profit maximisation, including
disposals or held as investment funds.
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AIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
(

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Shareholders for their continued support, and the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) and those who have worked for the Group for
their valuable contributions.

On behalf of the Board
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited

Cheung Wai Kuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

W BILNG wt il BL oy B

Revenue of the Group for the Year amounted to HK$474,933,000 (2016:
HK$554,962,000), which represented a year on year decrease of
HK$80,029,000 or 14.4%. The decrease was mainly due to the net effect
of (i) decrease in turnover of medical chemical materials from
approximately HK$270,200,000 to HK$56,123,000; (i) increase in sales
revenue of the natural health food business from HK$213,772,000 in
2016 to HK$323,856,000 in 2017 and (jii) increase in loan interest income
from HK$18,862,000 in 2016 to HK$23,897,000 in 2017.

Gross profit of the Group for the Year amounted to HK$83,381,000 (2016:
HK$67,147,000), an increase of HK$16,234,000 or 24.2% as compared
to previous year. Gross profit margin for the Year had increased and was
17.6% for 2017 (2016: 12.1%). The increase in the Group’s gross margin
was mainly due to (i) the decrease in sales of low margin medical and
healthcare related materials; (i) increase in interest income in which the
margin is higher; and (i) income generated from the new subsidiaries of
medical beauty anti-aging group.

Profit before income tax of the Group for the Year decreased by
HK$38,020,000 or 67.6% from HK$56,259,000 in 2016 to
HK$18,239,000 in 2017. The decrease in profit was mainly due to () the
increase of convertible notes, guaranteed notes and bonds payable
resulting in an increase of finance costs amounting to approximately
HK$31,647,000 compared to 2016; and (i) the absence of an one-off
gain on disposal of an associate as compared to 2016, where the Group
recorded a gain on disposal of an associate of HK$28,999,000.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$1,422,000 (2016: HK$42,096,000), which represented
an decrease of HK$40,674,000 or 96.6%, as compared to 2016. This
resulted in the decrease in basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company of HK0.05 cents and HKO0.05
cents respectively (2016: HK1.62 cents and HK1.62 cents respectively).

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the business of
healthcare industry which included medical anti-aging and health
preservation base, medical and healthcare industry investment
management, trading of natural health food and investment and finance
activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS
B LG W B A ()

IS (Continued)

Health Industry
Medical Anti-aging and Health Preservation Base

Realyoung Life is dedicated to life anti-aging business for high-end
people “Body Purification, Functions Modulation and Repair and Reborn”
trilogy life anti-aging. The Group’s business in health industry is expected
to have a good prospect due to the elites’ desire for healthy and
energetic lives nowadays.

The Group focuses on the health industry by setting up three Life Anti-
aging Centres, namely, (i) Life Anti-aging Centre located in Guangzhou
International Biological Island which has continued to remain in a
competitive market position; (i) Life Anti-aging Centre situated in
Qiaocheng East Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen which has begun
operations; and (i) Life Anti-aging Centre situated in Luofu Mountain,
Guangdong which is currently under construction.

With a view to expand the Group’s business on life anti-aging, the Group
had entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire a medical
beauty anti-aging group in August 2017. As at the date of this
announcement, The Group had two beauty centers and two medical
centers providing clinical services in Hong Kong. The Company believes
that the acquisition is mutually beneficial to the existing Medical Anti-
aging business and the beauty anti-aging group resulting in more
comprehensive and more competitive quality of health services provided
to customers.

The Group has acquired a parcel of land with land development right in
Luofu Mountain for the construction of a Health Preservation Base. The
project is under progress. The Health Preservation Base is targeted at the
high-end population. It will provide integrated health preservation services
such as Chinese medical health preservation, sleeping health
preservation, and diet health preservation. Relevant health preservation
properties are expected to be available for lease or for sale.

During the Year, revenue from Medical Anti-aging and Healthcare
Preservation Base amounted to approximately HK$63,622,000 (2016:
HK$51,344,000), which represented an increase of approximately
HK$12,278,000 compared to 2016.

Medical and Healthcare Industry Investment Management

The Group focuses on the development of Life Healthcare Industry and
adjusts for its composition of businesses from time to time in order to
develop its core businesses. The Group would also divest certain
investments to take profit and to enhance the Group’s income at
appropriate times. Investment projects currently held by the Group
includes JP Partners Medical Group, Fengshuo Bio Medical Tech Group
and Aidigong Maternity Health Group. JP Partners Medical Group
comprises six private medical centres in Hong Kong. Fengshuo Bio
Medical Tech Group is principally engaged in the research of the
dioscorea composita root extract technology’s commercial applications
and production. Aidigong Maternity Health Group is mainly engaged in
the operation of maternity health centres and the provision of material
health services. Aidigong Maternity Health Group has established
maternity health centres in Shenzhen Xiangmihu Resort, Shenzhen Yinhu
and Beijing Shunyi District.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS
B LG W 5o A (78)

IS (Continued)

Health Industry (Continued)

Medical and Healthcare Industry Investment Management (Continued)

During the Year, revenue from medical and healthcare industry
investment management amounted to approximately HK$63,558,000
(2016: HK$270,984,000), which represented a decrease of approximately
HK$207,426,000 as compared to 2016.

The Group will gradually reduce the development on this business as the
industry chain of such business requires the Group to operate a health-
related and medical-related products trading business, which will develop
in stages while such business volume was historically unstable with a
lower gross profit margin.

Natural Health Food Business

Trading of grain and oil is main business of the Group’s natural health
food segment. It has been shown a strong growth in revenue as a result
of sustainable relationship between the Group and its customers. The
Group’s increase in revenue which has generated approximately
HK$213,772,000 in 2016 and further increased to approximately
HK$323,856,000 in 2017. However, the natural health food business
belongs to the Company’s complementary business in the health
industry’s industrial chain and is not a core business of the Group.
However, the gross profit margin and sales are susceptible to market
fluctuations. The Group’s gross profit margin is too low and the Group
will gradually reduce this business.

Investment and Finance

During the Year, the Group’s accrued interest income amounting to
approximately HK$16,684,000 (2016: HK$13,260,000) generated from
the loan of Champion Dynasty Limited (“Champion Dynasty”). As at 31
December 2017, a money lender company, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, had loan receivables of HK$40,200,000 (2016:
HK$58,200,000). Interest income from the money lending business
amounted to approximately HK$7,213,000 during the Year (2016:
HK$5,602,000).

During the Year, revenue from the Group’s investment and finance
segment amounted to approximately HK$23,897,000 (2016:
HK$18,862,000), which represented an increase of HK$5,035,000 or
26.7% as compared to 2016. As a result of an increase in interest
expenses incurred during the Year, the performance of this segment had
deteriorated during the Year from segment profit of approximately
HK$12,532,000 in 2016 to a segment loss of approximately
HK$21,398,000 in 2017. Revenue generated from this segment
contributed approximately 5% to the Groups’ total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
B P o) a5 4 b ()
Net asset value EEFEE

As at 31 December 2017, total net assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$978,211,000 (2016: HK$667,550,000), representing
an increase of HK$310,661,000 or 46.5%, as compared to 2016. The
increase was mainly due to (i) exchange differences on translating foreign
operations arising during the Year of HK$45,133,000; and the (i) an issue
of 400,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.65 per share (which is
the share price as at the date of completion) for an acquisition of
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2017, net asset value per issued ordinary shares of
the Company was HK$0.33 (2016: HK$0.26).

The current ratio (calculate as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 1.13 (2016: 5.04).

Equity

The number of issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31
December 2017 was 2,996,255,008 (2016: 2,596,255,008).

During the Year, the Company had issued and allotted 400,000,000
shares at HK$0.65 per share (which is the share price as at the date of
completion) as part of consideration for the acquisition of a medical
beauty group in October 2017, pursuant to the agreement dated 12
August 2017, details of which are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 12 August 2017, 24 August 2017, 9 September 2017
and 9 October 2017.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had HK$1,000,000 unsecured
convertible notes, HK$12,204,000 bank and other borrowings,
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$77,500,000) secured
convertible notes, HK$48,402,000 unsecured bonds and
HK$100,000,000 secured guaranteed notes, to provide general working
capital to the Group and the development of the Group’s healthcare
business. Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
material borrowings as at 31 December 2017.

The Group has maintained a sound capital and cash position. Bank and
cash balances as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$67,038,000 (2016: HK$109,721,000). The majority of the Group’s
cash for the Year was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi.

During the Year, an unsecured convertible note bearing a principle
amount of HK$16,000,000 was redeemed on the date of maturity.
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IS (Continued)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017, the entire issued share capital of a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Common Splendor Hong Kong
Investment Fund Management Limited (“CSHK Investment Fund
Management”), was charged to China Great Wall AMC (International)
Holdings Co., Limited (formerly known as Great Wall Pan Asia
International Investment Co., Limited) as a security for convertible notes
issued by the Company in the principal amount of US$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$77,500,000). As at 31 December 2017,
the entire issued capital of two wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, namely Harvest Luck Investment Limited (“Harvest Luck”) and
Great King Limited (“Great King”) were charged to Wan Tai Investments
Limited, an indirect wholly owned company of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, as a security for guaranteed notes issued by the Company in the
principal amount of HK$100,000,000. As at 31 December 2017, the
aggregated total assets of Harvest Luck, Great King and their subsidiaries
amounted to approximately HK$460,488,000. Save as disclosed above,
no asset was pledged by the Group as at 31 December 2017.

Remuneration policies and share option scheme

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had around 270 employees
excluding Directors (2016: around 340). The decrease in number of
employees was due to the disposal of the Company’s subsidiaries during
the year. Total staff cost excluding Directors’ emoluments was
approximately HK$12,468,000 (2016: HK$12,736,000) for the Year.

There was 35,800,000 outstanding share options granted under the
share options scheme on 11 October 2012 at the beginning of the Year.
During the Year, 35,800,000 share options were lapsed. As at 31
December 2017, no share option was outstanding (2016: 35,800,000).

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the total capital commitment of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB20,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,615,000) (2016: Nil) which is related to the construction of Luofu
Mountain Project.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYS
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IS (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 22 May 2017, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with
Billion High Worldwide Investments Limited (“Billion High”),
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group, Zhao Long
International Medical Investment Management Group Limited (“Zhao
Long BVI”). Pursuant to the agreement, the Group agreed to dispose
70% equity interest of Zhao Long BVI (exclusive of the interests of Best
Hunter Limited and its subsidiaries JP Partners Medical Group) at a
consideration of HK$68,000,000. The disposal has been completed
during the Year. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22
May 2017 for information.

a non-

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 12 August 2017, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties. The Group agreed to acquire
the entire issued capital of Golden Time Ventures Limited (“GTV”) at a
consideration of 400,000,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.65 per
share (which is the share price as at the date of completion) and
HK$50,000,000 in cash. As at the date of this report, GTV together with
its subsidiaries has two beauty centres in Hong Kong located at
Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui and two medical centres providing
beauty clinical services in Tsim Sha Tsui and Shau Kei Wan. The
acquisition has been completed on 9 September 2017. Please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 12 August 2017, 24 August 2017,
9 September 2017 and 9 October 2017 for information.

Termination of an acquisition

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 2
December 2016, 12 August 2017, 31 August 2017 and 1 November
2017 relating to the management businesses in the PRC (collectively,
“CMCM Announcements”). As at 31 October 2017, the business model
of Cherish Maternity and Child Medical Group (International) Limited
(“CMCM”) had not been adjusted to the satisfaction of the Company for
parties to proceed with the transactions contemplated under the relevant
share purchase agreement. Accordingly, pursuant to the supplemental
agreement in connection to the acquisition, the acquisition was
terminated and the Company will not issue any consideration shares, and
any shares in CMCM that has been transferred to the Company was
returned to the Vendors or their designated individuals or entities. Please
refer to the CMCM Announcements for information.

HEKHBERQF

RZE-—+tFHEA-+TZH AEEHEES
%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ@“TU;EM$%IWWF
A7) Zhao Long International Medical Investment
Management Group Limited ([ Zhao Long BVI )
m#*&&%ﬁﬁi—ﬁﬁﬁﬁ o IR & % A
- 7K & B [ & LA68,000,0007% T 2 X B H
& Zhao Long BVI 70% # z ( T~ B #& Best Hunter
Limted R HMB AR EREREBOER) -
FEERAFERNTK AHEERALQERH
RIB—+FRAZ+TZHZRE-

W B B /8 2 )

RZE—+FNA+ZH AEEEEBFL
FEZAHEANT NEEHHE - AEERE
LA 400,000,000 % & A% ™ @0.65,% T(E TR
EREBEOROER) AR RO KRR
50,000,000 T2 RE  WEERAIZEERA
A &FAE]) 2BEHITRA - RAFRER
B ¢ HRABREENBAREEBREE XA
DEBREMRXERFL RERADBERGHEE
REMREBEFL REZADERS - iE
BER-ZZE—+tFNLANBZEK- ﬁ%éﬂ%%
%$“ﬂ5%%:?—t¢ﬂﬂ+—a

*ti)\ﬂ +TmA - tihﬂhﬁ&
t$+ﬂlelZ"i°

RIEWREE

BRM ARG B R_TE—R"F+_AZH "

—_E-tFNATZHR -ZE—ttFNA=TF

—BE_F—tF+— H BRAE REE
@F¢Im BEXB(RBIZEREHEEL
&) —tFt+A=t—HB EREREY
%%%E@?Hﬂypﬂﬁﬁﬁ@ SED
BEEAHNRKABERNRARENZEE AL
ERBERBZRTRETNRS - At RE
%%%E%ﬁ%%#'ﬁﬁ$ﬁewﬂi N

REAB T EBHTEARERD  REEREA

AREANEMNERRHERRNMEEBLOEE =X
HigE W“A&E%°Eﬁéﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁEﬁ
WEEAE -

FAEBRREELEMAERAT —T— LFEER 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

B B w5 M (4

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL DURING THE
YEAR AND PERFORMANCE OF AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)

Profit guarantee of an associate

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 23
November 2015 and 28 March 2018. While the audited accounts of
Guangdong Fengyuan Huake Bio Tech Company Limited (“Guangdong
Fengyuan”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 is still in the process
of being prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting standards,
based on information currently available to the Company, including
management accounts of Guangdong Fengyuan, it is expected that
Guangdong Fengyuan will not be able to meet the Guarantee Profit.
According to the Agreement, Mr. Zhao and the Vendor shall transfer
certain amount of shares to the Purchaser according to the agreed
formula stated above. The Company will further consider and negotiate,
based on the audited accounts of Guangdong Fengyuan and, where
applicable, take any appropriate actions for the compensation for any
non-fulfilment of the Guarantee Profit. Further announcement(s) will be
made by the Company as and when appropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
WA

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
business of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year, which forms part of this
directors’ report, is set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on page 10 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of investments in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal business are set out in notes 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures as at 31 December 2017 are set out in notes 47, 19 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 102
of this report.

The Board does not recommend any payments of final dividend for the
Year (2016: Nil).
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DIRECTORS” REPORT (Continued)

O

(%)

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects would be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
including business risks, operational risks, manpower and retention risks
and financial risks. The Group’s key risk exposures are summarised as

follows:

Business risks

Operational risks

Manpower and
retention risks

Compliance
risks

Financial risks

Performance of the Group’s core business will be
affected by various factors, including but not limited to
economic conditions, performance of the healthcare
market, performance of our investments held. The
Group proactively monitors industry trends,
technology innovations and responsive to changes in
consumer behaviour.

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. Responsibility for
managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their standard
operating procedures, limits of authority and reporting
framework. Our management will identify and assess
key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.

The Group may face the risk of not being able to
attract and retain key personnel and talents with
appropriate and required skills, experience and
competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable
candidates and personnel.

The risk of loss resulting from breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
Group engages a legal advisory firm to provide
relevant legal advice and compliance reviews on the
Group’s documentations and publications.

(i) foreign currency risk

(i) interest rate risk

(i) credit risk

Details of the financial risk management are set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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(Continued)

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those mentioned
above which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

For procedures and information of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system, please refer to the section headed “RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability. Our
commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in our
daily business operations. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to
the employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled
paper and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings
and electrical appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction and energy saving.
The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses to move towards adhering the
3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and enhance environmental
sustainability.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on
the Group. During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was
no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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(Continued)

As a listed company in Hong Kong, the shares of the Company are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), the Company continuously complies with the
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) including the disclosure
requirements, corporate governance provisions and Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
therein. Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”),
the Company is required to maintain a register of interests in shares and
short positions and a register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions and is obliged to the disclosure requirement of inside
information. The Board will monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are
regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units from time to time.

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five years is set out on page 231 of this report.

Movements in the share capital and share options of the Company during
the Year are set out in notes 31 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
page 106 of this report.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), was HK$107,549,000 (2016: HK$104,985,000).

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of Company’s
shares.

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) and the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT (Continued)
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During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (“Mr. Cheung”) (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (“Mr. Cheng”) (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (“Mr. Ye”) (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Ying Hai (“Mr. Bai”)
(Resigned on 5 June 2017)
Mr. Hou Kai Wen (“Mr. Hou”)
(Appointed on 5 June 2017)
Mr. Lin Jiang (“Mr. Lin”)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Wing (“Mr. Lam”)

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (“Mr. Mai”)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Erest (“Mr. Wong”)
(Appointed on 20 September 2017)

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (“Mr. Yau”)
(Resigned on 1 July 2017)

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Cheung and Mr. Cheng will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as
Directors.

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Hou and Mr. Wong will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as a non-
executive Director and an independent non-executive Director (“INED”).

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares of the
Company, underlying shares of the Company and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) or pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company, or otherwise required to
notify the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

Number of shares

igrig 4=

RZE—+F+_A=+t—"H EBFRARQA
BEEITBRABERARARKRG AXFMEERG
EARRRIREMEEZE(FERBLHFRBAEK
PIEXVHFIARTE) cEREF  HERER
FREEIEGIEB2GALARNRFAMETHD
EifmEs kAR AREBEEETRAMNS
BT KA BT ¢

Ordinary  Underlying Percentage
shares of the shares of the of issued
Name of Directors Company Company Total Capacity Notes share capital
b NN KAF e BT
EEHE ZBER HE R 5 BnY 54 M BRAEAESL
1 e S Y
Mr. Cheung 930,379,671 — 930,379,671 (L) Interest of controlled corporation 1 31.05%
ok % A& X2 A B R A
Mr. Cheng 4,300,000 — 4,300,000 (L) Beneficial owner/Interest of 2 0.14%
spouse
88 5% A4 EnA AN/ TRBER
Remark: et

The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares of the Company.
Notes:

(1) Mr. Cheung, through his controlled corporation, Champion Dynasty is deemed to
be interested in 930,379,671 shares of the Company held by Champion Dynasty.

) Mr. Cheng owned 4,000,000 Shares and his spouse, being a staff of a subsidiary
of the Company, owned 300,000 Shares. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Cheng was
deemed to be interested in same parcel of Shares which his spouse was
interested.

Save for disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company, nor their associates, had or
was deemed to have any interest or short position in the shares of the
Company, underlying shares of the Company or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), that was required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

o
o
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As at 31 December 2017, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following party (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) was recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified the

BEEFRARQA

BABRAME K=
T—tF+TA=t—H ARFABRBEEFK
HEGPIFE336IKAET
THEARF BEEIAREREEIRER/ESR

B mE s

Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Name of substantial
Shareholder

TERREE

Champion Dynasty

Beauty Sunrise Investment Limited

A Plus Capital Management Limited

Tiger Capital Fund Spc-Tiger Global SP

Full House Asset Management Company
Limited

Remark:

The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares of the Company.

Notes:

(1)

capital.

@

RRAREETRAG%F A L2 EZZ AL (E
ERARAZRBTHRAEBERIMT

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares of issued share
the Company  Capacity Notes capital
AAREBRR HE BT
ROBE S B 5 [ = s 4
930,379,671(L)  Beneficial owner 1 31.05%
ExnEAA
300,000,000(L)  Beneficial owner 2 10.01%
BEnEAA
155,914,000(L)  Investment manager 3 5.20%
KEBEEA
155,914,000(L)  Beneficial owner 3 5.20%
BEREAA
155,914,000(L)  Investment manager 5.20%
KEBEEA
#it -

FERILIERERFR D RIFE

et

Mr. Cheung is the sole director of Champion Dynasty and owned its entire issued (1)

According to the relevant Disclosure of Interest Notice (“DI Notice”) in connection 2

with the Company available on www.hkex.com.hk as at 31 December 2017,
Beauty Sunrise Investment Limited is a company wholly owned by Ms. Zhang

Wenli.

According to the relevant DI Notice in connection with the Company available on ©)

www.hkex.com.hk as at 31 December 2017, A Plus Capital Management
Limited (“A Plus”) is interested in 155,914,000 Shares as an investment manager,
and A Plus is the immediate holding company of Tiger Capital Fund Spc-Tiger
Global SP, which is a beneficial owner of 155,914,000 Shares..

3R 4t & A Champion Dynasty 2 M —E £ 3% A H
EBEBITRA R -

BER=-_ZFT-—ttF+_A=+—-—8BR
www.hkex.com.hk B B AN R B AT S AE A i m i &
BA([HEZFEEBA])  Beauty Sunrise Investment
Limited /3 — B R XM Z 2 EHEBH R A

BERZZT—+EF+= A =+— H B www.hkex.
comhkBEAARIMAI S HBEREEBMN A
Plus Capital Management Limited ([A Plus |) £ & #%
& B AR155914,000 R 5 R A #E = - A
Plus 4 Tiger Capital Fund Spc-Tiger Global SP#) & #
7 §% A 7]+ Tiger Capital Fund Spc-Tiger Global SP &
155,914,000 R IR A EY B2 HE B A ©
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All the interests stated above represent long position which included
interests in shares of the Company and underlying shares of the
Company. Save for disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (who were not directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares of the Company, underlying shares or bonds of the Company of
the Company or its associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would
be required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein.

During the Year, none of the Directors was interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the Group’s businesses.

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or its holding company’s subsidiaries was a party to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
during the Year.

Save for disclosed in the “Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no
Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group or to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company and the
subsidiaries of its parent company was a party during or at the end of the
Year.

Save for disclosed in the “Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no
controlling Shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for the
provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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On 27 September 2012, the Company, as lender, entered into a loan
agreement with Champion Dynasty, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung, as an individual guarantor, and
Guangdong Allad Commercial Development Company Limited* (& 2
¥ {2 o 2 25 R A R 2 7)) (formerly known as Guangdong Allad Yiliao Touzi
Company Limited* (BRRIEEEZEIREHFRAF)), as a corporate
guarantor, to grant a three-year revolving loan facility of up to
HK$220,000,000 to Champion Dynasty at an interest rate of HIBOR plus
2.5% per annum (the “Loan Agreement”). The loan facility was approved
by the independent Shareholders at the special general meeting held on
20 November 2012. The loan was repayable on demand.

On 2 October 2015, the Company, as lender, entered into a new facility
agreement and agreed to renew the Loan Agreement with Champion
Dynasty, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung, as individual guarantor, for a
period of three years from 20 November 2015 to 19 November 2018 in
relation to a three-year revolving loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000 to
Champion Dynasty at an interest rate of 10% per annum (the “Renewed
Shareholder Loan Transaction”). The Renewed Shareholder Loan
Transaction was approved by the independent Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 19 November 2015. The loan is
repayable on demand.

Having reviewed the Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction, the INED,
pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry
out annual review on all continuing connected transactions, other than
fully exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules (if
any), confirmed that the Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction was
made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, was
made on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing on terms that was fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor (the “Independent Auditor”) were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). The Independent Auditor had issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the Independent Auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

*

For identification purpose only
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Auditor
confirmed that the Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction:

(i) had received the approvals of the Board;

(i)  had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Renewed Shareholder Loan Transaction; and

(i) had not exceeded the caps disclosed in the previous circular of the
Company dated 2 November 2015.

Save for mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Material related party transactions, including the said continuing
connected transaction, entered into by the Group for the Year are
disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. Saved for
disclosed above, none of such transactions constituted a connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as and where applicable and
relevant during the Year.

To the extent of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements which constituted continuing
connected transactions, the Company had complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had around 270 employees
excluding Directors (2016: around 340). The total staff cost excluding
Directors’ emoluments was approximately HK$12,468,000 (2016:
HK$12,736,000) during the Year. The Remuneration Committee was set
up for reviewing the Group’s overall emolument policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance of
the Directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

Remuneration package comprised salaries and year ended bonuses
based on individual merits. The Company adopted a share option
scheme on 11 October 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”). There was
35,800,000 outstanding share options granted under the 2012 Scheme
at the beginning of the Year. During the Year, no share option was
granted and 35,800,000 share options were lapsed. As at 31 December
2017, no share option was outstanding. Details of the 2012 Scheme are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

WY ZEBENEIRIE ETAR A F14A56 KR E
BERRERRS

() EXHEZRSHE:

i) DPEEEEARRERZSZEWREE
POETT R

iy YEBALAMARABHA-_ZT—AF
+—B-_BZBEHFEEZ LR -

Br EXFraoh  REREATEEMBRE LR
AIEFH BB TERCBER SR TEHR R
FERERS -

REE BMAEBEETZERNEBR IR &
FLUFERERS CREAVERERME
4445 FE o BR Eai B ER AN - IR IE £ AR Al 14A
EREABRSERARFTNFERER
P ARAAFERNE BT EHRAE14AE
M3 AR E °

RAEFEER W6 M ERERMT44MEEZ
RO RXSBRBEBERS  ARFCEST
FHREFEWAET ZABRE -

R+ E+-_A=+—HB A&EBEELH
CIVEREREB(FMEBRESEAEN)(ZE—XNF:
#3408 )  AFEE TR ALB(THEESE
EM &) 4 512,468,000/ ;L (— T — N F ¢
12,736,000 L) - KU HFTMEZ B2 2 A%
E2RBFELoNEEBH S OAREFINEE
MBEE EEAEEEEEE EERARE
BEMMEARREEEMSER-

MeFBEEHFeRRENRRETZEFR
B - ARNRAR—_ZE——F+A+—BEHEMT
—BERESFE( T —F18)) XEE
7l —F— ZF 58T E35,800,000% E % H
BB AR 8 R T - NFE AN &R AR E
B35,800,0000 EREE KB - R T —+F
+-_A=+—H8 UEERBEETEN =F
—ZFFEZHBEN G AN RERM 36

26 COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



DIRECTORS” REPORT (Continued)
W ()

The Group operates the provident fund scheme as defined in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws
of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) for the Year. The MPF Scheme is
defined contribution scheme and the assets of the scheme are managed
by its trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to below 65 and
with at least 60 days of continuous service under the employment of the
Group in Hong Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based
on the staff’s relevant income. The statutory maximum level of relevant
income for contribution purpose is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members
are entitled to 100% of the Group’s contributions together with accrued
returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefit is required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Particulars of contribution to the retirement benefit scheme for the Year
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

According to the Bye-laws, among others, the Directors, acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company shall be entitled to indemnified and
secured harmless out of assets and profits of the Company from and
against all, among others, actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain. The
Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover the
certain legal actions brought against the Directors and officers.
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On 24 December 2015, convertible notes in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,000,000 (“HKD Convertible Notes”) were issued by the
Company. Upon exercise in full of the subscription rights attaching to the
HKD Convertible Notes at the conversion price of HK$0.858 (subject to
adjustment), a maximum of 1,165,501 ordinary shares of the Company
will be issued, which no shares of the Company has been issued as at
the date of this report under the HKD Convertible Notes. The conversion
rights under the HKD Convertible Notes shall be exercisable during the
conversion period commencing on the date falling on the 1st anniversary
of the date of issue of the HKD Convertible Notes and ending on the date
falling on the second anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible
Notes. The net proceeds from the issue of the HKD Convertible Notes
amounts to HK$1,000,000. Details of which have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 24 December 2016 and 11 January
2017. The HKD Convertible Notes was redeemed on 10 January 2018.

On 5 August 2016, convertible notes of US$10 million (‘USD Convertible
Notes”) were issued by the Company. Upon exercise in full of the
subscription rights attaching to the USD Convertible Notes at the
conversion price of HK$0.70 (subject to adjustment), a maximum of
110,714,285 ordinary shares of the Company will be issued, which no
shares of the Company has been issued as at the date of this report
under the USD Convertible Notes. The conversion rights under the USD
Convertible Notes shall be exercisable during the conversion period
commencing on the date of the USD Convertible Notes and ending on
180 days prior to the maturity date of the USD Convertible Notes. The
net proceeds from the issue of the USD Convertible Notes amounts to
HK$77,000,000. Details of which have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 August 2016 and 16 August 2016.

Please refer to notes 15 of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for details and dilution effect of the convertible notes
outstanding as at 31 December 2017.

The Group came across and negotiated investment opportunities related
to the healthcare industry with potential mergers and acquisitions, while
proactively raising fund necessary for the negotiation and identification of
new investment opportunities, such proceeds may be applied to potential
new investment opportunities and general working capital of the Group
and for the development of existing healthcare business of the Group.
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No contracts concemning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted for approximately 14% (2016: 17%) and
33% (2016: 42%) respectively, of the Group’s total turnover for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 13% (2016: 36%) and
51% (2016: 68%) respectively, of the Group’s total purchases for the
Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had beneficial interests in any of the Group’s
five largest customers and five largest suppliers during the Year.

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprise employees, customers, suppliers, regulators and
Shareholders. Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The Group maintains a good relationship
with its employees and did not experience any major difficulties in
recruitment, nor did it experience any material loss in manpower or suffer
from any material labour dispute during the Year. The Group also
understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with its
suppliers and customers to meet its short-term and long-term goals. It
enjoys good relationships with suppliers and customers and strives to
take an active part in the communities where they operate.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company had maintained the prescribed
amount of public float during the Year and up to the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report as required under the Listing Rules.
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The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment
of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the Independent Auditors for
the subsequent year will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2017 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. There has been no other change in the
Independent Auditor in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited

Cheung Wai Kuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen, aged 44, joined the Company as executive
Director in August 2012 and has been appointed as the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) in September 2012. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has established a number of
enterprises in various industries in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) since 1997, including property investment, hospital and trading
business. Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of experience in capital
management and corporate management. He was appointed as an
executive director of L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 195) on 4 December 2009. Mr. Cheung is a director of Champion
Dynasty, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan, aged 71, joined the Company as executive Director
in August 2012 and has been appointed as the deputy chairman of the
Board (the “Deputy Chairman”) since September 2012. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He was the deputy division
chief of the Finance and Planning Division of Yunnan Provincial Geology
and Mining Bureau from October 1984 to March 1986, and deputy
director of the Economic Commission of Kunming for the period from
April 1986 to April 1988. From May 1988 to 1996, he was the president
of the Yunnan Branch of Bank of Communications. Mr. Cheng was an
executive director of Yunnan Enterprises Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
455) from April 1998 to March 2006, and west China regional director of
the Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 127) from 2006 to
2010. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of L’sea
Resources International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 195) on 23
December 2009 and re-designated as executive director from December
2010 to September 2012. Mr. Cheng obtained a master of Business
Administration degree from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1983.

Mr. Ye Jiong Xian, aged 53, joined the Company as executive Director
in December 2015 and has been appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company (the “CEQ”) since December 2015. Mr. Ye is a chief
surgeon, professor, doctor in management studies and doctoral advisor.
He has nearly 30 years of experience in the fields of clinical medicine,
teaching, scientific research and management. He once severed as
senior executives in a number of top class Grade A hospitals. Mr. Ye also
held administrative positions with health care authorities for a number of
years where he led the preparation work for setting up large general
hospitals and won great awards in China. He was once sent to
international universities such as the Harvard University to study where he
accumulated rich experience in health care management. Mr. Ye is
currently the executive member of Logistics Management Special
Committee under the Chinese Hospital Association* (4 B 2&B5 177 & &%
BEEREXEELESEHEE), the executive director of the Hospital
Architecture System Research Branch under the Chinese Hospital
Association* ({ B E& i & B b 2L R AR H G EHIEE), the editorial
board member of the book titled Architecture and Equipment of Chinese
Hospitals* (R EEEfREELEZf)) and the chief editor of the books
titled Practices in Setting up Hospitals* ((Zfz &% )) and Norms for
Etiquette of Medical Workers* ({ 2275 A Ef2&HE0)).
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Lin Jiang, aged 53, joined the Company as non-executive Director of the
Company in February 2013. Mr. Lin has over 20 years of experience in
economic and financial sectors. He has earned both a Bachelor’s degree
and a Master’s degree in Economics from Sun Yat-sen University, along
with a Doctor’'s degree from Jinan University in Economics, and
completed his postdoctoral research on Applied Economics in Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Mr. Lin is currently an associate dean
of Institute of Free Trade Zone, Sun Yat-sen University, as well as an
Economics professor in Lingnan College of Sun Yat-sen University.
Moreover, he serves as an instructional committee member of Public
Financial Class of High Education Institute of the Ministry of National
Education * (AR5 &= E2RMBBEHREIEEEER), a part-time
researcher for Cross-Strait Research Center* (/&8RN =471 7% 50 /0 F& B AT
7t E), an advisory member of Guangzhou Municipal Financial Experts
Committee * (BTN E K AHZE ), a specialist researcher of the
Taiwan Affairs Offices of the People’s Government of Guangdong
Province and Guangdong Taiwan Research Centre* (EHA ARKT &
EEBEAEMERSEM ISP, strategic consultant of Guangzhou
People’s Government, 3rd session (BT AR5 = @R &R Z AR )
and a consultation expert of the Budget Committee of Guangzhou
Municipal People’s Congress, 15th session. In addition, Mr. Lin also
serves as a consultant of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary. He
was then the deputy general manager for the financial division of China
Merchant Group Limited.

Mr. Hou Kai Wen, aged 32, joined the Company as non-executive
Director on 5 June 2017. Mr. Hou obtained a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration and Mathematics from Aston University in
Birmingham, the United Kingdom in 2010. Subsequently, Mr. Hou
obtained a Master’s degree in International Accounting & Finance from
London Cass Business School, City University in 2011. Mr. Hou joined
the Banking Division of Guosen Securities Investment in May 2012, and
he was principally responsible for initial public offering and capital markets
related matters. He was involved in a number of healthcare and medical
care related initial public offerings in the past. On February 2016, Mr. Hou
joined China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Co., Ltd as a vice
president, and since then, he was mainly responsible for investments in
healthcare related businesses.
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Mr. Mai Yang Guang, aged 53, joined the Company as INED in February
2018. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Company, the chairman of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company and a member of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
of the Company. Mr. Mai has over 20 years of experience in enterprise
management in the PRC. He graduated from Thermal Engineering
Department of Northeastern University in the PRC. Mr. Mai is the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Xinyinji Enterprise
Development Limited* (RIITITIREFEXZERARAF) and the
chairman of board of directors and general manager of Shenzhen
Haojiahua Investment Limited* (I T 17 3 =R E B R A 7).

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 50, joined the Company as INED in
September 2017. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Wong has over 25 years of experience in venture capital, corporate
finance, business development and general management. He served as
the president and group chief financial officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited (“KVB”) since November 2011 and as the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of KVB’s subsidiary, KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 6877) since October 2014. Mr. Wong also served as an
independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3628), HongDa Financial Holding Ltd (Stock Code:
1822), Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
(Stock Code: 1355), Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1581), China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock
Code: 8158) since October 2011, July 2014, November 2016, November
2016 and February 2017, respectively, each of the shares of such
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong also served
several positions at Adamas Finance Asia Limited, a company listed on
the London Stock Exchange (LSE Stock Code: ADAM), including its
executive director from May 2008 to February 2014, its chief financial
officer from May 2008 to October 2011 and its non-executive director
since February 2014.
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Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
The University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s degree of science in
investment management from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1998 and a master’s degree of science in electronic
engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008. Mr. Wong
was admitted as a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in November 1999, October 2002 and January 2018, respectively.
He was admitted as a chartered financial analyst of the Institute of
Chartered Financial Analysts in September 1998. He is a current member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He is also acting as the president
of the Hong Kong University Graduates Association, the deputy chairman
of the HKU Convocation, the court member of The University of Hong
Kong, and a committee member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam Chi Wing, aged 38, joined the Company as INED in March
2016. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. Mr. Lam obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in Accounting & Finance at
the University of Hong Kong in 20083. Subsequently, Mr. Lam obtained a
Master of Science degree in Knowledge Management at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2006 and a Master of Business Administration
degree at the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr. Lam is
currently a doctoral candidate in Global Creative Industries of the
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam served at PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2003. Mr. Lam
subsequently joined Li & Fung Group, which he served as Group Chief
Representative and General Manager, Southern China of Li & Fung
Development (China) Limited prior to his departure. Mr. Lam currently
serves as director or consultant at a number of companies in Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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Mr. Lam is a member of the Twelfth Guangdong Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (Bl A RBUETH
eHFE+ _EEFHEZE), and the Eleventh & Twelfth Zhongshan
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (Ff
BEARBAHEEZESET—E - TZEPILTWZEE), a member of the
Committee of the Chinese Association of Hong Kong & Macao Studies™ (&
B AT 9T & v [ RF e AR 2R), @ member of the Expert Committee to the
Second Ministry of Commerce Advisory Committee for Economic &
Trade Policy* (£ —JEEREKALERRAANZEFEHER), a deputy
committee of the Zhongshan Public Diplomacy Association* (| [ 77 /A
SN E), a deputy director of the Hong Kong Guangdong Youth
Association* (BEERSF4AE), Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Zhongshan Youth Association* (F/&H |LEFF1HE), a member of The
Hong Kong Professionals And Senior Executives Association (B/5 %5 2%
REFITHAE#E), amember of The Y. Elites Association Limited (&
B RE K E) and a member of the Chinese Academy of Governance (HK)
Industrial and Commercial Professionals Alumni Association Limited* (74
BIBIRITI S (BB) L H X R L /K 8). Mr. Lam served as a part-
time member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of Hong Kong
from 2011 to 2012, and is currently serving as an advisory committee of
the Sustainable Agricultural Development Fund of the Government of
Hong Kong, a committee member of the Appeal Panel (Housing) of the
Government of Hong Kong, and a committee member of China
Commerce & Trade Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade and
Development Council (BEE 5% REBANMEERNEZE D).

Mr. Lam is currently the Vice Chairman of the Youth Division of China
Commerce & Economy Society* (B ¥ 4852 &), Vice Chairman of
the Guangdong Society of Commercial Economy* (B & i #4872 e),
Deputy Dean of the Guangdong Asia Pacific E-Commerce Institute* (&5
KB FEEITZEET), Deputy Secretary-General of the Society of
Guangdong Logistics and Supply Chain* (BR&E¥mEHEREES),
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Cross-Border E-Commerce
Association (BEBERE TESHS).

Mr. Lam is currently an Adjunct Professor at the Renmin University of
China School of Business (B AR AEREET), a research fellow at
each of the China Business Model Research Centre of the China
Financial Research Institute at Tsinghua University School of Economics
& Management* (B3 K248 & B2bx 1 Bl & BT /O B AR T
%), Sun Yat-sen University’s Centre for Information Economy and Policy*
(KB BB BRI E L), Guangdong University of Finance
and Economics’ Research Institute of Circulation Economy* (/& 5 B 48 kX
BB EMTZEF), Jinan University’s Modern  Distribution Research
Centre* (BRI X2 RBAAZST L) and Shenzhen University’s Center
for Basic Laws of Hong Kong and Macau Special Administrative Regions*
(RINIAREFREASEFRIT A L)),
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Various aspects of the business and operations of the Group are
respectively under direct responsibilities of the executive Directors who
are regarded as the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Wong Wing Cheung, joined the Group in September 2017 and was
appointed as the financial controller of the Group, the company secretary
(the “Company Secretary”) and the authorized representative of the
Company in December 2017. Mr. Wong is a practising member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 12
years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management.
Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration
(Honours) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2005. He worked in several audit firms during 2006 to 2015.
He also provides consultancy service on financial and internal control of
several companies including listed companies. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wong worked for China Beidahuang Industry Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00039) as a group finance manager.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no change to any of
the information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules for the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board together with the Group is committed to maintain high
standards of corporate governance so as to ensure high transparency
and protection of the Shareholders’ interests in general. The Board
endeavours to ensure effective self-regulatory practices, to maintain
sound internal control system and to absorb high calibre members to the
Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to the
Shareholders how the Company has applied the principles in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

The Board is responsible for directing the Group, formulating overall
strategy, monitoring operational and financial performance of the Group
and overseeing the performance of the management of the Group (the
“Management”). Each Director acts in good faith for the best interest of
the Company. The Directors are collectively and individually responsible
to the Company for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated. They had devoted sufficient time and
attention to the Company’s affairs during the Year.

Structure

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three INEDs. The INEDs represent more than
one-third of the Board. The members of the Board during the year and
as at the date of this report as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (CEQ)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Ying Hai (Resigned on 5 June 2017)
Mr. Hou Kai Wen (Appointed on 5 June 2017)
Mr. Lin Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Wing

Mr. Mai Yang Guang

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Appointed on 20 September 2017)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017)
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Structure (Continued)

The Directors’ biographies are available on the Company’s website.
There is no personal relationship among members of the Board and in
particular, between the Chairman and the CEO.

At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification as
required by the Stock Exchange. The Company has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

The Directors (including the non-executive Directors and the INEDs) were
appointed for specific terms.

According to The International Tak Cheung Holdings Limited Act 1991 (the
“Private Act”, whereas “International Tak Cheung Holdings Limited” is the
former name of the Company) under which the Company was exempted
from certain compliances with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Bermuda Companies Act”), the Directors shall not be required to be
elected at each annual general meeting, but shall (save for any Chairman
and managing Director) be subject to retirement by rotation in such
manner and at such frequency as the Bye-laws may provide.
Notwithstanding that no retirement by rotation is required for the
managing director under the Private Act or the Bermuda Companies Act,
Mr. Cheung, Mr. Cheng, and Mr. Ye as the Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and the CEQO, respectively are willing to voluntarily retire from
the directorships at annual general meetings of the Company at least
once every three years by following the Bye-laws concerning the
Directors’ retirement by rotation, and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the relevant annual general meetings.

Every Director is therefore subject to retirement by rotation either under
the Bye-laws or voluntarily, and eligible for re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three years.
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Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

Throughout their period in office, the Directors have been informed of the
Group’s businesses, the competitive and regulatory environments in
which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industries it operates in as a whole. They have also been advised on
appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of
a listed company and updated on changes to the legal and governance
requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the Directors.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to
carry out their responsibilities from time to time.

To enhance the Directors’ consciousness on the importance of the
directors’ duties under common law (which is also generally applicable to
Bermuda where the Company was incorporated) and to comply with the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong
Kong), “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” in which the general principles a
director should follow in the performance of his functions and exercise of
his powers was distributed to the Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meetings’ agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board meeting. At least
14 days’ notice of a regular Board’s meeting is given to all Directors to
provide them with the opportunity to attend the meeting. Board papers
are dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meetings to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and will be
adequately prepared for the meeting. The Management is invited to
attend the meetings to address to the Board members’ queries. This
enables the Board to have pertinent data and insight for reaching a
comprehensive and informed evaluation as part of the Board decision-
making process.
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(Continued)

Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The chairman of the meetings has delegated the responsibility to the
Company Secretary for drawing up and approving the meeting’s agenda
for each Board’s meeting, taking into account of any matter proposed by
each Director for inclusion in the agenda.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored by
the chairman of the meetings who would ensure that sufficient time is
allocated for discussion and consideration of each item on the agenda.
Equal opportunities are given to each Director to express his views and
concerns.

Each Director has to declare his interest and to abstain from voting on
any Board resolution in which he or any of his associates has a material
interest pursuant to the Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board procedures, rules and regulations are
followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting in
sufficient details are sent to the Directors for comments and records
within reasonable time after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board’s
meetings and of the Board committees’ meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary, which are open for inspection by the Directors on
reasonable notice.

Ten Board meetings were held for the Year. The Company Secretary and
the Management had attended the Board’s meetings to report matters
arising from corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business.
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Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

Individual attendance of each Director at the meetings for the Year was
as follows:

EEZ2E2TW
AEESEEREeEYEAALEERNT :

attendance in total)

Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held

(Percentage of (Percentage of

attendance in total)

HE BT HE BT
EZEERRY BRAEZRE
Directors = (4 E =) (48 fE 2*&)
1 | [ ]
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman) REELE(FE) 10/10 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman) BE LA (FEE) 10/10 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (CEO) EME ke (TTHAER) 9/10 (90%) 1/1 (100%)
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Bai Ying Hai (Resigned on 5 June 2017) BESEE(RZZE—LtF
(Note 1) NARBEE KF1) 2/2 (100%) 0/1 (0%)
Mr. Hou Kai Wen (Appointed on 5 June 2017) FEYIXEE(RZE—+F N/A
(Note 2) NARRELZE) (HiF2) 6/8 (75%) & A
Mr. Lin Jiang OLEAE 10/10 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Mr. Lam Chi Wing B E k& 10/10 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Mai Yang Guang BErEE 10/10 (100%) 0/1 (0%)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Erest =RGEERZZT—tF
(Appointed on 20 September 2017) (Note 3) NA-—+HEZE) N/A
(Kat3) 4/4 (100%) i
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017) EXRALEE(RZZE—+tF
(Note 4) +A—B&E) (KiF4) 2/2 (100%) 1/1 (100%)

Note 1:  During Mr. Bai’s term of service in 2017, two Board meetings were held. Hizx1 -

Note 2:  During Mr. Hou’s term of service in 2017, eight Board meetings and no {312 -
general meeting were held.

Note 3:  During Mr. Wong'’s term of service in 2017, four Board meetings and no Hist3 -
general meeting were held.

Note 4:  During Mr. Yau’s term of service in 2017, two Board meetings were held. Hista -
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RS-
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Work Performed

During the Year, besides attending the Board’s meetings to consider and
make decision on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business matters, the Directors had
brought independent opinion and judgement on the Company’s strategy,
performance and standards of conduct; had taken the leave where
potential conflicts of interests arose; had served on Board’s committees;
had ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; had carried out reviews on matters reported
by the Board’s committees, and had provided adequate checks and
balance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and
the Company in general.

During the Year, the INEDs had actively participated in the Board’s
meetings, brought independent judgements and given their comments to
the information or reports submitted to the meetings.

Besides holding the Board’s or committees’ meetings, in order to make
timely decision and ensure effective implementation of the Company’s
policies and practices, the Board had also adopted written resolutions
signed by all Directors for making decisions on corporate affairs from
time to time.

As part of the continuing process on supervising the Company’s affairs,
the Directors, acting through by the Audit Committee, had reviewed the
adequacy of resources (of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function), qualifications and experience of the Directors, and
their training programmes and budget during the Year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transaction throughout the Year.
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(Continued)

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
Chairman and the CEO should be separate and performed by different
individuals. During the Year, the Chairman of the Board and the CEO are
separate positions held by Mr. Cheung and Mr. Ye, respectively, with
clear distinction in responsibilities. The segregation is clearly established
and set out in writing to ensure a clear distinction between the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and CEQ’s responsibility
to manage the Group’s businesses.

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with defined roles and
terms of reference.

Structure

The Audit Committee has been established with the role to assist the
Board in establishing formal and transparent arrangements for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and the internal control
principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Independent Auditor. It acts in an advisory capacity and makes
recommendations to the Board.

All the Audit Committee’s members possess diversified industry
experience. The Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Erest (Chairman)
(Appointed on 20 September 2017)

Mr. Lam Chi Wing

Mr. Mai Yang Guang

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017)
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(Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Function

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Independent Auditor, review and
monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, reports and accounts and quarterly reports (if
applicable) of the Company, and to review any significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them; and

(i) to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet with the Independent Auditor at least
twice each year. As least 7 days’ notice has to be given prior to any
meeting being held unless all members of Audit Committee unanimously
waive such notice. The Company prepares and delivers an information
memorandum that includes all relevant information about the meetings to
the Audit Committee’s members at least 3 days prior to such meetings.
During the Year, the Audit Committee’s members reviewed the
information memorandum with due care and discussed with the financial
controller of the Group (who is also the Company Secretary) and other
Management (if necessary) during the meetings.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings with the
presence of the Management. Minutes drafted by the Company
Secretary were circulated to the Audit Committee’s members for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting. Executed
minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the minutes
were sent to the Audit Committee’s members for records.
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Audit Committee (Continued)
Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meetings for
the Year was as follows:

AFEEEZBENERZFERZIMALRFE R

Number of meetings attended/held
(Percentage of attendance in total)

HE/BITEBERH
Members KE (48 E =)
'/ ___________________________________| ]
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest (Chairman) (Appointed &R EE 5 4 (£ /E) (R—F —+
on 20 September 2017) (Note 1) FRAZTHEZFE) (Ma1) 0/0
Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEFHITE 3/3 (100%)
Mr. Mai Yang Guang BigHEE 3/3 (100%)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017) EFEREERZZZE—LF
(Note 2) + A— B &) (ff:F2) 2/2 (100%)

Note 1: During Mr. Wong'’s term of service in 2017, no Audit Committee meeting was
held.

Note 2: During Mr. Yau’s term of service in 2017, two Audit Committee meetings were
held.

Work Performed

The works performed by the members of Audit Committee in the Year
were summarised below:

(i) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, and interim
report of 2017,

(i) reviewed, discussed and agreed with the Independent Auditor in
respect of the audit fee for the Year; the terms of the engagement
letters for the Year; and the nature, scope of audit and reporting
obligations for the Year;

(i)  reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting and controls, internal control procedures
and risk management systems, and the Group’s internal audit
function;

(iv) reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the
progress of compliance of the CG Code;
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Audit Committee (Continued)
Work Performed (Continued)

(v)  carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions
of the Company (including those fallen outside Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules and not required to be made public (if any)) and their
financial implication in their capacity as INEDs;

(vi)  reviewed the overall performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017;

(viiy  reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of the staff in accounting and financial reporting function, and the
training programmes and budget; and

(viii)  prepared and submitted to the Board an Audit Committee’s report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during the
Year, presented its findings and made recommendations for the
Board’s consideration.

Overall, the Audit Committee was satisfied with the condition of the
Company, including the corporate governance practices, internal control
system, the conduct of the continuing connected transactions and
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff in
accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes
and budget.

On 29 March 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s accounts
and draft consolidated financial statements for the Year. Details of this
work will be given in corporate governance report for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 under the Listing Rules.
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Nomination Committee
Structure

The Nomination Committee has been established since 1 April 2012 with
the role to lead the process and make recommendations for
appointments to the Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they arise, in the light
of challenges and opportunities facing by the Company, as well as
business development and requirements of the Company and to take
approved action if within delegated authority.

The Nomination Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Chi Wing

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Appointed on 20 September 2017)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017)

Function

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are summarised below:

(i) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
evaluation of the skills, knowledge, professional experience, cultural
and education background, gender and age of the Board
members) of the Board at least annually and make recommendation
on any proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individual suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individual nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of INEDs;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman and the chief
executive; and

(v)  to consult the Remuneration Committee about its remuneration
proposals for the candidate to be appointed as a Director.

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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yOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued) REZE= @)

Function (Continued) B B

)ﬂﬂﬂH

The Nomination Committee would consult the executive Directors about R ELEE @ B EMEE VIR L EE XM T
its proposals on appointment of other Directors and seek internal and E = WHERAEZERS AL LRI R EE
external professional advices if considered necessary. BHR

Conduct of Meetings SEZET

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held four meetings to HREFHN  IEREZEEeBTHNRSHE UE

consider and approve the nomination of the non-executive Directors and B RH#LEARFEE IR ITES LB IENTTES
INEDs for the Year. ZHRE -

Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meeting forthe AREFKEESKERNZLEZ ZBEAHEXRMN

Year was as follows: T
Number of meetings attended/held
(Percentage of attendance in total)
HE BITEERE
Members RE (FBHE =)
| L]
Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman) BEIG E (EE) 4/4 (100%)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEFETE 4/4 (100%)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Erest (Appointed on BREEE(RZE—+F
20 September 2017) (Note 1) NAZ+BEZFE) (Mit1) 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017) EERAEE(R=ZZT—tF
(Note 2) +A—B&EE) (ffiF2) 2/2 (100%)

Note 1: During Mr. Wong’s term of service in 2017, one Nomination Committee Mzt 71 - S 4E R _E—+E 2 AT HH 8177 —
meeting was held. REZBEee% -

Note 2: During Mr. Yau’s term of service in 2017, two Nomination Committee meetings  ffz2: B AR —E—+E 2 EF KR BT TR K
were held. RarEeeso

=8 =

T
0

AN

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once each year. Atleast 7 12 % & E & E B e — K -KIEDEIR
days’ notice has been given prior to any meeting being held unless all ZZE @K E —HBERRBANZ BRI B

members of the Nomination Committee unanimously waive such notice. AlfEfezmaBag R8T ER%EE -

I]

The Company prepared and delivered meeting papers that include all AAFHKESZTH RABEME<ZMEE
relevant information about the meeting to the Nomination Committee’s & %} » I R ﬁ HMempea)=HRETIESZES
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the EBe&pKE8 - Al EERN @ ZILHE DAL X
Company Secretary were circulated to the Nomination Committee’'s @ —KRAEBBEAX TIELZESKEHE
members for comments within a reasonable time after this meeting. B EAFER KEEBV oo iH AT WE
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of 77F & @ @ Z B AN ERIERETESKE
the minutes were sent to the Nomination Committee’s members for  LA{EZZ&E

records.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)
Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity of the Board against
the measurable objectives in accordance with the diversity policy of the
Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. Elements of Board’s diversity policy
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge of Directors. The Board said elements
have substantially been included in the current Board composition.

Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the
Company, as well as business development and requirements of the
Company. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the
Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills and
expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the Board and/or its committee responsibilities; and the
elements of the Board’s diversity policy etc. The Nomination Committee
makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the appropriate person
among the candidates nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s)
shall be appointed by the Board in accordance with the Bye-laws and the
Listing Rules.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Continuous Professional Development of the Directors

During the Year and up to the date of this report, all Directors participated
the following continuous professional development (CPD) to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in compliance with code provision A.6.5
of the CG Code to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company is responsible for arranging and
finding suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Hau Yan (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian (CEO)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Bai Ying Hai (Resigned on 5 June 2017)

Mr. Hou Kai Wen (Appointed on 5 June 2017)
Mr. Lin Jiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Wing
Mr. Mai Yang Guang
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest
(Appointed on 20 September 2017)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017)

Remarks:

A: attending seminars and/or training

B: reading Listing Rules, updates, articles and/or materials etc.
C: preparing and/or giving seminar presentations
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Remuneration Committee
Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established with the role to
assist the Board in reviewing and determining the framework or policy for
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group, overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures
and considering other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman)

Mr. Lam Chi Wing

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest (Appointed on 5 June 2017)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017)

Function

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are summarised below:

(i) to set, review and make recommendations to the Board for
approving the Group’s overall remuneration policy and strategy;

(i) to set, review and approve performance-based remuneration and
individual remuneration packages for the executive Directors and
the Management including terms and conditions of employment as
well as compensation payable due to loss or termination of office,
and dismissal or removal for misconduct; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors and INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and/or the CEO about its proposals on remuneration of other
executive Directors and seek internal and external professional advices if
considered necessary.
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(Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)
Conduct of Meetings

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held four meetings to
consider and approve the annual remuneration of the Directors for the
Year.

Individual attendance of each committee’s member at the meeting for the
Year was as follows:

Members KE

Mr. Mai Yang Guang (Chairman) BRI E(EE)
Mr. Lam Chi Wing MEHETE
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Appointed on
20 September 2017) (Note 1)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (Resigned on 1 July 2017)

HRGEEER T —
NAZtBREZE) (KiE1)
EEHAEEMR_FT—1tF
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FMEZEER W@
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AEERZEGHNERNZERZEALFEEN
™

Number of meetings attended/held
(Percentage of attendance in total)
HE BITEEARE

(BHE=R)

4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)
1/1 (100%)

2/2 (100%)

(Note 2) +A—B &) (ffiF2)
Note 1: During Mr. Wong’s term of service in 2017, one Remuneration Committee Mfatt BERAR T —+F2ETHB 2177 — K
meeting was held. FHEEgEE -
Note 2: During Mr. Yau's term of service in 2017, two Remuneraton Committee  ff52: EAX AR —E—+F 2 EFHE T TMK

meetings were held.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year. As
least 7 days’ notice has to be given prior to any meeting being held
unless all members of Remuneration Committee unanimously waive such
notice.

The Company prepared and delivered meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Remuneration Committee’s
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Remuneration Committee’s
members for comments within a reasonable time after this meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of
the minutes were sent to the Remuneration Committee’s members for
records.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)
Remuneration Policy

After annual review in the aforesaid meeting, the Directors’ emoluments
remain unchanged. The Chairman and the Deputy Chairman are entitled
to an annual remuneration of HK$150,000. In addition, the Deputy
Chairman and the CEQO have entitled to monthly salary of HK$120,000
and HK$35,385 respectively, subject to annual review with reference to
their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing market condition.

One of the non-executive Directors is entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$150,000 as a position of Director and is also entitled to an annual
consultancy fee of HK$150,000 as adviser of the Group determined by
the Board subject to annual review with reference to his duties and
responsibilities as well as the prevailing market condition. The other non-
executive Director is not entitled to annual remuneration but is entitled to,
if any, discretionay bonus to be determined at the discretion of the Board
and the remuneration committee of the Board.

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office as
the INEDs except for their entitement of an annual remuneration of
HK$150,000 determined by the Board subject to annual review with
reference to their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing
market condition.

The Company aims to attract, retain and motivate talented and
recognised staff, the Management and Directors of the Group by
adoption of share option scheme. The Company adopted a share option
scheme on 11 October 2012. As at 31 December 2016, the Company
had granted an aggregate of 35,800,000 share options carrying the right
to subscribe for the nominal ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company, representing approximately 1.38% of total of 2,596,255,008
shares of issued share capital of the Company on 5 January 2016 (date
of grant). During the Year, no share options had been granted and
35,800,000 share options were lapsed during the year.

Remuneration payable to the senior management and highest paid
employees of the Company by band is disclosed in Note 12 of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this report.
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The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and CPD of Directors and senior management of the
Group, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of
management and delegated daily management and administration
functions to the Management. The functions reserved to the Board and
those delegated to the Management are reviewed from time to time. The
Company would formalise the division of responsibility between the
Board and the Management when the operational requirement of the
Group justifies such division.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the Independent
Auditors by the Shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 May 2017 (the “2017 AGM”). In order to maintain
the independence and objectivity of the Independent Auditors (which for
these purposes include any entity under common control, ownership or
management with the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally),
they will not be engaged for non-audit work unless it has been pre-
approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the Company’s non-audit
services policy.

Independent Auditors were engaged on an ad hoc basis to provide non-
audit services, such as to provide a confirmation letter to the Board and a
copy of this letter to the Stock Exchange to confirm, among others, that
the continuing connected transaction had not exceeded the stipulated
caps for the transaction, as part of the process for the annual review of
the transaction as required under the Listing Rules during the Year. The
fundamental policy of the Group is to ensure that the engagement of the
Independent Auditors for non-audit services will not harm their
independence or cause any bias on audit works for the presentation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. During the Year, the
fees for engaging HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited to carry out works
in connection with the annual review of a continuing connected
transaction aggregated to HK$50,000, pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules.
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At the 2017 AGM, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed
by the Shareholders as the Independent Auditors. The audit fees for
auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
was HK$1,500,000.

The accounts for the Year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will be nominated for re-appointment
as the Independent Auditors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are
announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual report as
well as inside information announcements and financial disclosures
published as required under the Listing Rules.

The Management provides explanation, information and progress update
to the executive Directors and/or the Board in order for it to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other issues put before the
Board for approval and consideration.

Throughout the Year, the Directors had selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which
give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the HKICPA. A statement by the HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited about their reporting responsibilities for
the Year is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited did not report for the Year that there
was any material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone
from the top, performing risk assessment, and owning the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control. Essential to this risk
management and internal control systems are well defined policies and
procedures that are properly documented and communicated to
employees. To this end, the Company continues to allocate resources for
internal control and risk management systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage rather than eliminate the risk or failure to achieve business
objectives.

During the Year, the Group has implemented an internal audit function to
review the financial condition, operational condition, risk management,
compliance control and internal control of the Group. The Audit
Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the Group’s
risk management and internal control function by reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk management and internal
control system at least annually. During the Year, the Board has reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, through the Audit Committee.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
embedded within our business processes so that it functions as an
integral part of the overall operation of the Group. The system comprises
a comprehensive organisation structure with assignment of definite
accountabilities and delegation of corresponding authorities to each post.
Based on our organisation structure, a reporting system has been
developed including reporting channels from division heads of business
units to the Board.

The risk management and internal control systems and accounting
system of the Group are aimed at identifying and evaluating the Group’s
risk and formulate risk mitigation strategies, and to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or
disposition, transactions are executed in accordance with the
management’s authorisation, and the accounting records are reliable for
preparing financial information used within the business for publication,
maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities and ensuring the
business operations are in accordance with relevant legislation,
regulations and internal guidelines.
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The Group has an organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and authority. Each department is accountable for its daily
operations and is required to report to executive Directors on a regular
basis. Policies and procedures are set for each department, which
includes establishing and maintaining effective policies to enhance the
ability of risks identification to which the Group are exposed and taking
appropriate actions to manage such risks, establishing a structure with
defined authorities and proper segregation of duties; monitoring the
strategic plan and performance; designing an effective accounting and
information system; controlling price sensitive information; and ensuring
swift actions and timely communication with our stakeholders.

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of
each level of the structure are summarized below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies and
objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of risks it is wiling to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives; ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems; and
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to perform its
responsibilities of risk management and internal control systems; overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basis; reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least annually, and such review should cover
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
control; ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget for the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and considering major
findings on risk management and internal control matters, and reports
and makes recommendations to the Board.

The senior management designs, implements and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems; identifies,
evaluates and manages the risk that may potentially impact the major
processes of the operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate
risk in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and follow
up the findings on risk management and internal control matters raised
by the internal auditor or external risk management and internal control
adviser; and provides confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the findings of the
review and makes recommendations to the Board and management to
improve the material systems deficiencies or control weaknesses
identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2017 and considers them effective and adequate.

Risk Management Procedures

In addition to the Board’s responsibilities, the Company has developed a
risk management process to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks and to resolve material internal control defects. Senior management
is responsible for the annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will
meet with various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal control
defects, including any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are
compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are documented.
The risk assessment is reviewed by certain members of senior
management and presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for
their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results; (i)
the probability that the risk will occur; and (i) the velocity or speed at
which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks as
follows:

Establish risk context — internal audit establishes common risk
assessment and criteria and sets up risk reference tables for the Group.

Risk identification — departments identify the risks that potentially impact
the key process of their operations.

Risk assessment — departments assess and score the risks identified
along with their impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk treatment — departments assess effectiveness of existing controls
and provide treatment plans when required.
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Risk Management Procedures (Continued)

Risk reporting and monitoring — departments monitor risk mitigating
activities. Risks are regularly reported at appropriate level within the
Group and assurance is provided on the progress of treatment plans.

Principal Risks

The Group faces a number of principal risks and uncertainties that if not
properly managed could create an exposure for the Group. Thorough risk
assessment and mitigation help ensure these risks are well managed and
governed effectively. Principal risks identified by the Group are disclosed
in the Directors’ Report under the section headed “Risks and
Uncertainties Relating to the Group’s Business”.

Procedures and Controls over Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Group has internal policy and
procedures which strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information
and has communicated to all staff; the Board is aware of its obligations
to announce any inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules
and conducts the affairs with reference to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
in June 2012. In addition, only Directors and delegated officers can act
as the Group’s spokesperson and respond to external enquiries about
the Group’s affairs.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders and the
Management. The Company Secretary’s biography is set out in the “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” section of this report. During the
Year, each of Mr. Wong Wing Cheung and Mr. Lam King Ho during their
respective periods in 2017 acting as the Company Secretary. Mr. Wong
Wing Cheung had undertaken not less than 15 hours of professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company is committed to safeguarding the Shareholders’ and the
Company’s interests as a whole and encourages the Shareholders to
attend general meetings for participating in the important decisions of the
Company for which the Shareholders’ approval is required under the
Listing Rules and the laws of Bermuda. The Company regards general
meeting as an important event as it provides an important opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Notices
of the 2017 AGM, together with the annual report and circular, was sent
to the Shareholders more than 20 clear business days before the meeting
whereas notice of the special general meeting, together with circular, was
sent to the Shareholders more than 10 clear business days before the
meeting. These can allow more time for the Shareholders to digest
information in the annual report and circulars, and to consider whether
joining the meetings or not.

With the implementation of poll voting in lieu of show of hands at all
general meetings of a listed company, shareholders can fully reflect their
proprietary rights and interests by means of poll which is regarded as a
fairer method of determination on business matters than voting on a
show of hands at general meetings under the Listing Rules.

The Chairman acting as the chairman of the 2017 AGM, took the initiative
to demand for a poll at the commencement of the meetings and
explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll to the
Shareholders. All resolutions were put to vote and passed by poll under
the scrutiny of the independent share registrar. The poll results were
made public by means of public announcements which were uploaded to
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group
are made available on the Company’s website, which are regularly
updated.

The Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put
forward proposals at general meetings by way of a written notice
addressed to the Company Secretary at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

The way in which Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

The Directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its bye-laws
shall, on the requisition of Shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of
the paid-up capital of the company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a SGM of the Company.
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The way in which Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM?”) (Continued)

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited with the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Rooms 2709-10, 27th
Floor, North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents
in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to include the
resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited with the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Rooms 2709-10, 27th Floor,
North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), or
SGM, the Shareholders should submit a written notice of those proposals
with the detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Rooms 2709-10, 27th Floor,
North Tower, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the Company’s
Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

— At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include not less
than 20 clear business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
resolution of the Company in AGM
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The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings (Continued)

At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include not less
than 10 clear business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in SGM

At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include not less
than 10 clear business days) in writing for all other SGM of the
Company

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after the
shareholder meeting.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with investors
and develop greater understanding about the Group for international
investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the Group.

62

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose new
resolutions at the general meetings. However, shareholders are
requested to follow Bye-laws 89 of the Bye-laws of the Company
for including a resolution at an SGM. The requirements and
procedures are set out above. Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the Bye-
laws of the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at a
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless
not less than seven clear days before the date appointed for the
meeting there shall have been lodged at the Office or at the
Registration Office notice in writing signed by some Members (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected. The
period for lodgment of the notice required under this Bye-law shall
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such meeting, provided that such
period shall be at least seven days.
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Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the
Shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company
considers good investor relations as a key part of its operations and
continues to promote investor relations and enhances communications
with the investors.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.cs-ih.com) to make
the Group’s information, statutory announcements, and other financial
and non-financial information available on the internet to facilitate its
communication with the Shareholders.

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and the
Shareholders, and invites them to share their views and suggestions by
contacting the Investor Relations Team at ir@cs-ih.com

There is no change in the memorandum of association and the Bye-laws
for the Year.

The Company had fully applied the principles and complied with the
requirements of the CG Code except as stated below, as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year. None of the
Directors was aware of any information that would reasonably indicate
that the Company was, during the Year, not compliant with the CG Code
except for the deviations as follows:

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board must include at
least three INEDs. Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee must comprise a minimum of three members. Following the
resignation of Mr. Yau Chi Ming as an INED on 1 July 2017, the number
of INED and the number of members of the Audit Committee fell below
the minimum requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

On 20 September 2017, the Company appointed Mr. Wong Yiu Kit,
Ernest as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee and also a member
of other board committees of the Company. Following the appointment
of Mr. Wong as an INED and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Company met the minimum requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

RESNBAENERRFEEE R ZDT E
Floptith ERRR (BERBRESE) EREA
FEIAXRZIED - ARABRRIFRES
AELDEERZIEN Y URKEREREH
FERngEREEZBE-

NAFRA QT BE (www.cs-ih.com) » i % &R
AFEBEBMENSAEEER EFERAER
HMBEMEFBER  neEapgEm s Em-

AABBHEEERBRRIEHER  WHBKE
LB Bir@cs-ihcomBBIEEEBRILDERS
ZERRZER -

RAER EHERABRATMALEHEE
RE -

ARARRAFE-—EE2EREM LHARAKE+
meESTAMZRA - XEFEHTRZRE K
TXFERS - EEH A NEBETRAER A
AERELARAANFAL B ETEE TR I
PAT fm BB BR 9D -

RIELTRAEIIONG EFQVABEE
DZZBIUIFNITESF - RIE L HARAF3.21
f BZZBQ@VARREL=ZAKEBE &
REER -_FT—tF LA -BEETBILIFENT
EXR BUNNTEERERZZEEREA
2o BMER £ R A FE3.1001) 16 K F3.21 1§
MIEZ TRAE -

RZE—tFNAZTH ARAZE=RH
EERBUFNTES BFRZEEHNEUR
RKRalEMEEZEGCNE - BELEES
EAEBUFRATEERERZZEERE A4
AIEES EWRANESI0MN)IE K EI21IEE T
HRIEAZBIRTE -

AEERREELEEERAT —T—HFFER 63



oy <

GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
Al 6 I Rl (4] | |

Notwithstanding the deviation from the code provisions, the Company REFEE TTAIKEYX 2 IREE @ KXQAFHEE
trusts that it has maintained a high standard of corporate governance AREFERNEED SZKFEZEEEE - AN F)H
during the Year. The Company believes that corporate governance (ER 2SRRI FRENEHEMTEHE
principles and practices are essential to the business communities. Z @ WAARNEHETHRBRITEMCEE LS
Ongoing effort will be given to review its corporate governance practices  #7 LA EIRIE F 28 & - KRR G T #S
from time to time so to accommodate the changing circumstances. The NG EPEES QEENE E -

Company will strive to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality

of its corporate governance.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
summarizes the environmental, social and governance initiatives, plans
and performance of the Group and demonstrates its commitment to
sustainable development.

The core business of the Group is principally engaged in management of
healthcare investments, natural health food business and the provision of
life healthcare services.

The Group’s vision is “to solve the health problems of people through our
products and services so as to achieve Healthy, Happy and Secure Life”.
To achieve this, the Group has implemented the principles of sustainable
development at operational levels such as day-to-day operations,
strategic planning and investment, adhered to the management policies
of sustainable environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
development. We are also committed to treating the Group’s
environmental, social and governance affairs of the Group effectively and
responsibly, which becomes a core part of our business strategy, as we
believe this is the key to our continued success in the future.

The ESG Governance Structure

During the reporting period, the Group established the ESG Task Force (the
“Task Force”). The Task Force comprises core members from different
departments of the Group and is responsible for collecting relevant
information on our ESG aspects for the preparation of the ESG Report.
The Task Force reports to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in
identifying and assessing the Group’s ESG risks, and assesses the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG internal control mechanism. The Task
Force will also examine and assess our performance in different aspects
such as health and safety, labour standards, and product responsibility in
the ESG area. The Board sets the general direction of the Group’s ESG
strategy and ensures the effectiveness of ESG risk control and internal
control mechanism.
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(Continued)

Unless otherwise stated, this report mainly covers the principal
subsidiaries of the Group providing life healthcare services, i.e. the two
clinics under Realyoung International Life Medical Group Company
Limited.

The Group continues to assess the significant ESG areas of different
businesses or substantial subsidiaries to determine whether it is
necessary to include them in the ESG reporting.

The ESG Report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Main Board
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”).

The corporate governance practices of the Group are set out in the
corporate governance report on page 38 to 64 of this report.

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures
taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group places emphasis on stakeholders and their opinions on the
business and ESG issues of the Group. To understand and respond to
stakeholders’ concerns, the Group communicates with key stakeholders
(including employees, investors, customers, suppliers, government
authorities, and local groups) through different channels, such as
meetings, customer satisfaction surveys, electronic platforms, public
events, etc. While formulating operational strategies and ESG measures,
the Group considers the expectations of stakeholders and continuously
improves its performance through mutual cooperation, thus creating
greater value for society.

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major functions
have participated in the preparation of the ESG report to assist the Group
in reviewing its operations and identifying relevant ESG issues and assess
the importance of related matters to our business and each stakeholder.
Based on the assessed significant ESG issues, a data collection
questionnaire was prepared to collect information from relevant
departments and business units of the Group.
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The following table is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues

included in this report:

TRB/BAMEMFATEBERNERE

ERFEHEZIBE:

The ESG material aspects of the

tre

Report Guide %183l Group ARERE HEREREZER
' /' ||
A.  Environmental A BRE
A1, Emissions A BB Environmental Protection Policy and B35 R #EHERAHEH P.68
Compliance Issues
Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse BREAZERBHEN P.69
Gas Emissions
Discharge and Treatment of Waste & ¥ [z BE 7k 5 bt e f 38 P.70
and Wastewater
A2.  Use of Resources A2, BRER Energy Consumption WL P.74
Water Consumption KR E P.75
Use of Packaging Materials BRVEER(TER) P.75
(Not applicable)
A3.  The Environment and A3. RERAAEIR  Noise Management BREER P.76
Natural Resources
B. Social B. £%
Bi. Employment Bl. &% Compensation and Benefits £ Bl 42 P.77
Recruitment, Promotion, Incentive ~ 1RH2 « 27} « 528 % iR P.79
and Dismissal
Equal Opportunity TEfe P.80
B2. Health and Safety B2. BEEZ2 Internal Health and Safety ABRREZ2ER P.81
Management
Occupational Safety Training ey | P.82
B3.  Development and Training B3. EEKIE Training Management EIEE P.83
Training Course R E P.83
B4. Labour Standards B4, B IR Prevent Child and Forced Labour i IEE T8 4% T P.84
B5.  Supply Chain B5. HEEER Supply Chain Environment and BRI Rt g B E R P.86
Management Social Risk Management
Fair and Open Procurement AERDARE P.86
B6.  Product Responsibilty B6. EmEfME Quality of Medical Service ERERBEmE P.87
Customer Service BP R P.88
B7. Anti-corruption B7. RES Prevent Corruption and Fraud By k&5 R E % P.89
B8. Community Investment Bs. HEHKE Corporate Social Responsibilty CEHERE P.90

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group confirmed that it
has established appropriate and effective management policies and
control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed
contents are in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and suggestions. You
can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG Report or our
performance in sustainable development and email it to ir@cs-ih.com.

REE-_ZT—+tFF+_A=Z+—HLEFE XK
SERRACHRERE HeRERETERILEGE
MERHNEEBRRRERZRG  WERMEER
NAFAREESIMERK-

BMEBOFNEREEREZ BT
BE HdeRERABREXARMEAFEERES
AHMERRIEHEEEE R - WEEH Fir@cs-ih.com °

AEERREELEEERAT —T—HFFER 67



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
BB ka0 ()

68

Al.

Emissions

General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”)

Environmental Protection Policy and Compliance Issues

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations, focuses on sound
environmental management, and strives to protect the
environment in order to fulfill the Group’s commitment on
social responsibility.

The Group regularly follows the latest national and regional
environmental protection laws and regulations, thereby
focusing on strengthening environmental protection measures
in order to comply with local government-related laws and
regulations and fully implement environmental policies. The
Group complies with applicable laws and regulations. The
relevant laws in Mainland China include “the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (fEE A RFEFBE AT R EE) , “the Regulations
on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment” (IS HE/KEL)S
KEEIBIEMHI) , “the Regulations on the Administration of
Medical Wastes” (EFEEMEEREG) , “the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes” (/1% A R £ AE
El BB REY S RN AE) | etc.

In the course of business operation of the Group, in addition
to the general emission of greenhouse gases (“GHG”) and the
discharge of domestic waste and sewage, medical waste is
discharged during the provision of medical services which
causes potential influence on the environment and may
exposes the Group to relevant compliance risk. Therefore,
the Group has formulated relevant rules and regulations for
the effective control and orderly management of medical
wastewater, medical waste, and other pollutants generated
during operation, and supervising the implementation of
environmental protection measures by various departments.
Such measures aim to prevent and reduce pollutants against
the environment, protect and improve the environment, and
protect the health of employees, so as to achieve the
environmental objectives and indicators of the Group.
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The responsible persons in charge of the Group’s
environmental affairs supervise the implementation of the
above measures and relevant environmental protection
policies. Under the strict supervision and guidance, various
departments endeavour to implement the environmental
protection policies of the Group and ensure that all operation
processes comply with legal requirements. The responsible
persons at all levels of environmental protection continue to
review the policies and implementation procedures of the
Group and report back to the management appropriately.
Suggestions would be made if necessary. When unexpected
incident causes to abnormal discharge during operation, the
responsible person should take emergency measures
immediately to prevent the outspread of pollution and report
to the management in a timely manner for efficient
coordination.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
have any violations of relevant local environmental laws and
regulations in relation to exhaust gas and GHG emissions,
water and land discharge, and the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste that have a significant impact on
the Group.

Exhaust Gas and GHG Emissions

Exhaust Gas Emissions

Due to our business nature, the Group does not generate
significant amount of exhaust gas emissions directly during its
operations.
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GHG Emissions BERBEH K

The principal GHG emissions of the Group are generated AEENFEBRETRESEHRRRER

from purchased electricity. The Group actively adopts INEEN AEERBRBIRIAE -
electricity conservation and energy saving measures as well BB E M A WD RE

il

5‘_

REYR B

as other measures to reduce GHG emissions, including:

Actively adopt measures for environmental protection,
energy conservation, and water saving. Relevant
measures are described in “Electricity Management”
and “Water Management” under Sections A2;

Actively adopt paper saving measures in office. The
relevant measures are described in the section “Other
Waste Reduction Measures — Office Paper
Management” in this chapter.

The overview of GHG emissions performance:

Indicator’

= 3

Total GHG emissions

BERBHNEE

Note:

The GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent, with reference to, but not limited to, the latest released
emission factors of China’s regional power grid basis.

During the reporting period, the number of employees of the
subsidiaries covered by the ESG Report is 39, which would also
be used for calculating other intensity data.

Discharge and Treatment of Waste and Wastewater

The Group adopts targeted treatment measures for the
following types of solid waste:
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Total emissions

92.65 tonnes
92.65 WA 2.38 W

Intensity — Total

in 2017 GHG emissions
(calculated in per employee
tonnes)  (tonnes/employee)?

ZE-SUES

2017 i EE BEREENAE
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2.38 tonnes
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Medical Wastes

The business of the Group shall comply with environmental
laws and regulations, including the provisions for the
treatment of medical waste. A comprehensive set of
procedures has been established in accordance with the
“Regulations on the Administration of Medical Wastes of
Guangdong Province” (ER & BEREYEIRIEMH) and the
“Measures for Medical Wastes Management of Medical and
Health Institutions” (E&ZEFAEKIBEZEYERIE) . If
medical waste is not properly disposed of, it will pose a risk
to the environment and human health. Therefore, we are
responsible to handle waste in statutory, safe and
professional manner. For medical wastes such as syringe,
infusion set, blood transfusion tool, pharmaceutical bottle,
blood purification materials, cotton swab for disinfection,
cotton swab and pad, indwelling needle, therapeutic sheet,
waste medicines, etc., the Group has formulated and
effectively implemented relevant written procedures for the
treatment of medical wastes to ensure proper management
and safe disposal of the wastes. The Group provides training
to all frontline staff to ensure that all relevant staff are familiar
with the relevant procedures. The relevant procedures and
systems are as follows:

° |dentification and separation of types of waste: separate
and classify different types of waste from sources (ward,
laboratory, inspection room, etc.) under the supervision
of responsible personnel with clear operational
guidelines and manuals and according to the “Classified
Catalogue of Medical Wastes” (E&EEEYDIER %) ;

° Transport and storage of wastes: Use puncture-proof
and leak-proof container, bags are properly bundled
and sealed, use special transport trolleys, store waste
in covered areas away from normal access, and take
safety measures to prevent unauthorized reuse;

° |dentify the need for the use of personal protective
equipment: identify and provide special clothing, gloves,
masks and eye protection to employees responsible for
waste transportation and disposal; and

° Proper disposal of wastes: Collect and follow-up
disposal by qualified and licensed service providers
specialized in the treatment of medical waste (including
incineration, landfill or chemical/biochemical treatment
of applicable waste types) at the final stage. Such
wastes are generally not recyclable and reusable
because of their hazardous nature.
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The overview of medical wastes discharge performance:

Total medical wastes discharge in 2017 (calculated in kg)

017 BEREBEMHFHAE (LD FEHHE)

1,116.5kg
111652 T

Non-hazardous Wastes

In addition to medical waste, the Group generates general
non-hazardous wastes during its operations, including paper,
paper towels, masks, plastic gloves, disposable protective
gowns, disposable shoe covers, and other uncontaminated
containers. After collection and classification, such wastes will
eventually be collected and disposed by property
management company. Recyclable wastes (such as paper)
will be recycled for reuse.

The overview of major non-hazardous wastes discharge
performance:

Category of waste

% ¥ 8 5

Paper
AL ok

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
measure the amount of general non-hazardous wastes other
than paper. The Group will continue to improve its information
collection and disclosure system in 2018 to enhance the
transparency of information disclosure in respect of the
discharge performance of the Group.

Total discharge

37,500 sheets

BERMHFEBRBERML

Intensity — Total
medical wastes
discharge per
employee
(kg/employee)
nE-BUEER
BERBYHREAE
(A 1E’EB)

28.63kg
28.6372 fT
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Intensity — Total
non-hazardous
wastes discharge
per employee

in 2017 (unit/employee)
RE-BUES
HEEEEYHER

017EHHBE H#EB (B ES)

961.54 sheets
37,500 5% 961.54 5%

REBE-_T—+tF+-A=+—H
LHFE AEEXRERAHAR
AR EEEDMNRE -AKH
BR-_ZE-N\FHETZEEANE
BRERKERG MR AKHE
FRERRNEERBEERE -

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
BB b E KA R O ()

Other Waste Reduction Measures — Office Paper
Management

The Group is committed to establishing an electronic office.
The office makes full use of the online system, while general
business notices and data transmissions are conducted
through the Internet system. Printing and copying are
minimized to the largest extent to reduce paper usage. Office
paper is used both sides. The office is responsible for
supervising the amount of paper usage; waste paper is
collected and disposed of by the administrative department
and the office. Besides, the Group has been exploring
opportunities to upgrade and strengthen clinic management
and administrative information technology systems, such as
planning to upgrade our electronic medical record software
system to reduce the use of paper.

Wastewater Discharge and Treatment

The Group discharges operational water and medical
wastewater during its daily operation process. After
disinfection treatment, the discharged medical wastewater,
together with employees’ operational and domestic
wastewater, are discharged into the municipal sewage
pipeline network for processing in regional water purification
plant. After wastewater inspection, the aggregate discharge
effluent of the Group satisfied the level 3 standard
requirement of the second time-period of “Discharge Limits of
Water Pollutants” (K528 IRE) (DB44/26-2001) of
Guangdong Province.

Since the wastewater discharged by the Group is discharged
into the municipal sewage pipeline network for processing in
regional water purification plant, the amount of water
consumption of the Group represents the wastewater
discharge volume. The data of wastewater discharge volume
will be described in the “Water Management” section in Part
A2.
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A2. Use of Resources

General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group aims to actively promote the effective use of
resources, real-time monitors the potential impact of business
operations on the environment and promotes green office
and operating environment with four basic principles, i.e.
reduce, reuse, recycle and replace, thus minimizing the
impact of the Group and its subsidiaries on the environment.
The Group supervises the use of water, electricity and other
resources, measures usage on monthly basis, focusingly
administers major energy-consuming equipment, and
standardizes equipment operation procedures to full and
effective use of energy.

The Group strictly complies with the “Water Resource Law of
the People’s Republic of China” (A AR ELFMBKFE) |
“Electric Power Law of the People’s Republic of China” (&
#EANEHFEE /%) , “Energy Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (H#EARKEMEEERZE) , “Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China” (2
ARFEMBEIGERENLE) , and other relevant laws and
regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance of the
above laws and regulations.

Energy Consumption

The major energy consumption of the Group during its daily
operation is electricity consumption in our operation. The
Group has formulated rules and regulations to achieve the
goal of saving and using electricity effectively. The relevant
specific measures are as follows:

° Use energy-saving equipment, appliances and lamps in
office;

° Running idle equipment, unreasonable electric wiring
distribution, etc. are forbidden;

° Employees are required to pull down the main gate
switch, the water curtain wall switch and the electric
switch of the front glass door before off duty, and pull
them up the next morning;

° Employees are required to turn on electrical equipment,
including lighting equipment, air conditioners, fans, etc.
during business hours depending on actual needs, and
encouraged to turn off the power when not in use or
before off duty;
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° Strictly regulate the use of air conditioners, the
temperature shall not be lower than the default, and
turn off the air conditioner in all VIP rooms and
treatment rooms when they are not in use; and

° Enhance the maintenance and overhaul of equipment,
maintain the best condition of all electronic equipment
for effective use of electricity.

In addition, the Group installed LED energy-saving lamps in
all lighting areas, and instils the consciousness of energy
conservation and environmental protection into the work and
life of every employee through posting power-saving slogans,
etc. In addition, the Group has gradually replaced obsolete
equipment with energy-saving certified alternatives to reduce
energy consumption and consequent GHG emissions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the electricity
consumption of the Group and its intensity were as follows:

Type of energy

BERE R

Electricity

o=
B8,

Water Consumption and Use of Packaging Materials

The water consumption of the Group contains mainly of office
water consumption and medical water consumption. We
encourage all employees and customers to develop the habit
of conserving water consciously. The Group has been
strengthening its water-saving promotion, posting water-
saving slogans, and guiding employees to use water
reasonably.
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A3.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the water
consumption (i.e. wastewater discharge) of the Group and its
intensity were as follows:

Water consumption (calculated in tonnes)

k& (LA EH &)

1,332 tonnes
1,3321MA

In addition, due to our business nature, the Group does not
produce any final products, nor does it have any industrial
facilities. Therefore, it does not consume significant amount
of packaging materials during its daily operation.

The Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group pursues the best practice with the environment
and focuses on the business impact of the Group on the
environment and natural resources. In addition to complying
with environmental related regulations and international
standards to appropriately protect the natural environment,
the Group has integrated the concept of environmental
protection into its internal management and daily operational
activities and is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability.

Noise Management

Noise may also be generated during the operation of the
Group. Therefore, the Group has taken measures such as
sound insulation, noise reduction and shockproof for sound-
generating equipment. The office area and medical treatment
area of the Group satisfy the relevant requirements of the
“Emission Standard for Community Noise” & 4 & 1B 15 1
BHERUZ®E) (GB12348-2008).
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B1. Employment B1. fE{&

General Disclosure

Employees are the largest and most valuable asset and the
core competitive advantage of the Group; therefore, the
success of the Group is highly dependent on its capability to
attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group adheres to
a people-oriented approach, respects and safeguards the
legitimate interests of every employee, standardizes labour
employment management, protects employees’ occupational
health and safety. The Group also enhances democratic
management, protects the vital interests of employees, and
fully respects and values their enthusiasm, initiative and
creativity in order to build a harmonious staff relationship.

The Group actively complied with laws and regulations, such
as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” (A

RAFMELE)%) (“Labour Law”) and the “Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” /% A R HEFNE 4
BERLE) (“Labour Contract Law”). The Company has
accordingly formulated a series of relevant personnel
management policy to provide employees with a healthy,
positive and motivative working atmosphere, and guides
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into the
long-term development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
find any material non-compliance of laws and regulations in
respect of human resources.

Compensation and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, equitable, reasonable, and
competitive remuneration system for salary payments to
employees based on the principle of fairness, competition,
incentives, reasonableness, and legality. The remuneration of
the employees of the Group comprises basic salary,
performance bonus, overtime payment, position subsidy,
related subsidies and other various bonuses. In addition, the
Group conducts annual assessments in accordance to
changes in macroeconomic factors (e.g. national policies and
price levels), industry and regional remuneration levels,
changes in the Group’s development strategy, and the overall
effectiveness of the Group, and makes corresponding
adjustments to staff remuneration.
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The Group has signed and executed labour contracts with
employees in accordance with the Labour Contract Law. The
signing rate of the labour contracts is 100%. In accordance
with the law, the Group legally pays “five social insurance and
one housing fund” for its employees, namely endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, and
housing provident fund, to ensure that employees covered by
social insurance.

The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests of
labour in accordance with the requirements of the national
and local laws and regulations (e.g. the Labour Law), respects
the rights of employees to rest and leave, and regulates their
working hours and their rights for various types of rest times
and holidays. In accordance with the Labour Law, we
implement five-day work, weekend shift duty, eight working
hours per day, and follow the “Regulation on Paid Annual
Leave for Employees” (BT 3 RERIEMHIY and other
relevant regulations to implement the paid leave system for
employees. Meanwhile, overtime wage is paid for labour
exceeding statutory working hours in accordance with
national laws and regulations.

The Group has been committed to providing thoughtful and
comprehensive employee benefits and actively organizing
various activities. On the one hand, it creates a warm family
atmosphere with meticulous care to employees. On the other
hand, it helps employees to enjoy work-life balance through
such benefits. The relevant benefits and activities are as
follows:

° Provide family vacation benefits such as marriage leave
and maternity leave so that employees can spend time
with their families;

° Deliver festive foods such as moon cakes and
dumplings to employees during certain traditional
festivals (such as Lunar New Year and Mid-Autumn
Festival) in recognition of their contributions and
dedicated work to the Group; and
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° Organize various group activities for employees to
create a dynamic company atmosphere, promote
communication and interaction among colleagues, and
enhance team spirit. During the reporting period, the
activities organized by the Group included:

o Visiting of Huolu Mountain Forest Park,
Longdong, Guangzhou in April 2017;

° Visiting of Lingnan Impression Park, Guangzhou
in August 2017; and

° To conduct 2017 annual company gathering.

Recruitment, Promotion, Incentive and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved its
recruitment and selection system. In the recruitment process,
we will standardize the hiring procedures and recruitment
principles, adhere to the hiring principles of morality,
knowledge, ability, experience and fitness applicable to job
positions as well as the principles of justice, fairness, equality,
and openness, so as to continuously attract talents.

The Group manages front-line employees and office staff
separately, specifies the basis and process for staff
promotion, transfer and demotion management, regulates the
departure and dismissal process, and protects the interests
of both employees and the company.

The Group has already implemented a reward system and
also rewarded employees who have made outstanding
contributions to the Group. The system is designed based on
staffs’ comments and rewards staff fairly, equitably and
consistently. In addition, the Group regularly selects and
rewards outstanding employees.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to provide employees with opportunities for promotion
and development based on their work performance and
internal assessment results so as to explore their potential at
work. In order to optimize the allocation of human resources
within the Group, to provide more opportunities and platforms
for employees’ career development and to meet the Group’s
needs of sustainable development, the Group establishes a
reserve talent pool and arranges tailor-made trainings and
leadership positions for key training targets. The Group gives
priority to promote employees who contribute more than the
others.
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B2.

Equal Opportunity

The Group strictly complies with national and local
government regulations by adopting a fair, just and open
recruitment process and developing relevant system files to
eliminate discrimination in the recruitment process, whose
employees faces no discrimination regardless of race, gender,
colour, age, family background, ethnicity, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fitness and nationality and thus allowing
them to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect including
recruitment, salary, training and promotion, with an endeavour
to attract professionals with diverse backgrounds to join the
Group.

Health and Safety
General Disclosure

The Group recognizes the importance of the health and
safety of its employees, commits itself to providing employees
with a healthy, safe and comfortable working environment
and strives to eliminate potential health and safety hazards at
workplaces. We enforce relevant laws and regulations such
as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” (&
#= ANRAMBELH)E) , “PRC Production Safety Law” {1
#=ARAME L 24EE) |, “Law of the PRC on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases” (HIE A R A8
#EM565%) and “Fire Protection Law of the PRC” (H#E
ARLLFBEGE)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
record any accidents that resulted in death or serious physical
injury and no claims or compensation were paid to our
employees due to such events. No material non-compliance
of laws and regulations relevant to health and safety of
employees were found.
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Internal Health and Safety Management System

The Group has formulated a series of professional protection
standards in accordance with laws and regulations such as
the “Prevention and Treatment of Infectious Diseases Law of
the PRC” (i AR HKABIE LK )A%) and maintained
a set of internal health and safety management systems,
including but not limited to the “Policy on the Infectious
Disease Prevention and Control” and “Policy on the
Remaining Drugs Recycling Management”, etc., so as to
ensure the health and safety of customers, the public and
employees in our operation. The Group has set up relevant
committees to supervise and inspect the Group’s work on
infectious disease control and management. Specifically, the
Group has established the following occupational safety
measures for employees:

° For the prevention of infectious pathogens, laboratories
and medical personnel should wear gloves, masks with
anti-permeation function, goggles, face masks, or even
isolation gowns or aprons with anti-permeation function;

° When infectious patients, or those in close contact with
them is found among employees or clients, employees
should take necessary measures of isolation, treatment
and spread control, and report to the local disease
control centre in a timely manner;

° To control the potential spread of infectious diseases in
clinics or laboratories, regular sterilization should be
conducted in both areas. Regular cleaning of air-
conditioning systems and sanitization of carpets should
be arranged while the cleanliness of the passageway
and work environment should be maintained;

° A dangerous goods classification system in medical
laboratories has been set up to classify and specify the
hazards of chemicals, reagents, and equipment, and a
comprehensive and systematic system has been
established to manage dangerous goods and reduce
their risk; and

° An operating license has been issued by China Food
and Drug Administration to ensure the safety of relevant
medical devices.
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Occupational Safety Training

Medical safety and quality trainings

As medical work is exposed to greater occupational risks, the
Group places special emphasis on prevention of occupational
hazards and related trainings. The Group has formulated the
“Policy on the Medical Quality and Safety Training”, safety
operation procedures as the major content of occupational
safety education are formulated based on medical treatment
subjects and medical equipment. We implement “three-level”
safety education for employees, including entry education,
job education, and on-site education. We also provide
employees with trainings and examinations on knowledge
and skills about relevant policies and regulations for medical
hygiene management, rules and regulations for group clinics,
operating specifications for medical treatment and medical
equipment, medical waste treatment and occupational
protection, as well as medical safety work experience, so as
to assist employees to become familiarized with rules and
regulations of occupational health and safety and operational
procedures, and strengthen their ability to control
occupational hazards. In addition, we also made use of
trainings, billboards, and pamphlets to raise our employees’
awareness of self-care. We will also organize a series of
occupational health talks such as disease prevention lectures
to enhance our employees’ health awareness.

Fire Safety Training

The Group has also formulated fire safety systems in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC” (/1
ABREFBIEF %Y and the “Administrative Regulations of
Fire Control Supervision of Construction Works” (& T2
SHPFESEEIEIRFE ) . By implementing the principle of “mainly
prevention, combining prevention and elimination”, fire drills
are conducted to popularize knowledge of fire prevention,
staff’'s awareness of fire prevention are raised and fire
evacuation plans are improved to strengthen employees’
ability to escape from a fire scene. In addition, we also have
first aid kits and fire extinguishers in workplace in response to
emergencies.
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B3. Development and Training B3. #E KRiZ

General Disclosure

The Group focuses on corporate internal management
training and the establishment of development system.
Through multiple training modes of induction training,
management personnel training, technical personnel training
and pre-post training, diverse needs of employees at all levels
are fulfilled and their skills are enhanced such that they can
continue to provide high-quality services to assist the Group’s
sustainable development while in turn supporting them in
personal growth and development.

Training Management

The Group has developed training related procedures to
regulate the training management of employees. The
management regularly formulates training proposals and
establishes corporate training files. The management regularly
reviews the effectiveness of different training programs and
courses to help improve the efficiency of the Group’s training
system. According to the training proposals, the Group
evaluates and monitors the implementation of its training
courses to provide appropriate training courses for different
levels of employees.

Training Courses

The in-house corporate training of the Group includes various
forms of training courses (including seminars and lectures),
visits and inspections, business studies, distribution and
posting of promotional materials, field rehearsals and self-
study. Outsourcing training includes engaging tertiary
institutions, research and development agencies, government
agencies and industry management departments to provide
lectures for the Group.

Newly recruited employees are required to receive short-term
induction training. The contents mainly include the
introduction of the Group and our business, the development
and trend of medical anti-aging business, professional basic
knowledge, internal corporate organizational structure and
management system, and daily conduct standards. The
company’s business department will also arrange new
employees to visit the Group’s agencies in field so as to help
them understand corporate culture and systems at a faster
pace.
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B4.

The medical professionals of the Group can participate in
academic activities related to their majors, including
international academic conferences, academic forums in
China, academic seminars, continuous medical education
projects in China, and academic lectures by well-known local
and overseas experts, etc.

The Group also recognizes the importance of occupational
safety training and fire training to protect the personal safety
of employees. The relevant policies have been described in
detail in sections B2 “Occupational Safety Training” and “Fire
Safety”.

Labour Standards
General Disclosure
Prevent Child and Forced Labour

The Group has complied with the “Convention on the
Abolition of Forced Labor” in respect of employment of labour
( (BEILIRIALENNA)) ), the “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (s AR ELFMEILE)E) in respect of
the prevention of child labor, and the “Provisions on
Prohibition of Child Labor” ( ARHEMEZE EFEAETHRE) ,
which has been enacted and implemented since 1 December
2002.

The Group strictly prohibits the employment of any child labor
and forced labor. New employees are required to provide true
and accurate personal data when they are employed.
Recruiters should strictly review the entry data including
medical examination reports, academic credentials, ID cards,
household registration, degree certificates and other
information. The Group has established comprehensive
recruitment procedures to check the background of
candidates in order to prevent any child labor or forced labor
in operation.

The Group and its employees signed legal labor contracts in
accordance with laws, and therefore there is no compulsory
use of labor. For the use of false information or in violation of
the provisions of the Group, the trial period shall be
immediately terminated or the labor contract shall be
terminated.
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B5.

In addition, the Group’s employees’ overtime work complies
with the principle of voluntariness so as to avoid violation of
labor standards and effectively protect the rights and interests
of employees. The Group also prohibits punitive measures,
management methods and behaviors such as verbal abuse,
physical punishment, violence, and mental oppression on
employees for any reason.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no material non-
compliance of the laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child labor or forced labor have been found by
the Group.

Supply Chain Management
General Disclosure

In addition to purchasing medical equipment and drugs
according to the specifications of the required products, price
trends of medical devices and drugs, and product demand,
the Group also places great emphasis on the management of
potential environmental and social risks in the supply chain.
The Group has established a rigorous and regulated
procurement system and supplier selection procedures, and
puts forward requirements for suppliers on environmental and
social risk control.

In the process of supply chain management, the Group
strictly complies with the “Pharmaceutical Administration Law
of the PRC” (/ #E A R #7014 @ & %), “Regulations
for the Implementation of the Pharmaceutical Administration
Law of the PRC” {Hr 2 A R £ B 25 @ %5 32 75 & B (& 51D,
“Regulations for the Control of Narcotic Drugs and
Psychotropic Drugs” <fifi B % G A0 15 1% 2 fo 5 32 & 61), the
“Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of
Medical Devices” { & /& 25 # &= & & 12 {5 /1), and “Measures
for Authorizing Management of Medical Device Operation
Enterprises” (%8 /& 25 i 4 ‘& (b X X # B 1B #)1)%) and other
relevant laws and regulations to minimize the potential
environmental and social risks in the supply chain.
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Supply Chain Environment and Social Risk Management

The Group expects suppliers to meet our standards in many
aspects such as environment, quality, society, corporate
governance, and business ethics. We have formulated
relevant regulatory documents on environmental, social and
ethical standards requiring suppliers to bring a positive impact
on environmental and social matters, whose major scope
covers legal compliance, human rights protection, employee
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics and
environmental protection.

Drugs

The review introduction and procurement of the drugs shall
be discussed and concluded by the medical professionals of
the Group.

Medical Equipment and Medical Consumables

The review introduction of medical equipment and medical
consumables as well as the temporary purchase of licensed
pharmaceuticals shall all subject to discussion and decision
by medical professionals of the Group. The relevant medical
equipment suppliers shall possess relevant qualifications such
as the Operation Permit for Medical Device (2% 22 45 & 5
AJ7%), otherwise the Group will terminate its supply contract.

Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement process strictly follows the relevant
provisions of the “Tendering and Bidding Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (12 AR A MEHEREIRE) and other
relevant regulations, and is in an open, fair and impartial
environment. The Group will not discriminate against any
suppliers, and will not allow any corruption or bribery, and
employees and other individuals who have interest in relevant
suppliers will not be permitted to participate in related
procurement activities. The Group focuses on the integrity of
its suppliers and partners. We will only select suppliers and
partners who have had good business records in the past
and have not committed any serious law violations or
violations of business ethics.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmEE

General Disclosure

The Group places great emphasis on the quality of medical
services and corporate reputation. The Group employs
professional medical teams with medical licenses to manage
the Group’s products and medical service quality by the
standard of hospital management. We also actively ensure
the quality of our services through internal controls and are
committed to providing medical services that meet
international industry standards. We have also been
maintaining communication with our customers to ensure
that we understand and cater to their needs and
expectations. We also expect to grasp the degree of
satisfaction of our customers so as to continuously improve
our service quality. We strictly complies with relevant laws
and regulations. According to the “Administrative Regulations
on Medical Institutions” (EE#EEIEEN) and its
provisions of implementation rules, all our medical institutions
can only operate subject to obtaining a medical institution
practicing license (BEMEHZEFTAIFE). At the same time,
we also actively comply with consumer protection laws and
regulations such as the “Consumer Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China” {FH2E A R HFIEE & ERERIR
#5%) , the “Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (FR#ZEARLMBIESE) , and the “Administrative
Measures on Medical Advertisements” (B85 &4 & IRt
ED

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
find any material non-compliance of the laws and regulations
related to the quality of products and services.

Quality of Medical Service

The Group provides professional, high-quality and highly
efficient services to different customers in various ways,
actively creates value for customers, concerns, explores and
responds to customer needs, and strives to provide
customers with services beyond their expectations.
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In order to maintain service quality, the Group has formulated
the “Policy on the Medical Quality and Safety Training” for
medical centres. Through employees’ training, we guarantee
the quality and safety of medical services we provide to our
customers, details of which is in Part B2 “Occupational Safety
Training”. The Group also ensure the quality of medical
services by improving staffs’ professional standards through
continuous training of employees, especially medical staffs,
details of which is described in Section B3 “Training
Courses”.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group joined
the Guangzhou Bioindustry Alliance (BN T4 ¥ 255 83)
which is a local and non-profit social organization voluntarily
formed by upstream and downstream enterprises in the city’s
biological industry chain, scientific research institutes,
universities, industry organizations, medical institutions, and
investment and financing institutions, with an objective of
integration of “government, enterprises, institutions,
researchers and users (EXEZFfHA)”, focusing on the
significant needs of industry development, through
government guidance and socialization to improve the
biological ecological chain and promote the development of
bio-pharmaceutical industry. The Group has joined the
Alliance, which aims to leverage the group of top and highly
influential expert consultants and university research
resources backed by the Alliance platform so as to further
consolidate our technological advantages and provide
customers with more professional and qualified medical
service.

Customer Service
Feedback collection and research

The Group has a dedicated customer service function to
collect and analyze customer feedback. Through active
extension of services and communication, Customer Service
Division becomes an important constituent to ensure patients’
positive experience. We conduct customer satisfaction
surveys through questionnaires, results of which are used to
establish benchmarks that monitor changes in customer
experience and satisfaction in areas of specific services
delivery.

The Group also cooperates with third parties from time to
time to conduct comprehensive surveys, analysis and studies,
SO as to organize, analyze and research relevant information
on customer experience and satisfaction obtained from the
above methods, thus demonstrating the improvement of our
medical service standards.
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B7.

Complaint management

Customers can file complaints by mail, telephone, or in
person. The Group is committed to solving all patient
complaints in the shortest time or on the spot (if possible). For
material complaints that involve clinical safety or may affect
health, the Group will immediately take actions actively to
prevent or minimize the adverse impact on customers. We
require that every complaint should be properly submitted to
and handled by the responsible personnel and manager and
prohibit staff from reaching a private settlement with the
complainant.

Anti-corruption
General Disclosure
Prevent Corruption and Fraud

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is the key
to our continued success. Therefore, we attach great
importance to anti-corruption work and system building,
commit ourselves to building a clean and transparent
corporate culture, and pay special attention to the
professional ethics of hospital staff. We strictly complies with
the provisions of laws and regulations such as the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China” {1 ZE A B HE A E A
B]7%4), “The Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
(R EARKEFIBRBIZHAZIL), and “Interim Provisions on
Prohibiting Commercial Bribery” (B i 22 1+ B £ BB B 1T B A
=175 ). In addition, we strictly complies with the relevant
medical laws and regulations formulated by Chinese
government departments, including the Code of Conduct for
the Practitioners of Medical Institutions (2 BN E A S
175 #), the Notice on Printing and Circulating of “Nine
Prohibitions” for Enhancing the Construction of Medical
Health Industry Style (B8 7 BN % il & B E AT RER [ L

T @ 4%, and the Provisions on the Establishment of
Adverse Records of Commercial Briberies in the Medical
Purchase and Sales Industry B8 52 7 22 B4 B8 §5 L8 19 o %
BE AR N B 20 4% HY 38 5 etc. We implement a zero-tolerance
policy on any accepted bribery of medical personnel. Any
employee found to violate our anti-corruption and bribery
policies will be dismissed.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
find any material non-compliance of laws and regulations
concerning the prevention of bribery, blackmail, fraud and
money laundering.

B7.
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B8. Community Investment

General Disclosure
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group believes that the company is a social cell that
grows with the nurturing of social maternity while shoulders
the responsibility of returning to society. As a responsible
medical service operator, the Group has always been
committed to supporting various public welfare and
community activities and hopes to give back to the
community through the medical profession. The Group
actively fulfills its social responsibilities as a corporate citizen
and cultivates its employees’ sense of social responsibility.
Therefore, the Group encourages employees to participate in
charity activities during their work and private time to make
greater contributions to society. It has also been arranging for
the Group’s staff to participate in events such as charity
events related to environmental issues, donations for students
and social services. We believe that through personally
participating in activities that contribute to the community,
employees’ civic awareness can be raised to establish the
correct values.

BS. HERE

—RIXE
EMEEF

AEERE CERLENHAR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Page
BEH —REBERBEEEXEER 4 utt 40 3l B
| | I
Aspect Al: Emissions
EBEA: $EBY
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) Emissions — Environmental P.68,
compliance with relevant laws and Protection Policy and Compliance 69
regulations that have a significant Issues
impact on the issuer relating to
Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— R EE FHABERAERBEN MK HFRY-BRERENBRERER
RtmeEs BEREZE ==}
BEYVHELAZH : @BE: &
OEBEFTHETATEATEN
MHEERE BRI E R -
KPI A1.1 (“comply or explain”) The types of emissions and Emissions — Exhaust Gas and GHG  P.69,
respective emissions data. Emissions, Discharge and 70
Treatment of Waste and
Wastewater
BREMERAA(TESTRERE]) SR E R85 REUE - M -EERFORERBHR
& 1) B B /K HE R K B 38
KPI A1.2 (“comply or explain”) GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) Emissions — Exhaust Gas and GHG P.70
and intensity. Emissions
BRERESAM2((TETHERE]) AERBAYHNE (U E) PERUY) - BE R RO/ = R B HE AR
MREE -
KPI A1.3 (“comply or explain”) Total hazardous waste produced (in  Emissions — Discharge and pP.72
tonnes) and intensity. Treatment of Waste and
Wastewater
BRETESAMI(TNETHERE]) MELABEEEYEE HEPL ) — BE W Ko BB K HE PR K B TR
(AW HE) REE -
KPI'A1.4 (“comply or explain”) Total non-hazardous waste Emissions — Discharge and p.72
produced (in tonnes) and intensity. Treatment of Waste and
Wastewater
MBRENESEAMA(TIETHRE]) FEEAERSEENEE HER ) — BE W) I g /K HE B B B 3R
(AWM E) REE -
KPI A1.5 (“comply or explain”) Description of measures to mitigate ~ Emissions — Exhaust Gas and GHG P.70
emissions and results achieved. Emissions
BREREFRAS([NETRERE]) # UK R E 8 #EiE & PERR Y - BE R OB = R 88 PE A
FRIGACR »
KPI A1.6 (“comply or explain”) Description of how hazardous and Emissions — Discharge and P.70-
non-hazardous wastes are Treatment of Waste and 73
handled, reduction initiatives and Wastewater

results achieved.

FREBIEEAI6([TAETHRE] HIEEEERETEEYN PR - R R BE K BE UK R 18
FiE - REEEENE KR
Fiig R o

FHERREELEEAaRAT —S—+t44% O]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
BREL - A& &R HE ()

Subject Areas, Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPlIs Description Section/Declaration Page

BE —REERBEAYER i - HE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2: ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of Use of Resources — Energy P.74
resources, including energy, water Consumption, Water Consumption
and other raw materials.

— R BRFERABER(EFEER KEE BRER-sg£RBEME - KEBEE
fib TR AT ) O BRER o

KPI A2.1 (“comply or explain”) Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy P.75
consumption by type in total and Consumption
intensity.

BRE R EA (FETHER) REDEDMERER RME  EREM-LRLR
BRRREERETE -

KPI' A2.2 (“comply or explain”) Water consumption in total and Use of Resources — Water P.76
intensity. Consumption

BRBEBEFEA2([TEFRBE]) RREKERTE - BIRER - KRB

KPI A2.3 (“comply or explain”) Description of energy use efficiency ~ Use of Resources — Energy pP.74-
initiatives and results achieved. Consumption 75

BREBIEFEAI([NEFREE]) Ml RERA R =B R BIRE R - RERE
FTiSAR -

KPI A2.4 (“comply or explain”) Description of whether there is any Use of Resources — Water P.75
issue in sourcing water that is fit Consumption

for purpose, water efficiency

initiatives and results achieved.
BRERERAA(TESTRER]) HAKBERNKR EAIEEMAE BRER-KRERE

R A REBA A KR E R

FTGAR -

KPI A2.5 (“comply or explain”) Total packaging material used for . Not applicable — explained pP.76
finished products (in tonnes) and
with reference to per unit
produced
BRAEDEZRAS(TETHRERE]) RAXmMBEEMANRE (A TER-BRE
WMt E) REEEEMEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and
Natural Resources
EBHEA3: RERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s The Environment and Natural P.76
significant impact on the Resources
environment and natural
resources.

—RIEE BERBITAHRRERRAABERE REERAER
REAZENBEK -

KPI A3.1 (“comply or explain”) Description of the significant impacts The Environment and Natural pP.76
of activities on the environment Resources — Noise Management

and natural resources and the

actions taken to manage them.
FAREIIERASA([TETHMRE]) HAZEBEHHRERANER RERAAER-BREER

NEATEREERKNERR M

TENTH -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
BT~ 3 & K IR ol (81)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

BE —REERBEAYER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : EE

General Disclosure

—RIEE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: REEZ2

General Disclosure

— R

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEB3: #ERKIEI
General Disclosure

—RIE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEmEB4 : % T %A
General Disclosure

—RIEE

Description

i

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)
compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.

AT RRE BEREA -
THERE BRE TEHKe %
ToAE - RIBAE A R E At 538 &
B - @B Rb)EFH
BITABERTZENEBER
KA BB KL o

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)
compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.

ERARMZE2TERBERRE
BEREBELEETN @K
T ROBEBTHETAEERKN
TENBEBEERRROINER -

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

ERRARERITIEBRENA
BN BEE R - R A
& o

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to

Section/Declaration

-

Employment — Compensation and
Benefits, Recruitment, Promotion,
Incentive and Dismissal, Equal
Opportunity

il
H
e

B - BRI B
BREE TERE

Health and Safety — Internal Health
and Safety Management System,
Occupational Safety Training

REELE-NIRRAREE
EHE - BEZ2EI

Development and Training —
Training Management, Training
Course

R B -HEE  HR
2

Labour Standards — Prevent Child
and Forced Labour

preventing child and forced labour.
BRGIEE TR EHIZ5 TH - (9)

BR Ro)EFHETABEKXR

FENMEREERMROIINER -

STER-HIEET REHIST

BEERREEEXEEERAHE

Page

P.=
80

P.80-
82

P.83-
84

P.84-
85
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

BE —REERBEAYER

Description

i

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

BEB5: tEHEERE
General Disclosure

— R EE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BEB6: ERET
General Disclosure

— AR ER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BHEB7 : R&ES

General Disclosure

—RE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8 : tERE
General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on managing environmental

and social risks of the supply
chain.

EEHEENREN
e R BB -

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)
compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

B B8 P 4R 1 2E om0 AR 75 B R R
ZE2 EE BRELLREE
AR TTER QR K&
OETHERTABEATEN
HEER RO ER

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b)
compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

R IEFEE - $R - BEFROK
EER: @BEK: Rb)ETYH
BITABERTENHEBERE
KRB E R o

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration
the communities’ interests.

B B DA At [ 22 B 2R B % 8 58 P 1
HEFEMBRREER TS
Z R R A S A BUR -

Section/Declaration

-

Supply Chain Management —
Supply Chain Environment and
Social Risk Management, Fair and
Open Procurement

HEEEE-HERRERLSE
FElERE  ARRATHRE

Product Responsibility — Quality of
Medical Service, Customer
Service

EmET-BERTERE EF
AR5

Anti-corruption — Prevent
Corruption and Fraud

Community Investment — Corporate
Social Responsibility

S

My

=%

>

-bEA

X

)3
il
[RE)

L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

¥a% i A% S8 Vol %+

Bl #5 & <t & = 5% 5 A B A 3

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Common
Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 102 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT
3 57 A B e

AUDITORS” REPORT
(4)

(Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (Continued)

3 57 A B e (48)

Key Audit Matters
HAREXEE

Acquisition of subsidiaries and the impairment
assessment of intangible assets and goodwill

WENBARARUERLEERBENRENGE

Refer to notes 3, 17, 18 and 39 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

28 BEEBSAEVBEHRRMES 17 18%39

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
completed the acquisition of subsidiaries at a consideration
of HK$50,000,000 by cash and 400,000,000 shares of the
Company. The acquisition requires the identification of assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed and the consideration
measured at their acquisition-date fair values, which require
significant management judgement.
HE-ZE—+tF T A=Z1+T—HBLEFE x&EETK
U B B B8 A &) (X & A& 3R £ 50,000,000 7T K& 400,000,000
B BERRRG o WEE Bk iR AT EE A & B & E K FT
AEABERHEBERAN A TENYEE BETERE
=R A -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had intangible assets
and goodwill of approximately HK$221,095,000 and
HK$229,010,000 respectively.
RZE—+tF+_A=+—H ESENEFEEK
& 5 Bl 49 £221,095,000% T & 229,010,000 JT °

For the purpose of assessing impairment, these assets were
allocated to cash generating units (“‘CGUs”) of health industry
segment, and the recoverable amount of each CGU was
determined by management and valuer based on value-in-
use calculations using cash flow projections. In carrying out
the impairment assessments, significant management
judgement was involved in respect of the discount rates and
the underlying cash flows. Management has concluded that
there is no impairment in respect of the intangible assets and
goodwill.

RETRENS ZFEE/IEERELEL(RSE
EAEBMNDNRRER SBHEASUNAIKOE
BOHEERERGEMZRRESRBANEREEFER
HEETF HITRENERE PREBEFTRELEER S
MEMNBEAERHE BEEENARSEVEEREE
RAERE °

How our audit address the key audit matters

EENERNMNEERRELREER

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the Group’s key businesses included:
TEHERE SESEENTIEXEBRETRZIERFE
7

° Considering and challenging management’s
assessment of the appropriate accounting treatment,
the identification and valuation of tangible and
intangible assets and the allocation of purchase price
to the assets and liabilities acquired;
EZRLEREEBERGFRER EGEEMNG
- HAVRELEEETEMN R EENK &K E
BEBOEEMKBEERAE:

o Assessing management’s identification of CGUs based
on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business;
AZERERE EEENGTRELESY &
SEEGHNERBANRCEEEL

o Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used and the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and the relevant
industry; and
AEERANEESENERAEUARESEHEBAN
HEATEMNENEZRE

° Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

MEREERERHEEHANER -

We found that the acquisition-date fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, the
consideration and the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.
EERNERKERPMBENRIZRANEEZARE
FIEENEE RENEERIHEINCEIBEIT -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (Continued)

B 57 A% B e ()

Key Audit Matters
HREREE

Impairment assessment on loan to a shareholder and
short-term loans receivable

f& T B SRR IR I FE WAE H & R R IR A ORL(E T A

Refer to notes 3, 25 and 26 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

28 BEEBERAVEHRERMES  25%26°

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of loan to a
shareholder and short-term loans receivable were
approximately HK$49,143,000 and HK$40,200,000
respectively.

RZE—+tF+A=+—HB BFTRERBERE
s B E R BR B /9 BR ® B 2 Bl 49 549,143,000 7T &
40,200,000 & JT °

For the purpose of determining the allowance for loan to a
shareholder and short-term loans receivable, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent
settlements and aging analysis of the loan to a shareholder
and short-term loans receivable.

RAEGE TRERBERERE AERRIBRER B8
BERBEETREXREREREHEREENELD
FEMAT BREH HRERXLFERSITHNEER

How our audit address the key audit matters

EENERNMEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to valuations of loan to a
shareholder and short-term loans receivable included:
EEHETRERBEREREAERRETHEE

° Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit limits and
credit periods given to shareholder and customers with
the management;

H EREEREENREARTEPEERAR
EEBRNERT

° Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment
of the loan to a shareholder and short-term loans
receivable; and
AEEREHEG TRREEREREREHE KK
R RERE &

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of information included in the impairment
assessment of loan to a shareholder and short-term
loans receivable.
mERERS TREREREREAEXEENR
B EEENE S ERE RERT -

We considered management’s conclusion to be consistent
with the available information.
EERREEENEREAESNEE -
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INDEPENDENT
3 57 A B e

\UDITORS” REPORT
(%)

(Continued)

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

E=ZREHEMEE EMEEERRFRMEN
EE EFERREAMBEHRRERMNZEE
HETHEMERD -

EUBRENERL TREHEME
%%W HEMERERTMPANEE

EREAMBRERE BENACTRMNEEM
ERCNUBEP EREMEERETREKS
MBERRIBESNETBETAEENBRLE
EAEE RELUFEEABERRAL -

MEEREZDETHIE
ﬂﬁéﬁfﬁﬁm BUR=E3
FEYEEMARBRE

EERREME
BEBEHEEE-

EXZFEERBEEASTOASEMNETEM
BmEENREE R RIGRE AW ERTEHEHIL
EERAAMEINGEMBHRER  URHER
RUBREREVHRR I FHEANKIFLE
MMBBMAHERERBANAMEZEE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT (Continued)
B 57 A% B e ()

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

100

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

EENERRAERERBGAMBERES
TrEARRFFRERMEBM IR ENER
R HHBBEEEERNRBMEE &
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FRBVEFHIRE - Btk 2 NI E Bl H
A - BEFTERARE AR REAE M
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INDEPENDENT
3 57 A B e

\UDITORS” REPORT
(%)

(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P0O6417

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A5 o 11 A B JT b 2 i o 2

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+t#F ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Kt &t FET FAT
S S
Revenue PN 7 474,933 554,962
Cost of sales $HE KA (391,552) (487,815)
Gross profit ESy 83,381 67,147
Other income L ON 9 63 338
Share-based payment expenses A% e B S - (3,836)
Administrative expenses THEH (40,683) (39,939)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (4,305) (4,934)
Share of result of associates BNBERNR 2 EE 8,822 14,105
Profit from operations 218 i A 47,278 32,881
Fair value change on derivative financial liabilities 474 € ft & & A FH & (310) 1,758
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE KB A a Uk Es 12,617 2,320
Gain on disposal of an associate o — A A A R e - 28,999
Finance cost B 75 AR AN 10 (41,346) (9,699)
Profit before income tax B ¢ A1 A 11 18,239 56,259
Income tax expense FriSfi /M X 13 (8,798) (9,098)
Profit for the year FE R 9,441 47,161
Other comprehensive income/(expense), HEa2muzE (Bx) -
net of income tax EHIRATEBH
Items that may be reclassified HEEAEEN 7 EE
subsequent to profit or loss BmrEE
Exchange differences on translating foreign FRNBEBINERELS
operations ZIE N Z%5E 45,133 (40,633)
Reclassification on disposal of interests in TENBARERED
subsidiaries (298) 455
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHMmE2mEWZRE
for the year, net of income tax (AxX) BEM&AAEHR 44,835 (40,178)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EWRZAE 54,276 6,983
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, (Continued)
o 4H a B At 2 W 4R R (A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt it FTHERT FAT
Profit for the year attributable to: EBhEERER :
Owners of the Company KRABHEAE A 1,422 42,096
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RS 8,019 5,065
9,441 47,161
Total comprehensive income for the EBHEEZERZERE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE F SN 31,648 10,753
Non-controlling interests JE A R 25 22,628 (3,770)
54,276 6,983
Earnings per share for the year attributable @ZXRATHEEAZEFEER
to owners of the Company EF 15
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (T RBA) 0.05 1.62
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (Z A 0.05 1.62
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

&t

0B IR D 9 R

As at 31 December 2017 R-_Z—tF+_A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Kt &t FET FAT
' ' ' ! /| |
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEE KRG 16 240,148 206,538
Intangible assets M A E 17 221,095 122,150
Goodwill EES 18 229,010 53,382
Interests in associates AL RN D v ey 19 211,272 127,128
Available-for-sale financial assets FELMEE 21 76,395 71,217
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BNFEREM
JE WK TE 22 70,247 21,066
1,048,167 601,481
Current assets RENEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Ze BENHIEBEREM
J& W k38 22 149,826 98,959
Trade receivables FEW B 5 IR 23 12,771 8,695
Inventories FE 24 5,092 18,046
Loan to a shareholder e FREER 25 49,143 77,547
Short-term loans receivable FEUEE R E B TR 26 40,200 58,200
Bank and cash balances RITRRE & 27 67,038 109,721
324,070 371,168
Current liabilities REBAERE
Trade payables ﬁ‘§ B S IE 28 824 1,395
Accruals, deposits received and other payables JEEt R IE « E Wiz & &
H{h j& < ;E 29 68,812 29,217
Obligation under a finance lease mEHES Fc 30 6 6
Loan from associates B N Al & 19 - 12,300
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 35 12,204 =
Convertible notes G & 32 75,480 15,039
Derivative financial liabilities METREE 32 7,316 7,006
Guaranteed notes and bonds payable EREEREMES 34 120,893 5,680
Tax payable FE T 1R 820 2,950
286,355 73,593
Net current assets REBEERE 37,715 297,575
Total assets less current liabilities EERERTBA®RG 1,085,882 899,056
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

&5 A W IR DU e 2 (4)
As at 31 December 2017 W_Z—+HF+-A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K aF FET FE&T
! | | |

Capital and reserves EXRK#HE
Share capital A& Zx 31 29,962 25,962
Reserves e 735,371 437,954

Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRARIHER AEMLBRA

= 765,333 463,916
Non-controlling interests FE = A% HE 2 212,878 203,634
Total equity RS 978,211 667,550

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible notes Al AR Z i 32 - 70,496
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 33 14,949 32
Obligation under a finance lease BMERESF 30 25 -
Guaranteed notes and bonds payable EREENMEMNES 34 92,697 160,978
107,671 231,506
1,085,882 899,056

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 29 March 2018 and

are signed on its behalf by:

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Cheung Wai Kuen
RERE
Director

EF

REMBRRCEARAEZTENR _T—N\F
ZSAZtTABHERKEEM LHTIRE

BE
Cheng Hau Yan
[
Director
EF
irb

BEERREEEXEEERAHE

—E-LEER

RAEMBRRMEDGEAMBHRRN LD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Attributable
Share to non-
Share Share Translation  Statutory options Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Sub-total interests equity
REER FER  RAEH
BRE RHEE ERRE LCHE e HtEE RBEAN Mt RRER am
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THL THEL TAT THEL THL THT TAT THET TEL
At 1 January 2016 RZF—~¥—A—R 25,962 425,198 (14,129) 6,405 - 734 64,920 509,090 37,265 546,355
Profit for the year T - - - - - - 0% 4200 5065 47,161
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 E s
Exchange differences on translating 4 R 4 # i 4b
foreign operations arising during $HBCERESE
- - - (3159 - - - - (B1EM)  (8824) (40419
Share of other comprehensive LRG|
expense of associates it A B8R = = (204) - - - - (204) (11) (215)
Reclassification on disposal of HENBAR
interests in subsidiaries BRES - - 455 - - - - 455 - 455
Total comprehensive (expense)/ income & 2 & (B%),/ iz 25

for the year - - (31,343) - - - 42,096 10,753 (3,770) 6,983
Issue of share options BITBRE - - - - 3,836 - - 3,836 - 3,836
Acquisition of additional interests in WEEH B A R B IMER

subsidiaries (note 41(a)) (B 5 41(a) - - - - - (59,782) - (59,782) (17,998) (77,780)
Change in non-controlling interests BB F B A 189 FE £ 1

arising from acquisition of =28 (I :39(0)

subsidiaries (note 39(b)) - - - - - - - - 139,023 139,023
Change in non-controlling interests 1% fit B 2 B &) JE 2 &

arising from disposal of subsidliaries 1825 %' &) (1 5 40(c))

(note 40(c) - - - (163) - - 163 - (56) (56)
Disposal of partial interests HENBARAMBASH

in subsidiaries without lost of control % 4 25 (i 5 41(c))

(note 41(c) - = = = = 19 = 19 49170 49,189
Transfer to statutory reserve HBRSETRE = = = 2,194 = - (2,194) - - -
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RF

1 January 2017 +-A=+-HBkK

R=ZF—+§—A—H 25,962 425,198 (45,472) 8,436 3,836 (59,029) 104,985 463,916 203,634 667,550
Profit for the year FEEF - - - _ - - 1422 1422 8,019 9,441
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 B
Exchange differences on translating 4 R 4 &G 4
I?reeg;? peratons arsng ding g =t - - 28,843 - - - - 28,843 14,609 43,452
Share of other comprehensive BAHE AR
income of associates HibiR A W - - 1,681 - - - - i - e
Reclassification on disposal of HERBAR
interests in subsidiaries ERED - - (298) - - - - (298) - (298)
Total comprehensive income forthe  £E 2 E Y 2848

year - - 30,226 - - - 1,422 31,648 22,628 54,276
Acquisttion of subsidliaries (note 39(a)) & it & 2 & (i £:39(a)) 4,000 256,000 - - - - - 260,000 20247 280,247
Change in non-controlling interests MBS B B A 7 40 JE i 4 g 25

arising from acquisition of 28 (541 (0)

subsidiaries (note 41(b)) - - - - - 9,769 - 9,769 (9,769) -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(0)) i i & 2 &1 (M 3£ 40(b)) - - - (334) - - 334 - (23862 (23,862
Lapse of share options TBRRE X I = = = = (3,836) - 3,836 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve EREETRE = = = 3,028 = = (3,028) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F

+-A=f+-H 29,962 681,198 (15,246) 11,130 - (49,260) 107,549 765,333 212,878 978,211
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

The application of share premium is governed by Section 40 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The share premium
account may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets of the
Group’s foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”)) are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign
operations.

The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the statutory reserve fund in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Appropriations to such
reserve fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

The share options reserve comprises the fair value of the share options
granted which are yet to be exercised. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profit when the related options
being lapsed.

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid
to obtain additional non-controlling interests in subsidiaries and its
carrying amount on the date of acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS
HaBlaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE
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2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
K aiE FET FAT
' ' ' | |
Cash flows from operating activities REREEK2RERE
Profit before tax % &5 B & T 18,239 56,259
Adjustments for: WTHEBEBHE:
Interest income B WA (23,921) (18,888)
Interest expense B 5 & 10 41,346 9,699
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 42 - # 28 MR EITE 16 8,474 8,509
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME R W R 40 (12,617) (2,320)
Gain on disposal of associate k=g /NS U g 19 - (28,999)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale HFEeRMmEEREBERK
financial assets 21 - 755
Share of result of associates BEBMERR XA (8,822) (14,105)
Share-based payment expenses i 7 B ST - 3,836
Fair value change on derivative financial EEMITERAFEES
instruments 310 (1,758)
Operating cash flows before movementsin ZEE &8 F a2
working capital REFERE 23,009 12,988
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEURE 5 28 (3B 00), 5 (4,720) 3,717
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERL,/(Em) 13,788 (4,814)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayment and £ 4 - 81 218 K& H 1
other receivables JE Us SR T8 (38 00), Rk A (90,903) 25,828
Decrease in trade payables FEN B 5 2B A (468) (2,090)
Decrease in amount due to associates FE AT B & 2 R IR R A - (654)
Decrease/(increase) in loan from associates B & R B ZOR (38 hn) (12,300) 12,300
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits FEstE  EtWiEES REM
received and other payables JE S FRIE 3 0Ok ) 32,743 (161,648)
Cash used in operating activities BARREER 2B S (38,851) (114,373
Bank interest received BUERITH B 24 26
Income tax paid BB (10,845) (10,097)
Net cash used in operating activities ARREEREEFE (49,672) (124,444)
Cash flows from investing activities REREXB2RHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WBEREME (20,946) (79,375)
Loan interest received BRERFE 23,897 18,862
Dividend received from an associate B & N A A FE YRR B 2,650 =
Net cash outflow on acquisition of associate W Z A RIMIR &
it FRR (90,025) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries Y BE KB A Al 89 IE &
kel 39(a) (48,388) (139,621)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

& Bl R & (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

2017 2016

ZEBE-tF ZT—RF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k2 FHET T& T

Net cash outflow on acquisition of additional

WREM B AR MEIMER R

interest in subsidiaries IR R R 41(a) - (77,780)
Net cash inflow on disposal of partial interest HEMB AR S DR

in subsidiaries RemAFRE 41(c) - 49,189
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBARKNIRE

AR 40 67,899 2,999
Net cash inflow on disposal of associate HEBENTMIRE
AR - 107,014

Changes in loan to a shareholder BTREERE 28,404 109,615
Changes in short-term loans receivable FE W52 ER B SRR TH & &) 18,000 16,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing (FBR) REREXEK >

activities HEFEE (18,509) 6,903
Cash flows from financing activities REMEXEKZRERE
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes, AR EE 7 TS RIE

net of related expenses MBRABEFE T - 75,780
Proceeds from issue of guaranteed notes EREBNES ZTE

and bonds, net of related expenses A - MR AR F W 48,402 166,148
Repayment of bonds payable BEEHFNE (7,000) -
Interest paid =EERS (24,021) (1,486)
Repayment of convertible notes EEABRRE (16,000) -
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEERERIE 12,204 =
Addition of obligation under a finance lease MEBRSEEIEM 38 -
Repayment of obligation under a finance lease EE R EHE & (T (13) (7)
Net cash generated from financing activities FEXBEL 2R L FHE 13,610 240,435
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ReRELEEEE

equivalents CR2), /%88 (54,571) 122,894
Cash and cash equivalents FHzHEeRESEEER

at the beginning of the year 109,721 29,404
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgsooE 11,888 (42,577)
Cash and cash equivalents FRzEERESEEER

at the end of the year 67,038 109,721
Analysis of the balance of cash ReRALEEER

and cash equivalents EER D
Bank and cash balances RITRBESER 67,038 109,721
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk A W B 9 o M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

110

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The
directors of the Company consider its parent and ultimate holding
company is Champion Dynasty Limited (a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability). The addresses of the
Company’s registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47.

(@) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Report Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by the
Group

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and amended standards, amendments and
interpretations (the “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax

Assets for Unrealised Losses

ARRA—HMREBEREFMAZZZEH
RERAARARAIRND N E B AR
SHERAR([BRZAT]) £ AARE
ERE HERAREKRERAR ARE
# B R BE B 5 il AX 37 2 Champion Dynasty
Limited e KRR MW EEREFTEZ *
EDREEIHUERAFERIABER] —
Bfi B FE o

HEREMBHRERAET(ET) 25 -8
TARARBEREMBAR(AEE])
ZUHEEER BREHBHIN mEEEDS
MEAAZSEOIZ TUE(TET) -

ARAZEIBEBRREERLEETR
ME ARz EBERBENMELT

(@ AT REBTERBHHK
BREER(ERUBHREE
U

RAFE  AEEEARERBAT
HEEGMAS((EAEETHMA
MMM ERRERT R
BUHMAIREETEENHREE
Q) BRARAEE T —t£&F—
A—BRARRABHOMERFE -

FRMBRE BEVHRS
HERIE 1257 A T —MF
(1&3T) E-T-RFB

HiZ FEBCER
—#D

BEGFEL  WEFE
E75% (ER])

FRGRTER HARERERER
£1258 (BF]) BELEHBEEE
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\()WWZS'F()WWIF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

(Continued)

(@ New and amended Hong Kong Financial

(@ HEMFITREBITETBUHK

Report Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes, In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future
cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: () changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (i) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,
the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Except as describe above, the application on the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact in the Group’s financial performance and financial
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (b) EEMBEERERZHE

78 B % 3R 5 2 A

AEBYERFEATIEHTE
R AR R R] R ARHEFT BB B 15

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: AR
HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvement to HKFRSs ERVHKRE FAUWKREED
2015-2017 Cycle? R (BET) —T-REE
T —tFAHZ
F JZ o2
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement EETBHRE UREERTIHZS
of Share-based Payment B F 25 MoERE
Transactions' (1B3T)
HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EREUERE EREAVBKHREE
Instruments with HKFRS 4 ZERIE 455 AIE AR A L
Insurance Contracts'’ (85T) — AT EN®
HEEAFIF SR
TA!
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' EAYBRE SpIA
ZRZE QR
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with ERIERE BEBEMNTEENR
Negative Compensation? A FEIH R
(155T)
HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets EAVKRE RBREFLEHEBMZNT
HKAS (Amendments) between an Investor and its EAEI0RE HABTECEE
Associate or Joint Venture® EBgER  HEHTE®
(1BET)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EAVBRE TBEALOKE'
Customers' A E 155
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15 EREMBRE BAYBKHREE]D
Revenue from Contracts with HEBIE 155 FEBREFAY
Customers' (83T) Wz zBE
HKFRS 16 Leases® ERUBRE MHE®
ERIE 165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts * EEMBERE RBReH
EAE1TH
HK(FRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Translations BB EBEBRTE IMIHFRENKE'
and Advance Consideration’ sRE
ZE9)
- REF2%R
HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 58 BBEEH MERERZTHE
Treatment? mERE M2
ZE9)
- REF23HR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates
and joint ventures?

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  As part of the Annual
Improvement to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,
or when apply HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.
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(b)
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Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

b) EEMGEERERZTHITE
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL is
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:
(Continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transaction
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the retrospective quantitative effectiveness
test has been removed. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impacts on initial application of HKFRS 9:

The financial assets held by the Group include equity
instruments that are currently classified as available-for-
sale financial assets carried at cost less impairment.
These investments qualified for designation as
measured at financial assets at FVOCI under HKFRS 9.
The Group will measure these investments at fair value
at the end of subsequent reporting periods with fair
value gains or losses to be recognised as other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. Upon initial application
of HKFRS 9, the differences between the carrying
amount at cost less impairment and fair value (net of
deferred tax impact) relating to these investments would
be adjusted to investments revaluation reserve as at 1
January 2018.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impacts on initial application of HKFRS 9: (Continued)

° The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. It applies to the Group’s financial
assets classified at amortised cost. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the Group does not
expect significant increase or decrease in the loss
allowance for trade debtors.

° The new standard introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. The nature
and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments are expected to be changed, particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
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(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Step 2:
contract

Identify the performance obligations in the

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

Far more

prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarification to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impacts on initial application of HKFRS 15:

HKFRS 15 requires separate presentation on the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position of
the right to recover the goods from the customer and
the refund obligation. Due to the large size and low
value of the Group’s products, the historical goods
return rate is very low. The Group expects the financial
impact of applying new HKFRS 15 to be immaterial.

HKFRS 15 requires separate presentation of contract
assets and contract liabilities in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. This will
result in some reclassifications as at 1 January 2018 in
relation to contract liabilities which are currently
included in other line items on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 wiill
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under the
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.
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(b)

(a)

(b)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$13,537,000 as disclosed
in note 37. A preliminary assessment indicated that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new arrangements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors complete a detailed review.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instrument
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

o

(c)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Group. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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(d) Business combinations (Continued)

124

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
and HKAS 19 respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquire are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction by transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Business combinations (Continued) (d #¥K4&6t@m
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

126

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

(e)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of
the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Interests in associates/joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
required unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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(9)

Interests in associates/joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
venture are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, interests in associates or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s interest in associate or joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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(9)

(h)

Interests in associates/joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating unites, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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I:

0

(h)

i)

0)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other, than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in the profit or loss.
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0)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of such category of financial assets are
set out below:

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including deposits and other
receivables, trade receivables, amount due from a
shareholder, loan to a shareholder, short-term loans
receivable and bank and cash balances) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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() Financial instruments (Continued) () @I AEm@®m

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
any of the other categories under HKAS 39.

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss.

Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets equity investments that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale financial assets equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in the profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectable, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible notes

If the conversion option of convertible notes exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible notes is measured at
fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the
liability component. Transaction costs are apportioned
between the liability and derivative components of the
convertible notes based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and derivative components when the instruments are
initially recognised. The portion of the transaction costs
relating to the liability component is recognised initially as part
of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative component
is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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() Financial instruments (Continued) () @I AEm@®m

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified at fair value through profit or
loss when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

THREBEERKATLA(E)
EREME

TREBEODHER/RATEFARR
ZeMABEXHEMERAE-

BAVFEFARGZERERE

HERBERFEEAR NS BR
WiEEARAFEHARS 8D
FERE AT B ABK -

HWETIER EREESERR

EEE -

e IFERAREFTAKKED: X

o RUSHBEWEAEES H
ERZESNSBIAMS
T - B R
A ok

e BRAWEEZNMETE I
ABEMEREPTE-

HETHNER cREBEGHIEES
Z & @B ERIN AR R R
ERBAFEFABGZERAE:

o BRI E R HHICKERE DA
BEHBRZ A — R ERHER
%

e THAGERTREEXUTARA
BRI KMEZAKED - M
REBEAEE 2 EREE XX
REXRE 2MEEDRER
FEEEEERFGBRE B
ERIBEEANGUZEERA
Rt 8

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

0)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract to be designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

° Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals,
deposits received and other payables, convertible notes, loan
from associates, amount due to associates, guaranteed
notes and bonds payable and obligation under a finance
lease) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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() Financial instruments (Continued) () @I AEm@®m

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfer nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit or loss in the reporting period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2017 mainly
represented the properties which are under construction in
the PRC.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, as follows:

Leasehold improvements
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(k) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

()

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
land use rights provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they
are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from provision of health management service is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rate that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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(m) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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(m) Taxation (Continued)

(n)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as expenses on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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(n) Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair values at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in the
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits form the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.
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(0)

(p)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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(q) Share-based payment arrangements

(r)

Share-based payment transactions of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the date of grant and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constitutive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows where the effect of the time
value of money is material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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(s) Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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(s) Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employees are also

related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); or

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

A related party is a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between the Company and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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(t)

(u)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability
is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or to provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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150

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting
period are discussed below.

Impairment of short-term loans receivable

The policy for impairment loss in respect of short-term loans
receivable of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of the receivables of short-term loans
receivable and on the management of the Company’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of the customers of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowance maybe required.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill and intangible asset
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
management of the Company to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines impairment of trade and
other receivables on a regular basis. The estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and current market conditions. The
management of the Group reassesses the impairment of trade and
other receivables at the end of reporting period.
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives
of property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are
estimated at the time the assets are acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands or service output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives
continue to be valid.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. At the end of each reporting period, the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
directors of the Company.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities are
disclosed in note 5(c).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

ZZFERIR @

FEURFEE

EXGHAERMETTHAER

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in FENESFELAREITEBERTER

the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the A et 2RERER ™
current market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. The

directors of the Company reassess the estimations at the end of

reporting period.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

5. €@ T A

(@ EMIAEER

BREF R REEERREGRN
BB KR
EMAEENBEEEROE LER - Al AKX
ARETERASNEPBLELNBEFHTF
MITBHEPINERNE - AR ESER
SHREHFEEMGE -

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABTT
Financial assets SREE
Loan and receivables B3 & EW R IE 201,240 336,764
Available-for-sale financial assets FEeMEE 76,395 71,217
Financial liabilities L= R
Amortised cost B8 Ak N 370,941 295,111
Fair value through profit or loss BAFEFAEBR 7,316 7,006
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale financial assets, deposits and other receivables, trade
receivables, loan to a shareholder, short-term loans
receivable, bank and cash balances, trade payables,
accruals, deposits received and other payables, convertible
notes, bank and other borrowings, guaranteed notes and
bonds payable and obligation under a finance lease. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these are set out below.
The management of the Company manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s risk exposure in
respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash and bank balance that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transaction relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”).

Certain cash and bank balances are denominated in RMB.
The conversion of RMB into other currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by PRC. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk in
respect of exchange fluctuation of HK$ against RMB. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The Group are not exposed to foreign currency risk in respect
to HK$ against the United States dollars (US$) as long as this
currency is pegged.

—tF+-A=T—HLFE

(a)

(b)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. @I Auwm
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) £EEREEBZERBEK @
policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) GBS JE] i (4E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEBUINBAEZELEE S
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the BERREHAZERENOT -
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E2-tF —E-RF ZE2-tH —F—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT FET TFHE T

RMB AR # 45,365 23,557 7,931 1,395

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in functional currency of the Group
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% represents the
management of the Company’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the reporting date or a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss or an
increase in profit where functional currency of the Group
weakens 5% against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5%
strengthen of functional currency of the Group against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit or loss, and the balance below
would be negative.

BRED

TRAIAGEEHEDERER LA
BN AENREE% HRER
B 5%IEARARNAEIEENEINEE
REPMAREEEY  PRED
EBEAIINEFENREER
BR URHREBEHRIEEED
SR EEHHBEEBLE - EEEH N
HBREMEERESNR  TRPH
EHEXRTEBRRL S G EN: &
AEBENNEEBEHEENEBEEE
THES%E EHBEREL —EEF
IR E AT ERBEERK
BE-
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

€@ T B @)
b) 2RIEAMEEEERBE @
GBS E f (4E)

RE 2 (8

Profit before tax

Biana Rl
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
RMB AR 1,872 1,108

Interest rate risk

The Group has interest-bearing assets and liabilities including
time deposits and bank balances, short-term loans
receivable, bank and other borrowings, convertible notes,
bonds payable and guaranteed notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Company monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of The Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rates (“HIBOR”).
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s:

Profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$246,000 (2016:
HK$645,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its loan to a shareholder (2016:
time deposits and loan to a shareholder).

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is mainly attributable to trade
receivables, loan to a shareholder, short-term loans receivable
and bank and cash balances. The management of the
Company has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables and short-term loans
receivable, the credit periods usually are ranging from 30
days to 90 days depending on the nature of the business.
Extension may be granted to major customers and each
customer is granted a maximum credit limit. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and also taking into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Given the
constant repayment history, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the risk of default by these counter parties
is not significant.

(b)

THREREREBERBE®@®

T & 2 (%)
REBE 5 A7

E2HHEMEHERSTZEZEBR
T #F 8 R X E AR RS0 E
B(ZZ—RF:50@EE) AKX
£H:

HEZZ—+tF+ZA=1+—81E
F [ 2 B A B A5 38 08 m A 49
246,000/ 7T (= T — 7N F : 645,000
BIL) e W EBHRAEE AT
CEBMGERERETREER(ZE—
NECTEHERRETFREER) Z
F 2= B B2 TR

EEER

AEBEFERBRIEREEKES
RE-BETFTERRER BUEHE
RARRITEBESEH - ARFE
BEREGERER HEZEEY
MZEFEERR -

HREKREZRERERESRE
o EEHBENFI0BEWNAE
BFEBUHEME - TEFP A
BiLH SEEFPEERREER
BH-HNERBE - THENEE
WA AEEPETENEENMG &
EHEEIFFPBEEINHERN
REMBERBNROEN TEREE
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) cREAREEBEEZREE @

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Debtors with balances that are more than three months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted and all overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by the management of the Group.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industry and country in which customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has certain concentration of credit risk as 37.7% (2016:
38.6%) and 79.3% (2016: 75.0%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
and the Company statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group and the
Company does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

The Group deposited its cash and cash equivalents with
approved and reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of
the bank may cause the Group’s right with respect to cash
and cash equivalents held to be delayed or limited. The
management of the Group monitors the credit rating of these
banks on an ongoing basis, and considers that the Group’s
exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were
minimal.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring
current and expected liquidity requirements and ensuring
sufficient liquid cash and intended credit lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. The liquidity risk is
under continuous monitoring by the management of the
Group. The Group will raise bank borrowings whenever
necessary.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. €@ I Bu@m)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) cREREEEEZREX @

policies (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity TRV AEHFTESHRARZ
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been ENIHBFBE SRDBELRE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the ExFrAWEREEZAN &k
financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the BABEZARMERSREMRAERE -
Group can be required to pay. The amounts disclosed in the TERIABEREDERUTEHR

Liquidity risk (Continued)

158

table are based on the contractual undiscounted payments, BEIR A 3 :
are as follows:
Weight Total
average On demand contractual Total
effective or less than Between Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
EEHEES
niEFH RERS RAERE
BRA=E PR—F —ZHF HEBHEF waE FREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
I e e B
At 31 December 2017 R=-T—+tF
+=—B=+—H
Non-derivative financial kTESRERE
liabilities
Trade payables FE B B 3R - 824 - 824 824
Accruals, deposits received FEst=E - - EWing
and other payables RE M ERNZIE - 68,812 - 68,812 68,812
Convertible notes BIE:Y 8 17.96% 89,001 - 89,001 75,480
Derivative financial liabilites ~ $T4 4 @t & (& - 7,316 - 7,316 7,316
Guaranteed notes and bonds ~ #& 1R Z i& % fi& ft
payable EH 11.19% 135,111 102,338 237,449 213,590
Bank and other borrowings WITRHMESE 7.80% 12,204 - 12,204 12,204
Obligation under a finance MEEERE
lease 12.74% 8 27 35 31
Total Fe 313,276 102,365 415,641 378,257
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-—A=+—8
Non-derivative financial ENTESRBE
liabilities
Trade payables B8 5 A - 1,395 - 1,395 1,395
Accruals, deposits received  fEFHFRIE - EWIZ S
and other payables REMENZE - 29,217 - 29,217 29,217
Convertible notes GRS 17.82% 17,716 83,092 100,808 85,535
Derivative financial liabilities TESMmERE = 7,006 - 7,006 7,006
Guaranteed notes and bonds ~ #& 1% Z 1% % f& <t
payable &% 12.35% 7,325 179,918 187,243 166,658
Loan from associates Bt & A Rl E K 9.00% 12,300 - 12,300 12,300
Obligation under a finance BMEREEFE
lease 5.98% 7 - 7 6
Total st 74,966 263,010 337,976 302,117
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(c) Fair value of financial instruments c) ETMITEZA¥E

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial AEESRMEENSREBBEZAF

liabilities are determined as follows: EETMOT:
the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities o  HEZEEGRRRMGHEILNTER
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active MEEEZMEERESRA
markets are determined with reference to quoted B IO RREREHIEE R
market bid prices and ask prices respectively; BrREEBETATE:
the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated o PTHEITEZAFELXBKZE
using quoted prices. When such prices are not HoMALESEBHAER A
available, a discounted cash flow analysis is performed ASEHA#ENTA T A T AR
using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the MEBESHE  UARBED
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option ETEMEREEENEITE
pricing models for optional derivatives; and RIREREDN K&

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial o EmemEERSsmABET
liabilities (excluding those described above) are PiELME) 2 AFETRE
determined in accordance with generally accepted FRBRESCRESNM 2 EE
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. R TEEEXNETE -

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of the BTIRATAFLEN RAREER

Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial BIRAVERERTERERASHEE

assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated emaEcEmEYREAIANTE

financial statements are approximate to their fair values: HE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
BREE AEE AR B N¥E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAT FAT

Financial liabilities e sE
Obligation under MERESE

a finance lease (Note) (K7 5%) 31 31 6 6
Convertible notes BE:L 3 75,480 83,405 85,535 96,799

Note: The fair value of obligation under a finance lease is estimated to be
approximately HK$31,000 (2016: HK$6,000) using 12.74%
discount rate based on bank interest rate for instaiment loan.

Biet R ERBIT D BERFE Z212.74%
MR EGFE BMEAMEETIATE
HFF4 B31,0008 T (= — N F:
6,000/ 7T) °

BEERREELEEERAT —=—+t&F% |59
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—tFEFT-A=1+—HLEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. @I Au@m)
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) (c) 2MIAZAFEE @
The following table provides an analysis of financial THREYNART T ERB ;ﬁ@i{gtﬁr

EZERMIASH AREER
@ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁfgﬁj‘%%—iﬁ%i&%u :

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& FIR E=R& st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
TAT FAET FAET FAET
' ! /! /! /| ||
At 31 December 2017 N-—ZE—t&
+=HA=+—H
Other financial liabilities Hit e maeE
Derivative financial liabilites ~ T4 & @& & - - 7,316 7,316
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—RF
+—-A=+—H”
Other financial liabilities HthemBaE
Derivative financial liabilites ~ T4 & @l & & - - 7,006 7,006
The fair values of the financial liabilities included in level 3 SFAEXE=ZFEZEMEBEZ
category above represented convertible notes which have NFEETIETHRIRZE FEE FE 3k
been determined in accordance with generally accept pricing KRB WEREIRE S EEDT
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the BMARTETEBEABT ZEEH A
most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects HIEATEWF A ZERR 28R
the credit risk of counterparties. K o
Fair value estimation ~FEGE
The following table presents the changes in convertible notes TRE2NWHEE-_ZE—+EFE+-_A=
which are classified as level 3 instruments for the years ended +—BIEEsEAE=HTHEY
31 December 2017. MR ER . B8 -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAT
At 1 January wn—HA—H 7,006 1,682
Issue of the convertible notes BITABREKREER - 7,182
Fair value loss/(gain) recognised ERRAFEERE (= 310 (1,758)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 7,316 7,006
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair values of the embedded derivatives in the convertible
notes at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are calculated using
the Binomial Pricing Model. The inputs into the model are as
follows:

31 December 2017
—E—+tF
+=A=+-~H

(c) €EmMIAZAFE@m
FlEGE (&)

=% — AE&:3*t¢+*ﬂ

Iﬁm ?EE%:ETEEET

FrECBREEXGFELT -

31 December 2016
—E—RF

F=A=F=E

F)

=

Principal amount (000) A& €% (Fst) HK$1,000 USD10,000 HK$16,000 HK$1,000 USD10,000
1,000/ 7t 10,0007t 16,0007t 1,000/ 7C 10,0003 7T

Expected volatility (%) 78 HA i 18 (%) 16.01 28.81 27.26 27.36 42.85
Expected life (years) 78 Hi 4 8 (5F) 0.031 0.631 0.975 1.044 1.644
Expected dividend T8 HA A% B K (%)

yield (%) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Risk-free rate (%) 7 B2 2 (%) 1.295 1.4 0.85 0.86 0.88
Share price (HK$) Iz & (B 7T) 0.69 0.69 0.66 0.66 0.66

The Binomial Pricing Model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the future share price,
therefore the changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimates.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, increase in share
price of the Company by 10% would decrease the fair value
of embedded derivatives in the convertible notes by
approximately HK$3,668,000 (2016: HK$87,428,000).
Decrease in share price by 10% would increase the fair value
of embedded derivatives in the convertible notes by
approximately HK$3,203,000 (2016: HK$7,233,000).

There is no transfer into and out of Level 3 for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from 2016.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings (comprising
loan from associates, convertible notes and guaranteed notes,
bonds payable and obligation under a finance lease) and equity
(comprising share capital and reserves).

“TEANETERAFTEASEE
BZBRE BRAKROKRE @it
ITERRZEHAUH R FEMTE
REANZE -

HE_FT—+tF+-_A=+—8"
AARMATBBREETETAAF
E ¥R 4 10% 493,668,000 T (— &
— 7N F 1 87,428,000 T ) ¥ K A A
fEELEHA - JBRBEREETETAER
J{E #5318 11 10% 493,208,000 7T (=
T — X4 7,233,000/ 7T ) # AR A
J% (8 P& I o

BE_ Tt _ZT—RE+=
A=t—B EF=RITEREHEA
MBI o

4 o B H L S DA U 7 4R 46 4 9
B (e AR - S B KRS 0 1R
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BEAEEEE @
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a AKABBEEFHBRTERNEE - R zﬂz*i%
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company B ARAEEREEARNKAM J—L g £
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each BERK EREHANELREE
class of capital. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period EY' (I

was as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
! __________________________________________'/ ! ' | |
Total borrowings: fERAERE -
Convertible notes (note 32) EI MR E & (M £32) 75,480 85,535
Bank and other borrowing (note 35) RITREMEE (#7235) 12,204 =
Loan from associates (note 19) Hﬁﬁ %’* RAER(H7E19) - 12,300
Guaranteed notes and bonds EREBREMNES
payable (note 34) (K1 #34) 213,590 166,658
301,274 264,493
Total equity & 7S 25 R R 978,211 667,550
Gearing ratio BEAMGBXE 30.8% 39.6%
7. REVENUE 7. WA
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Revenue represents the aggregate amounts WAFEE W R EW Z A
received and receivable analysed as follows: SR TAT
Health industry R 3 451,036 536,100
Interest income from investment and finance ®EKEE RS WA 23,897 18,862
474,933 554,962
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments.

Health industry - included medical anti-aging and health
preservation base, medical and healthcare
industry investment management and natural
health food business

Investment and -
finance

investing and financing activities

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business has different markets and requires different
marketing strategies.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group during the year was as follows:

8.

AEBERBEBRAEABEREEBA
A AABEREAEESESITREEA
B -AUNEERIREZEEN BT
A AREZHRTIMEANZ2H DA -

REEX - BEBEEnREREL
i - BERMEEXR
BEENRRARER
LE

RENBE - REMBELH

AEBA2HRDBUNEEIREH AR
BEBEL REXBERNER  WIER
BEBHEBETRTS  BER TR SR

g o

TEEFEFZESR

RER - REEREBEBALEEBI10%
ZEPZWAWT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
|y S B
Customer A' BEEA 68,673 N/A T iEA°
Customer B? ZPB? N/A R A° 91,566
Customer C? BEC? N/A FEF° 70,130
! Revenue from natural health food business ! KWARBRABRRDER
2 Revenue from medical anti-aging and health preservation base business 2 WAKREBEMEEREEEMED
8 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total o e fEIR A AEEBIRALTEREBIRBI0% °

revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. EEDHum
Information about major customers (Continued) FEEFZER®@
Operating segment information is presented below: EESHBEHZIMT :

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other EEEZEAMEE NG
Comprehensive Income

Health Industry
BEEX

Medical and Healthcare
Medical Anti-aging and Industry Investment

Natural Health Food Health Preservation Base Management Sub-total Investment and Finance Consolidated
RARERR BRhREREEEN BRARRREEXREEE it RERRE )
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Z2-tE ZF-RF ZR-tf “F-NF ZB-tf B ZB-tE “B-AF ZB-tF “T-AF T+ “F-RF

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TR TR TR TR AR TR TR TR TR TR AR TR
'/ || || |

Revenue KA
Revenue fomexternal ~ RESNFEF 2

customer WA 323,856 213,772 63,622 51,344 63,558 270,984 451,036 536,100 23,897 18,862 474,933 554,962
Results ES
Segment results for T2HHH2

reportable segment ARER 185 1,509 26,964 18,485 22,153 38,392 49,302 58,386 (21,398) 12,532 27,904 70918
Bank interestincome  R{77| 8 A 3 2 16 12 2 12 21 % 3 - % 26
Unallocated expenses, kDB %

net* R (9,689) (14,685)
Income tax expense PR HE X (356) (389) (2,304) (6,833) (6,138) (1876) (8,798) 9,09 - = (8,798) (9,098)
Profit for the year FERA 9,441 47,161

* Unallocated expenses mainly include certain depreciation on property, * AP BRI TEBEDE BMERRE  —
plant and equipment, general office expenses and unallocated employee WANERTREASEHEERINBE X Z2E
benefit expenses. TFHE -
Health Industry
BEEX
Medical and Healthcare
Medical Anti-aging and Industry Investment
Natural Health Food Health Preservation Base Management Sub-total Investment and Finance Consolidated
RARERR BEARERELEN BRREREZREER it RERME g8
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZB-tE % Rt T F CZB-+F “TF ZR-+£F “T-RF ZB-LF “TF ZB-Lf “T 5K

HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

TER TR TER TAT TR TER TER TR TER TAT TR TERL

' e B

Assets
Segment assets for DES UEv4)

reportable segments BEE 78,737 31,704 1,080,982 401,332 25,520 366,569 1,185,239 799,605 136,489 140965 1,321,728 940,570
Unallocated assets APBIEE 50,509 32,079
Total assets BEBE 1,372,237 972,649
Liabilities 8%
Segment liabiltiesfor W EHHH 2

reportable segments AHAE 31,364 9,112 43,689 16,423 5,829 2,050 80,882 27,585 301,386 273,425 382,268 301,010
Unallocated liabilies K2 # 2 & fE 11,758 4,089
Total liabilties REAR 394,026 305,099
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Information about major customers (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the Year (2016: Nil).

Segment results represent the profit earned/(the loss incurred) by
each segment without allocation of corporate expenses, bank
interest income and income tax expense.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
unallocated corporate assets which mainly include property, plant
and equipment, prepayments and deposits and corporate bank
palances.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
unallocated corporate liabilities which mainly include accruals,
deposits received and other payables.

Geographical information

In determining the Group’s geographical information, revenue
information is based on the location of the customers, and asset
information is based on the location of the assets.

FTEEFZER M@
EX2HBRAEREBINBEFS ZW
AN RERREABABHEE(ZF— X
FE) -

DBEEESTOBRRZEN(EEZ
BE) YRS EBEEM  RITAMNBW
ARFEHRA -

ERDHMRBAELRDAE S HERM

7

oif gt

BARADEELEEEMNZEZEREDE #
BERRE BNRERREREERITE
BN MEEECHBEAZ2HmDE -

BARADBMEXAB(EZREERNE
EEe REMEMNREBE) I EEE
En#EEAE2®RN A -

i & & R

EREREEZ MR E R - WAERH
BEPEWRE BEEMANBEEME
HORTE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

8.

166

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. ZEDI

Geographical information (Continued) i & & ¥ |

The Group’s revenue from external customers and information AEBERBIBEE WA RBBEIE
about its non-current assets by geographical location are detailed REEEZERNMIGMNE - FIBWT
below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets*
REHIBEFEZWA ERBEE"
2017 2016 2017 2016
—B-tF —T-AF =—B-tF —F-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FAT FHET FAT
The People’s Republic HREE AR A
of China (the “PRC”) ([ E]) 431,969 536,100 441,560 400,935
Hong Kong &5 42,964 18,862 318,940 2,201
* Non-current assets excluded those relating to interests in associates and * RS EETEREERNBES A AREA
available-for-sale financial assets. CREERFESREE -
Other segment information Hitt o HER
Health Industry Investment and Finance Unallocated Consolidated
REEX RERBE AAE o]
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE-tF T RF ZB-tF ZT-RF ZE-tF ZTRF ZB-tf _TRF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR THET TER THET TR THET

Depreciation of property, M HER

plant and equipment ST E 8,474 8,509 - = - = 8,474 8,509
Impairment loss of avallable- & & 4§ 4 &
for-sale financial assets VEAER-EN - 755 - - - - - 755
Share of result of associates  # 1f & & /A 8]
CEE 8,822 14,105 - = - = 8,822 14,105
Interests in associates N =N
B 211,272 127,128 - - - - 211,272 127,128
Capital expenditure* BREY 27,560 79,375 - = - = 27,560 79,375
* Capital expenditure consists of addition to property, plant and equipment * EABIBEYE MELEBEHLAENR
and assets acquired from acquisition of subsidiaries. WENBATINEWEBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftlx A
2017 2016
—®E-t® —T-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHT FE T
Bank interest income HRIT A B WA 24 26
Others H A 39 312
63 338

10. FINANCE COST 10. BF #& B A
2017 2016
—®-tF —F-A%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHT FE T
Interest on convertible notes (note 32) AT AR R B (M aF32) 14,691 6,956

Interest on guaranteed notes and EREREREMESTE

bonds payable (note 34) (K1 #£34) 25,894 1,861
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEFRE 127 =
Interest on loan from associates Bek & N BB P B 634 882
41,346 9,699
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

11.

168

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 11. BR% A0 & A
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after FE MBI GEA)
charging/(crediting):
Total staff costs including remuneration of the & B A A 4258 (B 5 R &
directors of the Group: % EEB)
Salaries and other benefits e kHMET 14,658 13,041
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RONTE B 5F 8 45X 808 483
Share-based payment expenses AR B RE S - 3,836
15,466 17,360
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services B AZ R B 1% SR B 2 1,500 1,380
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services  FE & 1% AR 75 B9 4% U AT B & 50 50
Fair value changes on convertible notes AREEEATLEE 310 (1,758)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses* ERAERZ 2 TFEERK K" 382,864 471,594
Exchange loss, net b 5 E5 18 5 58 1 3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 42 - #28 MR EITE 8,474 8,509
Impairment loss of available-for-sale financial HFESREERMEBERERL
assets - 755
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented HAMEzKELHERSER
premises (excluding rented premise for (PEFBEARAEENEA
director of the Company) LIE) 8,515 7,340
* Included in “Cost of sales” of the consolidated statement of profit or loss * Bit AGEeBEEMme2EKkERERAZ
and other comprehensive income [ 88 & Bk $J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'SAND 12. EX - S EEBENKEEMN S
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ ESME
Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the directors HE - E—+tEFERZZE—XRF+=
of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2017 and A=+—HBLtFE BENXEFT
2016 were as follows: FEEZFZ2HeREMMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—+tH%+=-A=+—-8B1
FE:
Contributions  Share-based
Salariesand  to retirement payment
Fees allowances benefit scheme expenses Total
HRERHK
e HEREE BAGE REERZE we
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTET TERT TERT THERT TERT
1 e e ) A
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen REREE(EE)
(Chairman) 150 - - - 150
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan Bkt
(Deputy Chairman) (Bl£E) 150 1,560 18 - 1,728
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian EmMExE
(Chief Executive Officer) (77 B 48 #) - 460 18 - 478

Non-executive director: I TE=E

Mr. Lin Jiang IR E 150 150 - - 300
Mr. Hou Kaiwen (note ) =83 5% 4 (K 3i) - - - - -
Mr. Bai Yinghai (note i) B 58 5% & (K 7ti) 5 - - -

Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors:

Mr. Mai Yang Guang P:30 Dbk 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (note i)  Fr =5 B8 5 & (K &%) 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit (note iv) B 1R#E 55 4 (fif it iv) 42 - - - 42
Mr. Lam Chi Wing (note v) #R % 5855 & (ff it v) 150 - - - 150
Total FL] 947 2,170 36 - 3,153
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170

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Fees

e
HK$'000
FHET

@ E=#M<w

Salaries and
allowances

Fa MR
HK$'000
THTL

RE-T-AF+-A=t+-AL
T

Contributions ~ Share-based
to retirement payment
benefit scheme expenses Total
R E R
BRGE REERXH Fok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Cheung Wai Kuen RE#EE(FE)

(Chairman) 150 150 B - 305
Mr. Cheng Hau Yan ;= kAt

(Deputy Chairman) =) 150 1,560 18 - 1,728
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian EWMELE

(Chief Executive Officer)  (7TE( 48 #) - 460 18 1,072 1,550
Non-executive director: F#HTEE
Mr. Lin Jiang WLk AE 150 150 - 107 407
Mr. Bai Yinghai (note i) H 58 5 & (K7 72i) = - - - -
Independent non- BILFHTES

executive directors:
Mr. Mai Yang Guang B EE 150 - - 107 257
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (note iii)  Fr 7583 5& & (i &tiii) 150 = = 107 257
Mr. Lam Chi Wing (note v) #ZE 58 5% & (Hfatv) 120 - - - 120
Total FLR] 870 2,320 41 1,393 4,624

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company, its chief executive officer and senior
management of the highest paid individuals as a discretionary
bonus or an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31

December 2017 and 2016.

None of the directors of the Company and chief executive
officer of the Company agreed to receive or waived any
emoluments in the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016.

HEZ—+tFR_T—~"F+=
BA=+—BLEE AEEHES
NEMHFHFAARES  THE
HEEEFWHALNSHEREE
LAYE B TR B i A AR & B s R A A
EEBENE SO ER AR
B A9 (E -

ARAEZRTHAHBENREE
TEEFRZE-RFTZA=
T-—BLEFEARRERERSKRER
HRERME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The share-based payment represents the fair value of share
options granted to the directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in
note 3.

At 31 December 2016, the directors of the Company held
share options under the Company’s share option scheme.
No share option was held by directors as at 31 December
2017. Details of the share options are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the report of the
directors of the Company and note 36.

Notes:

0] Mr. Hou Kaiwen was appointed as non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 5 June 2017.

(ii) Mr. Bai Yinghai was appointed as non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 19 December 2016 and resigned as
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 5 June
2017.

(iii) Mr. Yau Chi Ming was resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 July 2017.

(iv) Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 20 September
2017.

(V) Mr. Lam Chi Wing was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 15 March 2016.

(a)

EEME @

RO 0 3% it 96 IR 5 24 LB R AR
SHEBETAAAEEZHBBESD
B 8% A R ) (B BB SR 5
FEAREREERL TR
S E -

ZE—R"F+ZA=+—H 'K
A E BREA QGBI E B
EhRE-EFR_FT—tF+=
A=+t HHESEBRE - BR
BHEBRAQBEZRE RME36
[BEMRHERT S — BRI E -

ot X
b 4

() FYIXELECEZERIERTE
= AR_ZE-EFRAARRER-

(i BEBELECEZERIERTE
F BR-ZT-REFT-ATIARAE
BREBRERFNTEE B -F—
tFERARHEEY -

iy EERAELECHEEILFATE
T AT tEFEA-HEEM-

vy ERGEECEZEARBILIERT
B2 BT —tFhLA=-t+HEL
WK e

v MERLLECEZERBIIFEHRT
B2 A FT-R"E¥=-A+thBARLE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—T—+F+-_H=-+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'SAND 12. EX - S EEENKEEMN S

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (4&)
(b) Five highest paid employees b)) EEEESFMES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EAEEBREZS5MESE © -
Group, two (2016: three) were directors of the Company MEBZ(ZE—RF:=%) BKRQA
whose emoluments were included in note 12(a) above. The EEF . HMESEBERFHY R XX E
emoluments of the remaining three (2016: two) individuals 12@ - B T =ZH(ZE—XRNF: W
were as follows: H)IRE ST ¢
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
1 S
Salaries and other allowances e kHMER 2,445 1,888
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme 4 2k & iE 4k 1@ | 5+ 21 54 36
Share-based payment expenses % g E A S - 107
2,499 2,031
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HE7ME TN TESEENR :
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T ZE
1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
At the end of the reporting period, there was no forfeited NEE R WERESBHBFHENK
contribution, which arose upon employees leaving the BAFEMEEANRKER &1
retirement benefits scheme and which are available to reduce AR RREEREREF -

the contribution payable in the futures years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. TEHAX
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHERT FAET
Income tax expense comprises FEBAXed
Current tax: EHATIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FE MRS (7,894) (8,126)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNFH - 972)
Under-provision in prior year F—FEEBETR (821) -
Deferred tax IEE IR (83) -
(8,798) (9,098)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated BEEFESRDBERESFE 25 E®R
assessable profit for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax is B FIE M E16.5%TE - AR ERM &
payable on the profit for the year arising in Hong Kong since the MeEaARBEBEMED  ALRE
assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward. BHEANFTFEZNBAGNENETS
MG -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law”) BEPREMCEMMSTE(NEMRERIE]D
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the REERGH FREMNBARNHER =
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. ZEENF—H B AE25%-
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B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

—+FE+-A=+—AILEE
13. FAIEH B X @)

AEEZAEHAXEGABERREM
EEM IR B A G FERWT

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
THET % T T %

Profit before tax B B4 A1 V4 Tl 18,239 56,259
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BEBMERBTE

Tax rate of 16.5% 16.5% (=& — /N F -

(2016: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5 & 2 $i18 (3,009) (16.5) (9,283) (16.5)
Tax effect of share of result BOBE RN ZEE

of associates IR E 1,456 8.0 2,327 41
Tax effect of income not MBS BERD

taxable for tax purpose WA Z BTS2 3,995 21.9 3,855 6.8
Tax effect of expenses not IS ] ?EI N

deductible for tax purpose A2 RiETE (6,395) (35.1) (2,491) (4.4)
Tax effect of tax losses not KRERZTEEEZ

recognised M & (1,057) (5.8) (1,454) (2.6)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax ) F R R TE E5 18

losses previously not 2%

recognised 104 0.6 430 0.8
Under provision in prior year BEFEBRETE (821) (4.5) - -
Estimated tax effect of temporary (&5t & b = £ 89§27

differences 2 (83) (0.4) = =
Tax effect of different tax rates EEMAEEELE

of subsidiaries operating in ol NREE NN

other jurisdictions REZBRBEE (2,988) (16.4) (2,482) (4.4)
Income tax expense BT 1S Fi 5 2 (8,798) (48.2) (9,098) (16.2)

14. DIVIDENDS 14. |5

The directors of the Company do not recommend any payments of
interim and final dividend for the year (2016: Nil).

ARBEETZHERAFEIR M I F
HERBRE(ZE—XREF: |)-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

15. BRER

EUNCE TN VR eSS S -
TR T 5 B 35

data:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FBT
Earnings &7
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted AR EAR R#E R A 2 & A
earnings per share (profit for the year (FEARRHEE AEERF)
attributable to owners of the Company) 1,422 42,096
Number of shares ('000) B &8 (TR
Weighted average number of ordinary FAUGTtESRERANEERT 2
shares for the purpose of basic and diluted T IR N AE ST £
earnings per share 2,671,871 2,596,255

Diluted earnings per share does not assume:

(i) the exercise of the Company’s outstanding options as the
exercise price of those options were higher than the average
market price of the Company’s shares for the corresponding
period; and

(i)  the conversion of convertible notes since their assumed
conversion had an anti-dilutive effect.

BREERNT ERR

) ARBEHEKRTERZBRBETRE:
RERZEBRENTEESRA
RA D RAERBENFHHE:
IS4

i FAERREEAEBREEAAREF

By 488
2

N |
St
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ - MBERRE

Equipment
under
Leasehold Office  Furnitureand ~ Computer finance Motor ~ Medical  Construction
improvements  equipment fixture  software lease  vehicle equipment i progress Total
MERE
HEXE BAZRE HBARKE SHIH RE RE EBERHE  ERIE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THET TEzr FEx FEx TEArL  TEn TELT THET
e e e e S S
Cost: RA
At 1 January 2016 WZE-~"E-f—-H 9,361 2,565 913 207 33 2,951 2,282 - 18302
Additions 0 11,437 205 339 64 - 2212 1,484 63,634 79,375
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) Wt EE I B 2 =] (A7 #£.39)) - - - - - - - 139,585 139,585
Disposal of subsidlaries (note 40(c) & KB A 7 (A7 :401) (1216) (1,627) - - - - - -8
Exchange alignment ExFE (965) (156) (66) 1) - (85) (192 (14,367)  (15,838)
At 31 December 2016 and RZB—NE
1 January 2017 +-RA=t-8k
“ZT—t¥-A-H 18,617 977 1,186 264 33 5,078 3,674 188,852 218,581
Additions #0 4,421 543 11 1 33 - 1,334 14,603 20,946
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) Y& M & 2 A1 (/3£ 39) 1,388 - 464 - - - 4,762 - 6614
Disposal of subsidlaries (note 40(b) & M8 2 7 (A7:740b)) - - - - - (861) = = (861)
Written off s = (16) - - (33) - - - (49
Exchange alignment ExHg 1,067 149 82 11 - R 266 14582 16,239
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t£+=A
Er=Ff 25,483 1,653 1,743 276 33 4,309 9,936 218,037 261,470
Accumulated depreciation and BFERAE:
impairment:
At 1 January 2016 WZ2-"E—-A—-8 3,665 953 300 145 2 708 180 - 5,872
Charge for the year FEXH 6,210 750 205 55 7 960 322 - 8509
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(c) & Kt B2 7 (#:£400) (697) (934) - - - - - - (1,631)
Exchange alignment ExHE (679) (M) (18) 4] - (17) (22) - (707)
At 31 December 2016 and R-E—RF
1 January 2017 TZAZ+-HR
“Z-t¥-A-AH 8,503 698 487 196 28 1,651 480 - 12,043
Charge for the year FEXH 4,289 1 267 9 8 956 2,234 - 8474
Disposal of subsidlaries (note 40(b) & KB 2 7 (A7:740b)) - - - = = (191) = = (191)
Written off e = (16) - - (33) - - - (49
Exchange alignment ExHz 853 70 38 - - 34 55 - 1045
At 31 December 2017 RIB-—t#
+-BA=t+-H 13,645 1,463 787 205 3 2,450 2,769 - 232
Carrying amounts: BHEE:
At 31 December 2017 RZB-t#
+=A=+-H 11,838 190 956 7 30 1,859 7,167 218,037 240,148
At 31 December 2016 WZB-RF
—A=t-H 10,114 279 699 68 5 3421 3,004 188,852 206,538

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



\()TIZS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

(Continued)

Land
Development
Right Trademark Total
* i BB AE [5E:4 #t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000

THET THET TAET

At 1 January 2016 R-_ZT—XRF—HF—H

Acquisition of subsidiaries I BB 2 )

(note 39(b)) (K1aE£39b)) 130,421 = 130,421
Exchange alignment bE 3 & 8,271) - 8,271)
At 31 December 2016 and R-E—XRF+_-_A=+—H

1 January 2017 rEZFE—+F—H—H 122,150 - 122,150
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B A A

(note 39(a)) (K1 it 39()) = 89,900 89,900
Exchange alignment bE A 9,045 - 9,045
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-_A=+—H 131,195 89,900 221,095

The land development right was acquired by the Company through THHEBRDIARAIIREBEEZE T —F

the acquisition of 100% equity interests of Harvest Luck Investment
Limited (“Harvest Luck”) during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The management of the Group considered that the legal rights of
the land development rights is capable of being renewed indefinitely
at insignificant cost and it is expected to generate positive cash
flows indefinitely. The development rights will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite upon reassessment of its
useful life annually by the management. Instead, it will be tested for
impairment and whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired.

The trademark was acquired by the Company through the
acquisition of 100% equity interests of Golden Time Ventures
Limited (“Golden Time Ventures”) during the year ended 31
December 2017. The management of the Group considered that
the trademark is expected to generate positive cash flows
indefinitely and therefore it has indefinite useful lives. The trademark
will not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite
upon reassessment of its useful life annually by the management.
Instead, it will be tested for impairment and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

FHERREELEEARAT —S—+t454% |

T-A=+t-"BLFERBEREKRESR
BRAR(EHEII00%REMER - N&E
BEEERR THRAERNSEENA
EBREXAERSAw FTAETELRES
ERMHELATRESR EEERESFE
MAGEANERFHRETRARE 7
TN EREREETRBRAE
ERIELSR SR (S IR

BHE_Z—+tF+_A=+—BLHF
g ¢&T§£ﬂﬂ&9§%4\ Bl AR QA
(T2 ZF A1) M100% RIS EIZE - A
SEEEERR BERBERAMESE
HRERAE HWUEAAFTHFH - BHEE
REFEFHTERFAEAFHSES
REMRE - FRE TN HARE
REZBBRRNEMRBREETAIR -

d
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (40

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. B EE @)
Impairment testing of intangible assets BRELEERENR
For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible asset has been ABETRENR  BEEEEO>EZ2UT
allocated to the following CGU. The carrying amount of intangible BeEABEN RZ_E—+F+ A=+
asset (net of accumulated impairment losses) at 31 December —B EBREEZEEEGIKERZ:HEE
2017 was allocated as follow: EE) s BRET
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Health industry fERES 221,095 122,150
For impairment testing, please refer to note 18 for details. ARERNS  FEF2EME18-
18. GOODWILL 18. &
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Cost Jo N
At 1 January n—HA—H 53,382 53,382
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39(a)) s BE Bt BB A =) (B aF 39(a)) 229,010 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(b)) & KT8 2| (M 2E400b)) (63,382) -
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 229,010 53,382
Accumulated impairment losses R BEEE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—B&+=A
=+—H - -
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December WN+=—_A=+—H 229,010 53,382
Impairment testing of goodwill GRS RER:E:

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to the following CGU. The carrying amount of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) at 31 December 2017 and 2016
was allocated as follow:

RETRENSA BECOEEATESE
EEBN - NR_T—tFR_T—RFT+
“A=t—B -BEZREEMGRZRE

BB DR T :
2017 2016
—F-—tFE  ZB-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T# R THT

Health industry fRRREZ

229,010 53,382
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(Continued)

—tF+-A=T—HLFE

Health industry

The recoverable amount of the “Medical Anti-aging and Health
Preservation Base” (2016: “Medical and Healthcare Industry
Investment Management”) segment as a CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period, and a pre-tax discount rate
of 12.21% per annum (2016: 12.79%). Cash flows beyond that
five-year period have been extrapolated using a terminal growth
rate of relevant industries. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry. Key assumptions
included gross margin and discount rate which were determined by
valuer and confirmed by the directors of the Company based on
past performance and its expectation for market development. The
values assigned to key assumptions are based on historical
experience, current market condition, approved forecasts and
consistent with external information sources. The directors of the
Company believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the carrying amount of the goodwill generated from the
relevant CGU exceed the aggregated its recoverable amount.

BEEZE
ERECELBUNIEENRELE
EEMI(2016: [BERERBREXKREE

) o Eea Wbl & 58 g E AEE
BEREBET -BeRsBAUMKAGAED
ENARREZMENTFHY BB
B HEBATMBE RS F1221%(ZF — X
F:12.79%) - BBZAFHMNELSRE
REHBTERGERR -ZHEERIE
REBTEERBIRTBAMABITE
WEHREBHIERR - TERABELRRD
AESEANBAREREEMBEED
BHAEETNEMNERERE -HFEE
BENHBEDERBAELS  BRimR
KL Y TR R K B2 A1 BT B R R R A — B
Mo AXRBEFHE EHETHRESE
%mﬁmzﬁﬁﬂ1#TEﬂAﬁTA
''''''' 2y gredyHEReEESEMNNE
ENEEEAERRETIKD S AR -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH T T T

Interests in associates, included in ABLE N T 2 RS

non-current assets: BIEEFERBEE
Share of net assets JE(REE & R REE F 96,405 79,325
Goodwill on acquisition recognised RE B Y E A A
by the Group FTEE £ Mg 2 114,867 47,803
Interests in associates REEERR 2w 211,272 127,128
Loan from associates i R/NEETE = - (12,300)
Dividend from the associate during the year FARE QRIS 2,650 =
Notes: k=3
(a) On 14 November 2017, the Group acquired 49% equity interests in (@) RZEBE—+E+—F+H0H NEFWKE
Shenzhen Wangi Marine Bio Tech Company Limited (“Shenzhen Wangqi”) YT EEESEEMBEAR AR (FEIY
at consideration of HK$90,025,000. BE ) 2 49% 0% 1 - 1B /90,025,000 T °
(b)  Loan from associates are unsecured, interest rate of 9% per annum and (b) AN TSR R EIRIR - F N E9y kAR

repayable on demand. BERER o
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In March 2016, the Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, together
with Ms. Zhu Yufei (“Ms. Zhu”) and other shareholders of Shenzhen
Aidigong Modern Maternity Health Management Co., Ltd., (“Aidigong”)
entered into an agreement with Perennial Healthcare Pte Ltd. in which (j)
the Group agreed to disposal of 14.26% equity interests in Aidigong at a
consideration of RMB92,690,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$107,014,000) and the fair value of residual interest of Aidgong of
approximately HK$69,930,000; (i) Ms. Zhu agreed to dispose 2.41%
equity interests in Aidigong; and (i) Ms. Zhu made a contribution of
RMB27,080,000 (equivalent to approximately of HK$31,265,000) to
Aidigong. Upon completion of the above transactions, the Group’s
interests in Aidigong will be decreased from 26.22% to 11.48% and result
Aidigong became an equity investment and were classified as available-
for-sale financial assets of the Group. The Group then recognised a gain
on disposal of an associate of approximately HK$28,999,000 in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

In May 2017, the equity interests of Allad Ophthalmology Group with
carrying amount of approximately HK$17,124,000 was disposed through
the disposal of a Group’s partially-owned subsidiary, Zhao Long
International Management Group Limited (“Zhao Long BVI”) (note 40(b)).

—tF+t-A=T—HLFE

RZE—ARE=-A KXEHE EBREEXE
MWEBAR  ERAXEFLTTRLLTD R
H R ETEBREEREEERSRA
AI([E %= |) B E - B Perennial Healthcare
PteLtdETiTﬁﬁ CBRB0ASERE LS

HE14.26% M 7 - 1EE A R ¥ 92,690,000
mmgﬁmmmmmMﬁwﬂ~%*
T & == & A F B 4 £69,930,0007 T ¢
WAXTRAELHEETZT241%RE: &
(iii) 7 % £ A A R # 27,080,000 7T (48 5 1A 49
31,265,000 L) T EEHE - LIl R 5%
K AEBERFHEEDT S M26.22% K #
[£Z11.48% ME T EKANE B DK E
BEARDERGEESCREE - NEETR
AEENREGERRANCIKR LS8 QA
Uz % #928,999,0007# 7T

RZE—+tFH A REERAEER
E {8 #) £17,124,0007 T 2 IR # @ i H
EAXAEEH DR 2 M B R FZhao Long
International Management Group Limited([ Zhao
Long BVI) ifn i & (Ff 3£ 40(b)) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Details of the Group’s associates, which are held indirectly by the AAFEEERE ZAEBE L QA R®
Company at the end of reporting period, are as follows: HFHROFBROT :

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting rights

Form of business  Place of Class of registered interest held
Name of associate and structure incorporation capital held by the Group  Principal activities
AEE S
P 5 i R FrEREERR
BEAREE ES TR AL RAER REELA TEEK
) B
Guangdong Fengyuan Huake Bio Incorporated The PRC Registered capital 22.72%  Research, development and
Tech Company Limited* manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products
B3R ERER AR Eaiij v B ERiigN W BRMEEREE R
BRAA
Yangxi Fengyuan Huake Incorporated The PRC Registered capital 22.72%  Research, development and
Agriculture Integrated manufacturing of
Development Company pharmaceutical products
Limited*
CREREMREFERE Tk F B ERigEN ME BERMBENEE D
BRAR
Shanyang Fengyuan Huake Bio  Incorporated The PRC Registered capital 22.72%  Research, development and
Tech Limited* manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products
I B3 2R ZE B A M R EaiifzavA F B ERiigN ME BERMBENEESD
BRAR
Shenzhen Wanqi Marine Bio Incorporated The PRC Registered capital 49.00%  Research, development and
Tech Company Limited* manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products
RN T & EE ¥ R Eaiifz VA F B ERigEN ME BERMBENEE SR
BRAR
Dragon Pride Enterprises Limited  Incorporated The British Virgin -~ Registered 26.50% Investment holding
Islands
HELCEBRAQA Elij v RBARRESE = REER
JP Partners Medical Centre Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 26.50%  Provision of medical services
Limited
HERBBHROLAERRQA Gl ava N EER REBERS
JP Partners Medical Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 26.50%  Provision of medical services
HHEERERAA EaiifzavA BB &Rk TR B R RS
Grand Glacier Group Limited Incorporated The British Virgin -~ Registered 26.50%  Provision of medical services
Islands
EINEBBR ARG Rl v RBARRES = REBERE
The Grand HD Endoscopy Centre Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 26.50%  Provision of medical services
Limited
mEBEERNRERLOERAR FMKL N Rl R B R R
Endoscopy Centre for Stomach  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 26.50%  Provision of medical services
Cancer and Colon Cancer
Limited
BRBEARERLOERAR MKk BH &K R B R IR S
* For identification purpose only * 2 (#t 24 5l
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\()TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REE N R 2 S @)
Material associate disclosures EXRBENTHEE
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information THIRRT EKRE L QR FE R
of the material associate and have been adjusted to reflect the fair 2 WEERAE RN RSB T ﬁ%
values of identifiable assets and liabilities at the completion dates of EHUEEERBEBZATE  WHELg
acquisition by the Group, and reconciled to the carrying amount in AU BHRRZEMBEYER:

the consolidated financial statements:

Shenzhen Wanqi I & R
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FET
Current assets MENE E 17,226
Current liabilities mENEE (1,987)
Net assets attributable to shareholders of the associates 5% /8 A B & A &) IR E 4% & & 15,239
Reconciliation to the Group’s investments in AARHEHENTNRE
the associates
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in the AEBRRYBHE 2 EEERER LA
Shenzhen Wanai 49%
Group’s share of net assets of the associates, AEBRBE RN FEESR
excluding goodwill FriG ke - T RIERmE 7,467
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by the Group REBRBEHEE 82,714
Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in the AEBRFYEHERS ZEREE
Shenzhen Wanqi 90,181
There is no commitment and contingent liability under the BME N BB EERSKAEE -
associates.
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N(')TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ_—_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 10. REEE AR 2= @)
Material associate disclosures (Continued) BEAREEQNTRE @
Shenzhen Wanqi (Continued) I &R (A
Other disclosures Hiig &=
2017
—E—t5F
HK$°000
FHET
Revenue PN 10,429
Profit for the period B 1,039
Profit for the period attributable to shareholders of 5B PO B 2 A B AR B &Y B L Ve A
the associate 1,039
Other comprehensive income for the period BA S H Ath 2 Uk s 42
Other comprehensive income for the period attributable 5% /& 74 B & A 7] A% 3R &9 B i
to shareholders of the associates Hfth 2 Wz 42
Share of the associates’ profit for the period HA R B 2 A | AR 5 A 509
Share of the associates’ other comprehensive income — 4E [ B 44 /1 7] % 48 H 4ib 2 [ U 25
for the year 21
BHERREELEEERATY —T—+54% [83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (40

)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBIE N TR 2= @)
Material associate disclosures (Continued) BEXEEQNTRE @
Fengyuan Group 2RE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHERT FAT
Current assets MENE E 191,615 193,154
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 29,654 28,430
Current liabilities mENEE (70,757) (105,432)
Net assets FEE 150,512 116,152
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR R A (7,947) (6,133)
Net assets attributable to shareholders of SEEBREE R RREREM
the associates FEE 142,565 110,019
Reconciliation to the Group’s investments in A2 A ¥ EE A TANIKRE
the associates
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interestin = AEB RN L REE 2 A
the Fengyuan Group 1 7 75 b 22.72% 22.72%
Group’s share of net assets of the associates, 7K £ B A Bt & A A1 R E &
excluding goodwill ERFEHRE T84
BmE 32,391 24,996
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by AEBRBEHEFE
the Group 17,943 17,943
Other reconciling items HibtpA1EE 51,737 42,069
Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in AEBRLREE#EZRZZ
the Fengyuan Group IR E 102,071 85,008
Notes: /Jﬁﬁaf .
0] Other reconciling items mainly represented (i) additional capital injection [0) EMHBABEFZRNIAEER T —X

184

attributable by the Group in 2016 and (i) exchange differences on

translating foreign operations.

(i)

There is no commitment and contingent liabilities under the associates.

FREBIINEDTERMBRE BN EBE

HER-

BERADREAEREIABE -
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N()TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ_—_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REE N Tl 2= @)
Material associate disclosures (Continued) BEAREEQNTRE @
Fengyuan Group (Continued) ZREE (&)
Other disclosures HiigE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&T
Revenue A 60,714 50,892
Profit for the year FEmH 24,746 15,094

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 53 B FA B & A & A% 3 &9
of the associate FEm 23,439 14,615

Other comprehensive income/(expense) for FEEMEEKZE (FAX)
the year 7,307 (201)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) for EBEBRBERRIRRENTE

the year attributable to shareholders of Hi 2wz ()
the associates 6,921 (163)
Share of the associates’ profit for the year FEBE N R RS F 5,622 3,429

Share of the associates’ other comprehensive  4F [ Bi 44 /A 7] % 42

income/(expense) for the year Hih 2@z () 1,660 (46)
The following tables illustrate the aggregate financial information of THXRRTAREBREZS DT TBREZR
the Group’s associates that are not individually material: B AN BEER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THT
./ [ /' | |
Share of the associates’ profit for the year REF Z B N B IR A s R 2,691 10,676
Share of the associates’ other comprehensive  FEEH 4 AR REEMEE
expense for the year i 32 - (158)
Share of net assets of the associates, B N A ERFEE
excluding goodwill recognised by the Group TEERAEERAIEE 4,810 12,260
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by AEBRERTHE
the Group 14,210 29,860

FHERREELEEERAT —S—+t454% [8)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—_T—tF+_A=+—HILtFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEEZRER
Details of the Group’s interest are as follows: NEFEEFZBFWOT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT TH& T
Cost of investments in joint ventures REELERE ZK A
Unlisted outside Hong Kong REBFINE LT 73,235 73,235
Amounts due from joint ventures R A & 1> F IR 60,330 60,330
133,565 133,565
Impairment loss recognised B R B B 18 (133,565) (133,565)
Details of the Group’s joint ventures, which are held indirectly by ARRRMERFBZIAEEG B ENR
the Company at the end of reporting period, are as follows: THRZFROT

Proportion of

ownership
interest
and voting
Form of business  Place of Class of rights held

Name of joint venture and structure incorporation shares held by the Group Principal activities
AEE &
FERERR

BRELEARE EL R HMAIEE  FrERGER RERLH ZBEHK

Golden Royce Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 40% Dormant
Investment Limited

SREBRBEERAA EEailiy2 v 0 L EEEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

21. SEESRMEE

2017 2016
—®-—tE ZE-AE
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHERT FAET
Unlisted shares: FEEMRD
Equity securities incorporated in A AR 1R K S B AR AR
the PRC (notes (a) and (b) =5 (Kt @ kb)) 76,395 71,217
Notes: Biat -
(@ Included in the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets of approximately (@ PBEREREAEEZFEREEEHL1,287,000
HK$1,287,000 (2016: HK$1,287,000) were unlisted equity investment in BL(ZZE— /N4 1,287,000 ) » A%
a private entity engaged in research and development of pharmaceuticals ER—FREYHREELRABEOALALEZ
products. The balances were stated at cost less impairment loss at the FELEmRE - RESEBAFEMGAE
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value AR UNBARAEERAEBFSEATFEE
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company consider that EA SRR PRSI R A & 58 AR AN R
their fair values cannot be measured reliably. During the year ended 31 EREBEEBIIE - BE-_S—+E+=-A8
December 2017, the Group identified no impairment loss related to the =t+t—RALEFER AEBHEANEFEIEL
unlisted equity securities (2016: HK$755,000). TRAZFHITERBEEBERE(ZFT —<F:
755,000 7T) °
() Included in the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets of approximately (o) PBEEAEEZFESBHEELT5108,000

HK$75,108,000 (2016: HK$69,930,000) were unlisted equity investment
in Aidigong. The balances were stated at cost less impairment because it
did not have a quote market price in an active market, the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant for these investments and
the directors of the Company considered the fair value cannot be
measured reliably. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
identified no impairment loss related to these investments.

BEERREEEXEEERAHE

T (—Z — N 1 69,930,000 7T) AR E
FEFLTRENKE - BERERTS
WETSRE HABQAFEGTHEE
AR URARRZEFRAEBREATEE
KA SR E RSB RO BRE LA ERR
EREBEINE - BE-_T—+tF+=-A
S+ HBLEFERN AEBYEHRNEEH
ELEMRAEFNRMERIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22 7% FANREREMERKIE
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TH&T
Deposits %4 3,443 1,220
Prepayments (note i) TEAS FRIB (M £ () 187,985 73,150
Other receivables (note i) H i 8 U SR (HY 22 (i) 28,645 45,655
220,073 120,025

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BIREBWETIER DT
Non-current JE BN HA 70,247 21,066
Current B HA 149,826 98,959
220,073 120,025

The directors of the Company consider that carrying amounts of
deposits paid and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

Notes:

(i) The prepayments mainly comprised of () prepaid land cost situated at
Luofu Mountain in Guangdong Province of approximately HK$21,613,000,
(i) prepaid construction and development costs for Luofu Mountain
projects of approximately HK$73,060,000 and (i) prepaid cost for
procurement of raw material and finished goods for health industry
business of approximately HK$75,435,000 (2016: HK$21,066,000,
HK$35,726,000 and HK$9,097,000 respectively).

(ii) As at 31 December 2017, the other receivables mainly comprised of
advance for cooperative medical research and development projects of
approximately HK$14,505,000. As at 31 December 2016, the other
receivables mainly comprised of advance for construction works of
approximately HK$33,538,000.

ARREEZRRCNRE R E M B UK
ZEEEREQAFERE -

et

() BNABEIEREOCRERE R T ILNTE
5 4 #b Ak AN 49 /21,613,000 7T - (i) 28 /% LU
18 B W5 I 7 2 K A 49 4 73,060,0000% 7T
Rt EE XX HHBRM A REK
2 FB R 4975,435,00008 7T (—ZF — ;N 4F ¢
2 Bl A21,066,0007% 7T+ 35,726,000 JT &
9,097,000/ 7T) °

(ii) R-ZE—tF+_A=+—8 HiEK
ENREBEETEREAEBEERAMAEE
B K F8 2 493 14,505,000 7T » R =& —
ANE+ZAZ+—HB HtERFEBEEE
B 15 18 5 T2 78 3 3IE 49 3% 33,538,000 %8
5T o
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The Group generally allows an average credit period ranging from
30 to 90 days (2016: 30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts), at the end of the reporting period:

AEB—RATHEZEFL N FI0ED
B(ZZ— X4 :30290H)WEHEE
Hio JEIE S 3008 (0 REREE) Rk &
HRZER>TWOT :

2017 2016
—®-—tE  ZB-AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# THR

0 to 30 days TE=1H 12,352 8,377
31 to 60 days =+—=/,"1H - 167
121 to 180 days —BZ=Zt+—Z—BNA+AH 62 -
181 to 365 days —BNt+t—Z2=ZBEA~THA 251 12
Over 365 days —AA~NTEBMUE 106 139

12,771 8,695

Trade receivables of HK$419,000 (2016: HK$151,000) were neither
past due but not impaired. The outstanding amounts were contract
bound. The management have assessed the credit history of the
aforesaid trade receivables and concluded that there is no adverse
change on the credit quality of these customers and considered
these trade receivables are recoverable.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group or with sound financial background. For any significant
amounts past due, the Group would actively seek repayment from
the debtors and the Group would enforce its legal right to the
contractually due amount when considered necessary. There have
been no disputes over the balances due from these customers,
therefore the balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

B 5 W FKIEA419,0008 T (ZF —RF -
151,00078 7T) R R BLEA 7R R OBUME © 5% F A
AEETEXAVOR -EEEEHEL
BMEHEBRZEERE BRAEZEEFP
ZEEEZRYESNEHGERAZEFE
5 FEMGRIR AT e m -

AEECDHFIAEZEEBR At EE
HARGUFZEEEZ - AKETYER
WHBER BREEREABZFRKE
HRBAZEERR -

BHERBENERIEERZRAE
BRHROTECHIBEAREVHS
ENBYUEFPBER - HRBAHNKER
B ASERBESEREBABIRFK M
AEBEELEREH S NI HF AT
HERBEN Y ERZEFREEF &
BRel UL MR EERBR /A 2K
[B] o 7N 5% [ 30 4 L 7% A4S R A A (R R

=
op °
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2017 2016
—®-t%® ZB-XF
HK$’000 HK$000
T THR

Finished goods BURK oA

5,092 18,046

The directors of the Company have assessed the net realisable
values and condition of the Group’s inventories as at 31 December
2017 and have considered no write-down of obsolete inventories
to be made (2016: HKS$NI).

On 27 September 2012, the Company, as lender, entered into a
loan agreement with Champion Dynasty, as borrower, and Mr.
Cheung Wai Kuen, as an individual guarantor, and Guangdong
Allad Commercial Development Company Limited* (&5 BIR{ER
¥R AMR AT, as a corporate guarantor, to grant a three-year
revolving loan facility of up to HK$220,000,000 to Champion
Dynasty at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum. The
loan was carried with the term of repayable on demand clause.

On 2 October 2015, the Company, as lender, renewed the loan
agreement with Champion Dynasty, as borrower, and Mr. Cheung
Wai Kuen, as an individual guarantor, to grant a three-year revolving
loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000 to Champion Dynasty at an
interest rate of 10% per annum. The loan was carried with the term
of repayable on demand clause.

On 21 December 2016, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement to increase the interest rate of the three-year revolving
facility from 10% per annum to 11% per annum.

ARBEEEHR -_T—tF+-_A=
+—BASEGREZAERFAELERK
MELFTE REREEEGFEFETR
B(ZE—RF L) -

RZE——FhLA-++H X2FAE
/% & 77 ) B2 Champion Dynasty ({E & & 75)
MEEBEEEABAERRA)RER
BESEHEERERAANEARAE
R A)ETS — 1) B3 1% 3% - [ Champion
Dynasty 2 ft — £ & % 220,000,000/% 7T 2
“FHBRRERBRE HWERZEANEXA
EBBRITREREN25% - ZEERTY
FIEIREREEKR -

W_ZE—RAE+A-H AQ2a(FAE
75 ) B2 Champion Dynasty ({E &2 7 ) R R &
BEREWERBAERA) EFIL—H
B 1 3 > A Champion Dynasty 12 fft — &
% %200,000,000% 7T 2 = F H 18 I B &K
BE MERZFEFNEE10% - ZEEK
KESREEGRTETT -

RZE—AR"F+_A=+—8 KQFF]
N a G AEN=FEHERE R
FIE  AFEFEI0%EMNEI1% -
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25. LOAN TO A SHAREHOLDER (Continued) 25. B FREE K@)
Details of the loan were set out in the Company’s circular dated 2 EXFHBEOLHEHIWAAAGEBHAE T —
November 2015 and announcement dated 21 December 2016. AF+—AZBzZBREBHAE-ZT—

NE+_AZ+—BzR%-

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year 2017 2016
Name of a shareholder FRES
BRRERB REZSHE —E—tfF —ZE—RF
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET THERT FHET
Champion Dynasty 162,291 49,143 77,547
26. SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE 26. EWRBEREKRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Loans receivable FEURE 5K
With no guarantee (note (i) EmYER (ML) 40,200 58,200
Carrying amount within one year (note (ii)) —F R EWAREE (M) 40,200 58,200
Notes: Wit
(0] Loans receivable are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and carried at (ii) FEWE R ABITEHE S Wig12% (—ZF — X
fixed effective interest of 12% (2016: 8% to 10%) per annum. F 8% E10%) METEREMEEE -
(ii) The following is an aged analysis for the loans receivable at the end of the (i) RIREBHKRERETNERSTOT -
reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
1 ) S
31 to 60 days 31Z260H 10,000 -
61 to 90 days 61£290H - 17,000
Over 90 days 90H M E 30,200 41,200
40,200 58,200
Total short-term loans receivable at 31 December 2017 and 2016 R EBE—F+ER - E—XNE+_-_A=+
was not past due. The amount due are based on the scheduled — AR A ERE . B H S
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. All loans are ELhREEFBERIHFETEE R Bt
repayable within one year. H-FTBERER —FURERE -

FHERREELEEaRAT —=—+t44% (9]
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Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are denominated in HK$
and RMB which made for varying periods between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates.

The time deposits carry interests at prevailing market deposit rates
and mature within one month. The Group does not hold collateral
over the balances.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank and cash balances
denominated in RMB are approximately HK$30,387,000 (2016:
HK$14,862,000).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, based on the
invoice date:

RITASBREREARTHERMNENF
P EREBMANE - EHAEHERAB TR
ARBFHE HENF-AEZ=EA &
FAREEAKRESFRKME  LIXARE
HTE HA7F 3R R BREA B

THEREER MBS FRAERGFE X
R—EAREE - REBEILEAERTA
RIS

RZF—EF+ZA=+t—H A %HE
ZRITIRBEEHRBEARESE OB
30,387,000/ 7T (= F — 7N 4 + 14,862,000
BIT) °

ARBYAATERLASEMER &
- AR & B KB e CONE B IR R B &
(HE - SERNEBTERT) AEEE
RFFEBERBEETINEZRFORTHE
ARBHBBEMEY -

REZEEHRFEZRNESZRAZRK
oM

2017 2016
—F-—tEF —F-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TB R FHT

0 to 30 days TE=+H 732 =
181 to 365 days —BNt—Z2=ZAA~THH 58 1,333
Over 365 days Z—EA~ATHREBANRE 34 62

824 1,395

The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges from O to 30
days.

EREARTHFHEEH RN FOE
30H -
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29. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

20. BEtRE BHRERHME

OTHER PAYABLES 38
2017 2016
—E—-tE —TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH T T T
Accruals FEST 3B 10,777 6,203
Other payables (note (i) H b & A FE (B 2E () 18,302 21,483
Receipt in advance (note (i) T8 U FRIB (AT 2 (i) 39,733 1,531
68,812 29,217

Notes: Hiat -

(i) Other payables mainly comprised of approximately (@) HK$Nil (2016:
HK$3,354,000) consideration payable to third parties for potential land
acquisition; (b) HK$5,737,000 (2016: HK$10,182,000) temporary received
from third parties for development of the Luofu Mountain project; and (c)
HK$9,355,000 (2016: HK$4,036,000) interest payable for the convertible
notes, guaranteed notes and bonds payable.

(ii) Receipt in advance mainly comprised of (a) HK$28,742,000 (2016:
HK$1,500,000) of deposits received from customers on sales of raw
materials and finished goods of natural health food under healthy industry
business and (b) HK$6,600,000 (2016: HK$NIl) of deferred income for
medical beauty business.

30. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

The Group leased an office equipment under a finance lease. The
lease term is 5 years. Interest rate underlying all obligations under a
finance lease is fixed at 12.74% per annum. The Group could
purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the
lease terms. Lease is on fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

[0} HiENFBEIEBENAQEME =T
EABELHEBERONTAT(ZT—X
F 13,354,000/ 7T) ¢ (o) EEFUENE = H 1E
REZIEBERIE R 2 FIE 45,737,000 T
— T — X% 110,182,000/ 7T) : K (o)A i
BRER EREBRREMEFHEMSTFE
499,355,000 7T (= T — 7N 4F : 4,036,000
TT) e

i) FERREIZOFEQBREEEESEETHR
HEARERERARMHRERRKRE
P 2 & £28,742,000 ;L( = & — X F ¢
1,500,000/ 7T) + M) EEERER 2T
U 6,600,000/ T (— B —N4F : T TT) °

30. MEHESE

AEEREMEHEHEE —BERQE
R -HHASLF BMEHEMARLEZ
ERNXEBEERTFI1274% XK HE
ARMEERRUAEEREE RE - HERE
EEREE  WERRRBESMNKETIE
fa] 22k o
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30. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 30. MEMESFE @
(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum lease RBEHER ERAEZRARKRFERAER
payments under finance lease and present value were as follows: D RIRENT

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payment

BEHAEMNR EEREARZERE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—t& —E—RE —E-t% —E-RF
+=A=+-B +ZA=+—H +=ZB=+-BH +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAER FTHT TER FTHL

Amounts payable under afinance 1R 35 7 4 T &+

lease within one year FE—FR 35 6 31 6
35 6 31 6

Less: future finance charges W AEREER (4 - - -
Present value of lease obligation MEEAZHE 31 6 31 6

Less: Amount due for settlement WoRtT=ZEAR

within 12 months I EEEL
(shown under current HIB (21
liabilties) mBEE) (6) ©)
Amount due for settlement R+ {8 A% 5
after 12 months BB ZE 25 -
The Group’s obligation under a finance lease is secured by the AEEMHRERESTREBEAHMAME
lessor’s charge over the leased asset with the carrying amount of EEEZHIZEER ZEEEREEAELN A
approximately HK$31,000 (2016: HK$6,000). 31,0008 7L (ZF — 7~ : 6,000/ L) °
All obligation under a finance lease is denominated in Hong Kong FERMEREEMUBTAE-:

dollar.
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Number of Share
shares capital
BB ;&S
‘000 HK$ 000
T iz FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRAEE.01/E T2 T @Ak
Authorised: ETERRA ¢
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 RZE—RFEF—H—8"
1 January 2017 and —E-RE+ZA=1+—8"
31 December 2017 —E—+ttF—HA—BK
—Z—tH+=-H=+—H 80,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBITRBERAE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and WHR-_ZT—<F—HA—H
1 January 2017 —E—RF+A=+—HEK
——+F—H—H 2,596,255 25,962
Issued in consideration for the acquisition BIAIMNWERB AT 2
of a subsidiary (note) RAE (Hf i) 400,000 4,000
and 31 December 2017 —E—+tE+=-_H=+—H 2,996,255 29,962

Note: During the year, 400,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company were
issued in relation to acquisition of Golden Time Ventures (note 39(a)).

Miek - RAER ARATRUESFARHE
39(a)) 1M 2 77 400,000,000 f ¥ & B -
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32.

196

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

32. IR ERE

2017 2016
—®-tF C—B-x%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHB T
| |

Liability component aEHs
Current liabilities mEEE 75,480 15,039
Non-current liabilities eI UN=K - 70,496
75,480 85,535
Derivative component THET A 7,316 7,006
82,796 92,541

On 11 January 2016 and 5 August 2016, the Company issued
convertible notes due on the second anniversary of the date of
issuance with a principal amount of HK$1,000,000 and
USD10,000,000 and both carried at interest rate of 9% coupon
rate per annum (the “2016 CBs”). The convertible notes were
issued for general working capital of the Group and for the
development of existing healthcare business of the Group. The
convertible notes were recognised as liabilities and derivative
embedded components upon initial recognition, and are convertible
into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.858 and
HK$0.70 respectively. The effective interest rates are ranging from
17.62% to 39.44%.

RZZE—AFEF—A+—BR-ZZ—XF
NAREB ARAGBBTWMFHASEA
1,000,000 7T & 10,000,000 7T #) A ¥
R EE - HEmFF X5 59%([20164F
A EE]) - BT RBRERAREE
— ML EESRBEEREZREEEY
H-maREBZAEERRATETEE
BEUGERE YENKERED B
0.8587% 7T X 0.70B L LR A R A &K E
BB L2 2 HE AL BARMGD - B
R R E517.62% 2 39.44% °

COMMON SPLENDOR INTERNATIONAL HEALTH INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

On 17 December 2015, the Company issued convertible notes due
on the second anniversary of the date of issuance with a principal
amount of HK$16,000,000, which carried 9% coupon rate per
annum respectively (the “2015 CB”). The convertible notes were
issued for general working capital of the Group and for the
development of existing healthcare business of the Group. The
convertible notes were recognised as liabilities and derivative
embedded components upon initial recognition, and are convertible
into fully paid ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.858. The
effective interest rate is 17.37%.

On 18 December 2017, the Company had repaid the 2015 CB
without conversion on the maturity date.

On issuance of the convertible notes, the fair value of the derivative
component, representing the embedded derivative of the
conversion option, is determined using an option pricing model and
this amount is carried as a derivative component of the liability until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the liability component and is carried as a
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The derivative component is measured at fair value
on the issue date and any subsequent changes in fair value of the
derivative component are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

W-_ZT—AF+_A++tH AQ7FHE
77 W 4 B K < 8 /516,000,000 7% JT &Y A #
fEE - EEEFMNEY A% ([2015F
AMBREE]) FHTURBREEAAEE
—REEESRERBEICREEXZ
A-AREBZEBERRANETAE
AR A WA A A # % {£0.858
BILEBRARAEREENOIE T, &5
BRZEERRSD - BWFEEB17.37% °

R-ZE—tF+-A+/\BH ARREZE
B-_Z-hFARERE RIHBBLE
i

EERTABERE  TETALIORF
BENESREENRAANTETR) &%
R EEREMIETE MK EHR
BOoRGBER, BEEEBRABRETT
MBS AER ENEE -TEERTA
REZETAMITATAS D 2R FED
REBYH N FENE EHFANBERTDRE

=7
s ©
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—tF+t-A=T—HLFE

The convertible notes recognised in the statement of financial MR ERPERO A EBREIENGTE
position were calculation as follows: PN
2015 CB 2016 CBs Total
20154 2016
CIE-J:'8% CIE:): 8 R
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FA T FA&T FAET
. ! ! ' ' ||
Liability component =REE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 14,152 14,152
Issued of convertible notes BITABREKRER 68,598 68,598
Interest expenses (note 10) MERX (Fit10) 2,385 4,571 6,956
Interest paid BT F B (1,498) (2,673) (4,171)
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZZE—XRF+_A=+—H
1 January 2017 rE=—Z—+F—H—H 15,039 70,496 85,535
Interest expenses (note 10) M BBz (At 10) 2,401 12,290 14,691
Interest paid BFE (1,440) (7,306) (8,746)
Repayment of convertible notes 18 i 7] # i% (& 2 (16,000) - (16,000)
At 31 December 2017 R==—+tH&+=HA=+—H - 75,480 75,480
Derivative component TTET AR
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"FE—H—H 1,582 - 1,582
Issued of convertible notes WITR AR EE - 7,182 7,182
Fair value adjustment N EHAE (1,462) (296) (1,758)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—XRF+-_HA=+—H
1 January 2017 rE—F—+F—H—H 120 6,886 7,006
Fair value adjustment NFEERE (120) 430 310
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tE+=-HA=+—H - 7,316 7,316
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The following was the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting periods:

UTHAEERAREHNELBERS
HEELREZI2REEHBAGB(CH®

REE)RES

Property,

Intangible plant and
assets equipment Total

M HEBER
EBREE RiE o E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FHET

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RE—H—H = 32 32
Credit to the consolidated statement of RieBEaRkEME2EKRER
profit or loss and other comprehensive %
income - - -
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—R"E+ZA=+—H
E_Z—+%—-H—H - 32 32
Charge to the consolidated statement of profit R ABREEME2EE R R
or loss and other comprehensive income el - 83 83
Acquisition of subsidiaries W H B A A 14,834 = 14,834
31 December 2017 —2-tF¥+=A=t+-H 14,834 115 14,949

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$609,612,000 (2016: HK$666,190,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

REBEFBEEEMETE - s B ERR
B-ZZN\F-—A-BRAKRIUENE
IRH) BB ZABMTEMM - R ASK B A2
HEREZRRONKERERZENA
BRARRAGEAGEME - FH it I 3t B
MEBARMMBUGEMNEENEREZRAE
FAVHHRRELCHA -

RZEBE—+HE+-A=+—8 ~A&EH
RSB ARENER AR ZHE
€518 49 5 609,612,000/ 7T (Z & — )N F
666,190,000 7T ) ° B 7 7K 88 78 8| B 18 &
FIRFE MAEEBTEBRRABELEHREE
E-MEBEADBZHESBAUERBRAE
};’g °
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Guaranteed notes:

On 21 December 2016, the Company issued guaranteed notes
due 15 August 2018 with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000. As at 31 December 2017, the net proceeds of
the issued guaranteed notes received by the Company were
approximately HK$99,479,000, with total issue cost amounting to
approximately HK$521,000 guaranteed notes are interest bearing
at 11% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the effective interest
rate for the guaranteed notes is 11.61% per annum (2016: 11.61%
per annum). The Group recognised approximately HK$11,250,000
(2016: HK$330,000) (note 10) of interest expense on the
guaranteed notes for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The carrying amount of the guaranteed notes as at 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$99,710,000 (2016: HK$99,494,000).

The obligations of the Company under the guaranteed notes are
guaranteed by (i) the shares of Sassoon Global Limited and Harvest
Luck; and (i) undertaking granted from Champion Dynasty and Mr.

BEREE:

R-E—RF+_A-_+—H XAA*
77 2 31 4 100,000,000 7T * R Z 8 —
NENATHEBEBAZEREE RZF
—tE+-A=+—8  AREUWREETT
ERZEEANFFEL H99,479,000/8 7t » #
1T B AN #9 2521,0005 7T © 1R Z 4% = 7
R E11% o

HE-_Z—tFE+_A=+—8BL#F
E EREBHEBMNEAEETF11.61%
(ZZE—RNF: EFF1161%)c AEER
HE2-_ZT—+tF+-_A=Z+—HLFE
T R 4911,250,00008 7L ( = T — X F ¢
330,000/ 7T) R EEFI 2 F 2 (B &F
10) °

RZE—+tF+ A=+ —HHERE
EIRMEED /99,710,000 7T ( Z & — X
£ : 99,494,000) °

ARARRERZEBENEREBATHE()
Sassoon Global Limited 2 & 2% 2 Ix 7 : &
(i\Champion Dynasty #ll 5% (& #& %t 4 i & &

Cheung Wai Kuen. Details of the information were set out in the HoHMERNERARA ZE—XRF+=
Company’s announcements dated 15 December 2016. A+HRBRE LHE-
Long-term and short-term bonds payable: REREHESES
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAT
! __________________________________________'/ ! ' | |
At 1 January ®R—H—H 67,164 -
Initial recognition, net of related expenses Ve TER - MR MEAZ T 48,402 66,669
Repayment E§s (7,000) -
Imputed interest expenses (note 10) HETF B ER (HE10) 14,644 1,531
Interest paid B F B (4,148) =
Interest payable FEAS FI B (5,182) (1,036)
At 31 December WN+=A=+—H 113,880 67,164
Current liabilities mBEE 21,183 5,680
Non-current liabilities FmEBAE 92,697 61,484
113,880 67,164
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Long-term and short-term bonds payable: (Continued)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
issued long-term bonds due between July 2018 and
December 2019 with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$67,600,000. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of the long-term bonds were approximately
HK$60,989,000, The long-term bonds are interest bearing at
6% per annum. The net proceeds were used for general
capital of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
issued new long-term bonds due between January 2019 and
November 2020 with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$49,000,000. As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate
carrying amount of the long-term bonds were approximately
HK$48,453,000. The long-term bonds are interest bearing at
6% per annum. The net proceeds were used for general
capital of the Group.

The long-term bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. The effective interest rates are ranging from
10.39% to 10.40% per annum. Imputed interest of
approximately HK$12,989,000 (2016: HK$1,512,000) (note
10) was recognised in profit or loss during the year.

On 7 December 2016, the Company issued a short-term
bonds due in December 2017 with the aggregate principal
amount of HK$7,000,000. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of short-term bonds were approximately
HK$5,680,000. The short-term bonds are interest bearing at 4%
per annum. The net proceeds were used for general capital
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, HK$7,000,000 of
principal of the short-term bond issued in 2016 was repaid.
On 7 December 2017, the Company issued a short-term
bond with the aggregate principal amount of HK$5,000,000
due in December 2018. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of the short-term bond was approximately
HK$4,438,000. The short-term bond is interest bearing at 4%
per annum. The net proceeds were used for general capital
of the Group.

The short-term bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. The effective interest rate are 20.28% per
annum. Imputed interest of approximately HK$1,655,000 (2016:
HK$19,000) (note 10) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year.

—tF T+ A=+—HILFE

RUENREHERSES (@

@

EEERREEEXERERRATY —T—

BHE-_FT—X"F+-_A=+—81

FE ARABHTR_ZT—-NFL
AZ-ZT-AFt+-_A2HNEH

&%+ AN & 4238 567,600,000 T °
)\54\:7 /\¢+ )EJ JF H &
B & % /9 AR T & 49 /260,989,000 %
T RBBEHFWETF6% - ATIS N
BEFBERAEAEBR —RES -

BHE-_Z—+tF+=A=+—H
EFE ARABTRZZTE—IEF
—AE-_ZT-_ZTF+ - AFHHN
REIE % - &N £ 4 %8 49,000,000
BT -RZE—tF+=ZA=+—
H EHESFMATEEENA
48,453,000/ 70 - REIESEK BB F
6% FTISR B FREAEAEE— K
B e

EHESFMMUNBESRK AN E - &
A F R 75 10.39% £ 10.40% 2 [
BT F B 4 512,989,000/8 T (=&
7N 01,512,000 70) (B sE10) A A
FEFFABE -

RZE—XRNF+_A+H ' KRQF

1T 25 A ¢ & 47,000,000 7T

R-ZE—+FE+-_AEHP2EHE
F - RZZE—RNF+ZA=+—H
MHESMREEL 55,680,000%
ﬁoﬁ%%%iﬂTﬁw>Ewm
BERARARIHN—MEEESD -

HE-_FEZ—tFt+=-_A=+—81
FE R ANEFEBITHNEHE
% K 47,000,0008 LB EEE -
T—+E+-_AtA  AQAFE
AR T N\F+-AFHNEH
& % » /N4 4 %8 /55,000,000 Tt °
R—_ZE—+E+-_A=+—H" 8
B {E %4 1 BR M (B %) 54,438,0007%8
Lo BBESNESF4% - TR
EFHEAEAER—RED -

MHEFMMUNESRK AT E &
B4 F R 520.28% ¢ BT Fl B4 A
1,655,000/ 7T (= F — 7 £F : 19,000
BET) (M 10 RARFEFAEB -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—T—+F+-_H=-+—HLFE

35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35 MITRHEMEBE
Bank and other borrowings comprised of: RITREMEERIE:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Bank borrowings, unsecured (note (i) SRITEE - |IEE (B E0) 7,204 -
Other borrowings, unsecured (note (i) EM(EE - |8 (0 a2 ) 5,000 -
Total borrowings BrEE 12,204 -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHT
e e S S
Carrying amount repayable: AIEEMREE :
Within one year or on demand —FRHBREK 12,204 =
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The bank borrowings with carrying amount of approximately 0] AR H (B 3E 497,204,000/ TTHY SR 1TE E B A
HK$7,204,000 are carried at fixed rate. The annual interest rate of the TEREE B o il B2 EF & 56.96% ©
above loan was 6.96%. The principal is repayable within one year. RNEAR—EREE o
(i) At 31 December 2017, the other borrowings of HK$5,000,000 was (ii) R-ZE—+E+-_HA=+—RB - HEMEE
provided by an independent third party. The interest rate was charged at 5,000,000 T i — BB E = HigM-
9.00% per annum. The principal is repayable within one year. FERERDIR.00% W EL - KE A RN —FERNIE
B o
The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following NEFBEBETIA TN EEEHE
currencies:
2017 2016
—E-tF C"T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
e e S S
Hong Kong Dollar BT 5,000 -
RMB AR 7,204 -
12,204 =
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 11 October 2012.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(@)

(b)

(©)

The primary purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 10 October 2022.

The eligible participants include:

(1)

any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive director of the Company and non-
executive director of the Company) of any member of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity
(“Invested Entity”);

any independent non-executive directors of the
Company of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other support (technical or otherwise)
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser or consultant (professional or otherwise) to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

ARARBRBER-_Z——-F+A+—H
BOZBRRAFAGLABBZ —HEA
IRFRRA—ABRE & (R s

gl -

BRRETS TR RFBAWT

@ BEEFISENGERZEER

AEBEMEZER  AK

E ft 82

Bk [l 4 -

b BEREFEFR-_F__F+A+
B & im o

© AREMSHEER:

(1)

BEERREEEXEEERAHE

ARRBMERIKE R A]HEALM
& R RERMER(HRE
RADzENEE(TwREZSR
BRB BREMARFHR
TEERARAFNITESR):

REBEMRKE QA HAEM
RERRZERMARBIBLI
WITES:

REBERMKE DA HAEM AR
BE QR EE Y SR MR
Z AR ER

REEIFIKE QA SAEM A
BRERRZEMEP

AREBEFKE QA HAEM AR
REQARRERHMELEMTE
Bt (T w2 5 B R e E)
BER A LR AA

REEEMKE R RIS AE [P
BRERAZEMRKRRKAEE
ERKERRISERMMAKER
RIBMT2ARNIZHF2EMFER
A

REBEFKE QA HAEM A
REQRRZEMNEBBERE
BRI E 2 EAE A AR
A(TwmetBEXMEE) &
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204

(€)

The eligible participants include: (Continued)

(S)

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint ventures,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

and, for the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, any grant
may be made to any company controlled by one or more
eligible participants.

Maximum number of Shares:

(1)

The overall limit on the number of share which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not exceed 30% of the shares in issues
from time to time. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
259,625,000 Shares, which represent 8.66% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the report.

Subject to the above overall limit, the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and all other share option scheme of the Group must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may refresh
the General Scheme Limit subject to approval of the
shareholders in general meeting, provided that the
General Scheme Limit as refreshed must not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of the
approval of the refreshed limit.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable by the grantee upon acceptance of the grant of
share options. Share options may be exercised at any time
during the period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors of the Company, but in any event no later
than ten years from the date of grant but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

»

BERZEERE: (B)

\

Dagh% EBBBELEM
¥R BAEEZ
BREKEEDL (AT REFEH)
B Bt 2 A fe] Lt 48 51 2 AR B
LEE

Z
= X

)

MpBRESEMS - FAH—F
SN EAERSRERF ZEAA
EEd

Btz BEHA -

(1) REBEEREFELAEEZF
o] B BE AR A 5T 2 2 3% BB 1)
REATE 2 (E{A) 18 AR 77 1 B A B
BOFERAETIRNDEE 2
BERTE TEBBTEE %
1T 230% o B A% 4 5 &) Al
217 I 9 48 51 & 259,625,000
B BAREEHEREBBE
BT AN 48 388.66% ©

2 WELAZEBRE BRERE
A% 7 5T &) & A & B E A H A
BEREFESTELHZMERE
AR HEEFT i Al ge B 4T 2 B 1D
RE - EEIAFSHBBERERE
EEBAEREBITRG
10% ([ — MR ETEIBREE]) o AR
AIARRE RS FERERE
ZERATEN —METEIRE
MEEH 2 —BETEIREIE
BAEHREEMERZE %
1TR& 5 10% °

AR N BT B A P HRRE BRE B ST
1.008 T2 NAIREIRBARE -
BEREAINARREZTSETE kil
Al MEARBERITE  ERERB
ATRER/R L BHMEFT +F %
BIBEREFEBERFLLME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

()  The subscription prices for shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the board of directors
of the Company, but shall not be less than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares at stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of offer
for the grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer
for the grant; and

(8)  the nominal value of the shares.

(9 Share options granted should be accepted within 21 days
from date of offer.

(h)  Share options granted vested at the date of grant.

(i) Share options are valid for a period from 18 December 2012
to 10 October 2022 (both days inclusive) with remaining life of
approximately 4.5 years as at the date of this report and can
be exercisable in full or in part. The share options granted can
be exercised since 18 December 2012 until they are
exercised or lapsed.

On 18 December 2012, the Company granted an aggregate of
168,000,000 share options, carrying the right to subscribe for the
ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company, under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 11 October 2012 to a director of the Company, and
certain employees and consultants of the Group.

H BEREFESEINZKROABEEARMH
ARAEFEETE HEIABERMNU
T=FEHZ&H&S

1) BORKHZZHBEHNER
FTERREXRMIKRG KT
=

@ BOREERLZEQBEHA
hEEXARBIMANEZS
A#EXRMI 2 FHRTE :
&

@ My zmE{E-

@ BhHZBREZARELNHBBE21
HAER -

h FAROZBEERROBHES -

() EBEREZESHHB-_ZE—=-F+=
A+ \BEE-_Z-—-F+A+H
IHBREEEMAERN)  RARE
BEASR TEELA5E - WA ITESD
ko e IREEREATHR-T
——F+-_At+ /N \BRITE BE
HEITERRM -

A

T——_F+_A+ N8 BEXQF
T —_F+ A+ BEMNZERE
CARNRBER—NNARREENAE
=T IR E MEMBREA 168,000,000
HERE WERBAQGRAPESRE
BOO1B Tz EBRZHEF -

A

o S K

B )|

Ji]
;
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On 5 November 2014, the Company granted an aggregate of
16,680,000 share options, carrying the right to subscribe for the
ordinary share at HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company, under the Share Option adopted by the Company on 11
October 2012 to directors of the Company, and certain employees
and consultants of the Group.

On 5 January 2016, the Company granted an aggregate of
35,800,000 share options, carrying the right to subscribe for the
ordinary share at HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company, under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 11 October 2012 to directors of the Company, and
certain employees and consultants of the Group.

Details of the share options were as follows:

Grant date
EHEHH

Exercise period

TESH

18 December 2012
—T-——_F+ZA+/\H —T-—_F+ZAT+N\RE

-+ A+H

5 November 2014
—E—NNFE+—ARAZE
E—pNFE+—FAHH —E—RAF+—AWMAH

5 January 2016
—E-RF-HAAHZE

—2-AFE-AnA —E-tF—AMA

—tF+t-A=T—HLFE

18 December 2012 to 10 October 2022

5 November 2014 to 4 November 2015

5 January 2016 to 4 January 2017

T—NWE+—ARH RBEKXADR]
E-—FF+ AT —HEMHZHEBRE
% AARBEMARREERAERS
T 8 MM H 4 $£16,680,00017 fE I
M B RIEALRERAS TR EEOO
BT AR 2 REF o

fﬂi%

W_ZE—XNE—FRB BEBELARIR
R _Ft+ A+ BERMNZERE
2 ARBRERAARABEERAEERE
T & 8 X% EE M % H & $£35,800,00017 B A%
M B REALRERAS FREEOO
BT TR REF o

HZEBREZFEBOT

Fair value
Exercise price at grant date

TE REBPZAYE

HK$0.315 HK$0.186
0.315% 7T 0.186/%8 7T
HK$0.750 HK$0.0495
0.7507% 7T 0.0495 7% 7T
HK$0.750 HK$0.1071
0.7507% 7T 010714 7T
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The fair value of the share options granted on 18 December 2012,
5 November 2014 and 5 January 2016 are determined using a
binomial option pricing model by an independent professional
valuer. The following table lists the significant inputs to the model
used at the date of grant.

RZE——F+-_A+N\H - ZZF—UF
+—RARABERZE-—XR"F-ARAED
CEBREATENHEETGHME_IE
AN TEERAETE - TRIHNITELEA
HETABAZEZHALE -

18 December 5 November 5 January
2012 2014 2016
—E-=F —E-mEF —E-REF
+=A+N\H +—A&A —HAAH

Grant date

BHE A

Grant date share price (HK$) B HREGET)
Exercise price (HK$) 116EE (BoT)
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA K 1@ (%)

Share option life (years) FE AR 5 (4F)

Dividend yield (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

e 8.2 (%)
A 2 B ) K (%)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over certain historical periods. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on the
management of the Company’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares in respect
of which may be issued upon exercise of share options granted
and remain outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was nil
(2016: 35,800,000), representing 0% (2016: 1.38%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date.

0.315 0.55 0.67
0.315 0.75 0.75
93.04 48.99 52.38

9.8 1.0 1.0
1.504 0.00 0.000
0.665 0.13 0.111

BHREEBEXRABE - THRARA
BENGBEREBETE RAMAERFH
BARREEBN&EMRI A EE
- TERIERTREEARELRAE -

RIEBRK BREBEREFIERE R
MARITEZERIEETFEEATEREITY
D E B Ao (= Z — 754 : 35,800,000
fE)  HERAQXRRZBEZEBEITRMD
Z20%(ZZF—784F  1.38%) °
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 36. B EEE @)
The following share options were outstanding under the Share RERNBEBREFEBTIEHRTEZER
Option Scheme during the year: =N
2017 —E -+t
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Name of categories 1 January during during during 31 December
of participants 2017 the year the year the year 2017
R=-T—+tF R=-T—+tF
—A—H +=ZBA=+-—H
SREEHER i RATHE FARE FRTE FREY 5 RATE
' ' ' ' '/ ! | |
Directors =
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian EmMBLAE 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) -
Mr. Lin Jiang w IR 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
Mr. Mai Yang Guang B ELE 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
Mr. Yau Chi Ming EERELE 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) -
Consultants BB
In aggregate @t 12,700,000 - - (12,700,000) -
Employees E&
In aggregate st 10,100,000 - - (10,100,000) -
35,800,000 - - (35,800,000) -
Exercisable at the end RE LA
of the year -
Weighted average MEFHITER - -

exercise price
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 36. B R AET & (@)
The following share options were outstanding under the Share RERNEBREFEBTITEHRTEZER
Option Scheme during the year: (Continued) M (&)
2016 —E—RF
Qutstanding Qutstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Name of categories 1 January during during during 31 December
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2016
RZE—RF R-T—R E
—A—H +=A=+—
2EERER A i AR AT 2 FRR L FRTTRE FRRHK i AR f 1%

Directors =
Mr. Ye Jiong Xian EWE AL - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
Mr. Lin Jiang wOIkE - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Mr. Mai Yang Guang BHEiEE = 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Mr. Yau Chi Ming EEBRELE - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Consultants Bl
In aggregate st - 12,700,000 - - 12,700,000
Employees B8
In aggregate st - 10,100,000 - - 10,100,000
= 35,800,000 = = 35,800,000
Exercisable at the end RELAITE
of the year 35,800,000
Weighted average MEFEHTEE HK$0.75 HK$0.75
exercise price 0.75% 7T 0.75/ 7T
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share options were B ZT—+F+-_A=+—HBHEE &
exercised (2016: Nil). E%Hﬂié—l%fﬂ%(_ T—RNF | o
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(a) Operating leases commitment

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises with lease
terms which fall due as follows:

(a) KREHEAE
RBEHR AEEEEHEEY
¥ REEEHE T 2R K&
BB FEEDNBBERLAT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FHBTT
1 S

Within one year —F RN E 6,246 7,307

In the second to fifth year inclusive EZERFEANEH 7,291 5,207

Over five years hF&EH - 4,879

13,537 17,393

Rentals are fixed and no arrangement has been entered into
for contingent rental payment.

(b) Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a capital
commitment amounted to approximately RMB20,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,615,000) (2016: Nil)
which is related to the construction of Luofu Mountain
Project.

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). Contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on a
percentage of employees’ salaries ranging from 5% to 10%,
depending upon the length of service of the employees. From 1
December 2000, newly joined employees are compulsorily required
to join the MPF Scheme. The employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in
the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the
China government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the retirement benefits schemes based on a certain percentage
of their payroll to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these retirement benefits schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income approximately HK$808,000
(2016: HK$483,000) represented contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group for the year.

Rl AT 22 BE

(b) BEAREE

RZE—+HF+-_A=+—H K
EENEAERELBNAEARE
20,500,000 7T ( 18 & 7 %924,615,000
B (ZE—NF &) BEF I
EEHEBEAE#-

AEE2EGFHEIEEFE((RES
e - AEERABRESAEELEES
Mz5%=10% HRRFRERFFEM
E) BH-_ZETETF+_A-—BEMAR
SEZHEEHEZMBESE B
kEBHFREESTERAATIAZ
b AR -

TENBARMMEARE ST EBME
LHBERXEEERKRBHTEOKE - E
MEBARIEREETIEN—ELARR
REFE EE AN B/A - AEE B
ZERABRGE K B ERRE
EEHARE MK

REaEakAiezmlaiRke
4PN 49 /808,000 ST (ZF — KN 4F ¢
483,000/87T) - AV AEBR A FE R % F
AHEIEM 2 B3
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\()1WZS'F()1WIF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

(a) Acquisition of Golden Time Ventures

—tF+-A=T—HLFE

@ WBERARERLF

In August 2017, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into an agreement with One Heart Global
Limited, Red Summit Limited, Outstanding Global
Investments Limited, Ultimate Winner Ventures Limited,
Wealth Choice Global Limited, Fortune Sky Developments
Limited and Ever Edge International Limited in relation to
acquisition of the entire equity interests in Golden Time
Ventures at a consideration of HK$50,000,000 in cash and
400,000,000 of shares of the Company. Golden Time
Ventures and its 80% non-wholly owned subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Golden Time Ventures Group”) mainly
operate in provision of beauty clinical services. The acquisition
was completed on 9 September 2017.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$369,000 have
been recognised as an expense in the period, within the
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

RZZB—tFNA AEEGEBHE
%ﬁﬁﬁ%"ﬁ)iﬁi*/b%ﬂ?ﬁ@@

CHEBR AR HBIRKIEE
EEE BEBEIRBERQA A
BRIXABBRRA - EXERAERA
A R EFBEERA AR &
RNABBWESTFAKR I E
£ {8 A& IR 450,000,000 T & & 2D
&) B% 15 400,000,000 % » & %= &) ] &
HEHEAS0 %R IECIIHEZENE A A

(FEIeHFAREE]DTERFR
HEBTZHRBE - WHEFER_-F
—tFNANBTEK-
WEFEREEEEEZAR -

U B% 8 8 5K ZX 369,000 7T 2 RN EA X
HHAERENEMEEKFIREAT
[TTHAXIEEDRRAERS -

HK$’000
TAET

Fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities RUBHHERIAKRBEER

recognised at the date of acquisition =R AN SF &
Bank and cash balances R1T 1,612
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) % - V);E'? & 1% (KrzE16) 6,614
Trademark (note 17) R (KT aE17) 89,900
Inventory FE 2,170
Trade and other receivables and prepayments FEWE 5 K H At 508 A K& TR B 23,874
Trade and other payables FE N8 5 kHE M FIE (8,099)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIR A G (14,834)
Net assets acquired W& ERE 101,237
Non-controlling interests FE1E R HE o (20,247)
Goodwill (note 18) & (ffit18) 229,010
Consideration comprised of cash and shares RE  BEARAIRE KEM

of the Company 310,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. W EE T B A B] ()
(@) Acquisition of Golden Time Ventures (Continued) (@ WE£FAR@
The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied as follows: WERE AT A RE

HK$’000
FAT

Consideration satisfied by KRELLTHE R E A -
Cash R& 50,000
Consideration share (note) KRB (K aF) 260,000
Total consideration SR E 310,000
HK$’000
FAT

Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of KWEMBARMNESREFE
subsidiaries
Consideration paid EFRE 50,000
Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired BEWERS IR ZEEMEH (1,612)
Net cash outflow Bemt #8 48,388
Note: Include in the consideration was an allotment and issue of Fiar REREZAYEER0.63E T i3 K3
400,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company at the contract 17 ZX A §1400,000,000 A% 7 % 3@ I& o 2 B 1T
price of HK$0.63 per share. The fair value of the ordinary shares EBRZATFEDIKEZ2EN TR A BT
issued was determined by referring to the publish price of HK$0.65 EER065BILEET -

per share on the completion date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

(a) Acquisition of Golden Time Ventures (Continued)

(b)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit the year ended 31 December 2017 is
approximately profit of HK$7,022,000 attributable to the
Golden Time Ventures Group. Revenue for the period
includes approximately HK$20,352,000.

Had this acquisition been effected at 1 January 2017, the
revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$487,509,000, and the profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$10,965,000. The directors of the Company
consider these “pro-forma” numbers to represent an
approximate measure of the performance of the combined
group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference
point for comparison in future periods.

The non-controlling interests were recognised at their
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquirees’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition of Harvest Luck Investment Limited

In June 2016, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into an agreement with Sassoon Global
Limited in relation to acquisition of the entire equity interests
in Harvest Luck at a consideration of RMB121,224,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$144,697,000). Harvest Luck
and its 51% non-wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Harvest Luck Group”) mainly held a parcel of land in the PRC
with a land development rights of a PRC Grade 5A scenic
area in Luofu Mountain, Guangdong, the PRC. The
acquisition was completed on 23 June 2016.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the assets
acquisition method.

(a)

(b)

I B8 & R AR ()
WEEERUAEEXENTE

Hz-Z—tHF+=-_A=+—81t
FEMNBMNEEREIKEEEN
i F #97,022,0007% T BRI W &= 49
420,352,000 T °

ZWHBEER_Z —tF — A
—BEAES AEEBREZN A
487,509,000/ 7T+ M F Rim F 40 A
10,965,000 T e R AR EER A
ZEBEIETRBILRFEAEES
HEBEXEHENRRABREHES
LR T ATER AR 5 R o

IR IR EFHRBE AR
HANEEFECHEIATHRNEH
1758 F LARERR °

WRBERREARLT

RZE—RNRFRNA XEEEB
E 2 & K B 2 7 & Sassoon Global
Limited 5t 42 88 &5 Bx @9 2 SRR #E 5T 32
e R E A AR K121,224,0007T
(#8251 #9144,697,00078 7T ) ° & &%
MESI%IEZEWB A A(HE A
[HREEDEZHEPE BRI
WP B EREZLFESARRES S
BEOHDHERE - WESERZ
E-RNERNAZT=ZBEK -

WREEREHEERBEAR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. WEEFT B 2 B (@)
(b) Acquisition of Harvest Luck Investment Limited b) WEEERKREFRQ R @)
(Continued)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$69,000 have been Uk &% 8 B8 A AR 69,0000 T 0 B R
recognised as an expense in the period, within the AR GEERLEMZ2EARFER
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated [THEY | —BR®R AKX -

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

HK$'000
TET

Fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities RUBAHEICWEBEER

recognised at the date of acquisition EENAFEE

Bank and cash balances RITRR S EH 5,076
Property, plant and equipment (note 76) Y - BB KRR AE (AT 16) 139,585
Deposit and prepayments e RIEMNZIE 88,309
Intangible asset (note 17) mEAEMaE17) 130,421
Other payables H b & 5 3B (79,671)
Net assets acquired BEKREFEE 283,720
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR fE 2 (139,023)
Consideration transferred EEZERE 144,697
HK$ 000

FHETT

Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of WEMBAGNEESREFEE

subsidiaries
Consideration paid BEfRE 144,697
Cash and cash equivalent balance acquired BEWEIRS MRS EBYEH (5,076)
Net cash outflow /e m it FRE 139,621
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

(a) Disposal of Shenzhen Weijingfang Bio Tech (@ HERIEEHLEYRER

Food Company Limited

In May 2017, the Group, through its partially-owned
subsidiary Guangdong Weijingfang entered into an agreement
with FINTFANEEAREZRAMRAF in which the Group
agreed to disposal of 87% equity interests in Shenzhen
Weijingfang Bio Tech Food Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Weijingfang”) at a consideration of RMB1 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1). The carrying amount of Shenzhen
Weijingfang residual interest was approximately HK$4,000.
Upon completion of the above transaction, the Group’s
interests in Shenzhen Weijingfang was decreased from 100%
to 13% and result of Shenzhen Weijingfang became an equity
investment and were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets of the Group. The Group then recognised HK$4,000
loss on disposal of a subsidiary in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year. Summary of the effect of the
disposal of the subsidiary is as follows:

mA R A F

R-ZE—tFRA AEEFEBH
MoBEEMBRATEREST )
BRJTAEEAREEREARA
AFYE EPAKBERELE
RINESTEYHERRBERAF
(MR MEF ) 87% A KE R
ARBIZT(MHEERQETT) - R
e 5 7 ¥ 64 25 0 R [ {840 /34,000
BT TR ELARHE  REBR
RN EE T B & © B 100% 08 2 =
13% » 1 31 BUR JI MEE 5 B B
BRE YD0BR/AKEAHEES
RMEE- ASEERRFALZAR
& R E B R )RR 4,0008
THER - HENBRATNTEMR
ZT

HK$’000
FAT
Consideration: RE:
Cash received 2 EIR & =
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control Bk £ &I RNWEERSBE D H -
was lost:
Bank and cash balances RITEBEH 4
Net assets disposed of HEEZEEFEAE 4
Loss on disposal: HEEIE
Consideration RKE =
Net assets disposed of HEEZEEFAE (4)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBAREIE (4)
HK$’000
FHE T
1 Y S
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: EHEMEENRESREFTE:
Cash consideration received B EE € K E =
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B RERTERKIES 4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

216

(b) Disposal of Zhao Long International Medical (b)
Investment Management Group Limited

On 22 May 2017, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement with Billion High Worldwide Investment Limited
(“Billion High”), a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company, Zhao Long BVI. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group agreed to dispose 70% equity interest of Zhao
Long BVI at a consideration of HK$68 million in cash. Details
of which have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement on 22 May 2017. Summary of the effect of
the disposal of the subsidiary is as follows:

i £ Zhao Long International
Medical Investment
Management Group Limited

RZE—+FREA-+-H A&
EHESRREEARQ(E
= 1) (R & B &9 Bt )& 2 §1Zhao Long
BVIF)JEIERBR R ) ET —HEE
E-REZBZE AEBEREMN
6,800 8 % 7T 2 B M E & L & Zhao
Long BVI 70% 4z - fHEFFAE K2
RARR ZE—tFRHA=-+=H
ZAERFEBFE - -HENBRAB ¥
ERRT

HK$’000
FABTT
1 Y S
Consideration: RE:
Cash received B U ER & 68,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which BAERGEHENEEREBES N
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment (note 76) M WE RRAE (K 16) 670
Goodwill (note 18) 72 (f1:E18) 53,382
Investments in associates REEE AR E 17,124
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e W 5K IE 14,5697
Tax recoverable JE W i IR 132
Bank and cash balances RIT RS EH 97
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M FE S 518 (6,463)
Net assets disposed of HEEZEEZEAE 79,539
Gain on disposal: HEWE :
Consideration RE 68,000
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (79,539
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RS 23,862
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net LB AT FEEHEREHH A
assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from equity to ERENBRARERENIEBE T
profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiaries RETEH =R 298
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB A3 W 12,621
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: EHEMEENRERATE:
Cash consideration received BEWEREKE 68,000
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B RERTERKIES Q7)
67,903
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

(c)

Disposal of @ (1t R)D RREMZERAF

On 24 November 2016, the Group disposed of 80% equity
interests in EEQER)DZEERFEAR AR and its
subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”), which carried out
advantage growth for children and teenagers business, at a
consideration of HK$3,000,000. Summary of the effect of the

disposal of the subsidiaries is as follows:

() HERE(®F) P ZREER
RAERRDAE

RZE—ARF+—A=Z+HWBE K
EEREERETLIREDNEER
MEEMGR)LPREREREERA
AR EM B A FI80%E s ([ &%
@ ]) - {8 A3,000,000 T &
MEAR z & mmnT :

HK$000
TAET

Consideration: RE:

Cash received B UWEIR & 3,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which EAEEFENEEREED T

control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) M - WE RERAE (K 16) 1,212
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H & W 58 1,035
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S MR 1
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e RIE (1,967)
Net assets disposed of HEBEEFE 281
Gain on disposal: HEWE :
Consideration RE 3,000
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (281)
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR R 2 56
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net S B A T F EEHER BT H E

assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from equity to ERENEB R LGB S

profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiaries 2t ER EHE (455)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHEB AR W= 2,320
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: FHEMEENRESARAFE:

Cash consideration received BUKERERE 3,000

Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W HERITEHREES ()

2,999
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218

(a)

On 21 June 2016, the Company acquired an additional
37.8% of the issued capital of Realyoung International Life
Medical Group Company Limited (“Realyoung Life Medical”)
(formerly known as Common Splendor International Life
Health Science Group Limited) and its subsidiaries for an
aggregate purchase consideration of approximately
HK$77,780,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in Realyoung Life Medical was approximately
HK$17,998,000. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Group owned 99.5% equity interest in Realyoung Life Medical
Group and a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$59,782,000.

On 2 November 2017, the Company acquired an additional
of 0.5% equity interest of Realyoung Life Medical Group at a
consideration of US$5 (equivalent to approximately HK$40).
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
Realyoung Life Medical Group was approximately
HK$9,769,000. Upon completion of the acquisition,
Realyoung Life Medical Group became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group and result an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$9,769,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
disposed 44% of the issued capital of = FEREEES Y
PEAR AT for an aggregate sell consideration of
approximately HK$49,189,000. The carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests in REERIEREBEABLEAR
‘Ar) was approximately HK$49,170,000. Upon completion
of the disposal, the Group owned 56% equity interest in 2
FIEREEREABLEABR AT and an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$19,000.

R-E—RNFANA-+—HB AR
ANEREIRERETESEEAR
AAl((HREdEL2]) (R ARE
BEERAEGREEMESEBRAG)
K E W@ A |z 48 %8 4977,780,000
BT E2HEETRA 237.8% °
mpEmEENIEERERREE
#9 /17,998,00078 7T Y B = 18 K
B AEEREEDEGTESLEE
99.5% 1 - BERARRIEAR A
1 (% 7N 4 2 R > 959,782,000 T ©

RZE—+F+—AZH ARF
WEmSETEE2EEMNEEINOSS
B REASETL(HER 405
Tl lmBEMEEEB R IEER
7 = Bk ™ {8 %4 A&9,769,000/% T °
ERKEEEZ HEEDEEE
B AEAEBEHN2ENBAR &
BMARAIHEABMLEESEND
9,769,000 T °

REBEEZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H
IEFEA AR ERERER
EERARLEBRRARCREY
49,189,000/ L 2 & & 2 B 17 IR K
244% -  BRtRIEREEREAE B
X¥ERAFMEEREZEMEY
/49,170,000 JT ° 1 & T IH 5% K
B AEEHBEBERREREER
ABELEARDAAEHEE BB
I NYNIEIE R =N R N e -
#4919,0003% 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 42. EXFRERS

During the current year, the Group entered into the following non- MRAFEE  KEBETUTITEREGEESIR

cash investing and financing activities which are not reflected in the EREBERPREMNIFBRERERBESE

consolidated statement of cash flow: B :

. the Group acquired HK$38,000 of equipment under a finance ° REBREBE-_ZT—+FERERENK
lease in 2017 (2016: HK$NIl). EREI8000B T(ZE—RE T

AT °

e  the Group acquired Golden Time Ventures with issue of o LMW EAIE@ATR AEEE WE
400,000,000 of the Company’s shares as part of % 2= 81 #% LA 400,000,000 % 2 2N A 7]
consideration in note 39(a). e tEBREH—IBD -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Obligation Guaranteed

Bank undera  notes and
and other finance bonds Convertible
borrowings lease payable notes
(note 35) (note 30) (note 34) (note 32) Total
RITR mE BREBR
Hitfeg HESE ENESF TRRERE
(fzE35) (Bt =£30) (P 2 34) (Fff £ 32) B

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

At 1 January 2017 RZE—LF
—H—H - 6 166,658 85,535 252,199
Proceeds from BERES
borrowings and bonds ~ FT18 3k 12,204 = 48,402 - 60,606
Repayment of bond BEEEMNES
payable - - (7,000) - (7,000)

Repayment of convertible {& i 7] # i Z 1%
note = =

(16,000)  (16,000)

=y

Repayment of obligation EEmEHE&EE

under a finance lease - (13) = = (13)
Interest paid 2 H & = = (15,148) (8,746) (23,894)
Non-cash changes FELET
Interest payable FEAS A B = = (5,216) = (5,216)
Imputed interest expenses 1t 51 ¥l £ & F - - 25,894 14,691 40,585
New finance lease Mo MERE

HE = 38 - _ 38

At 31 December 2017 R=-ZT—+t %
+—-—HA=+-—Hd 12,204 31 213,590 75,480 301,305

o
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group and the Company
had the following material transactions with related parties during
the year:

44.

EXBEALIXRS

BUMBRREMBYMFLRS K AER
S AEBRARARNANFEEBFEAL
ETATERRS

2017 2016
—®-—tE ZEB-AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT

Interest income on loan to a shareholder (note)

(K7 5%)

Salaries and other allowances paid to a spouse
of a director of the Company

ZH e REAMER

BT RERE R 2 F B WA

A—RARFEERBN

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme paid  [a — % 7&K A 7 & = 2 8 /E

to a spouse of a director of the Company

(R E R ARAE M ET &

16,788 13,260
884 866
18 18

Note: At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group lent to Champion Dynasty
with the sum of HK$48,875,000 and HK$77,291,000 which bearing
interest rate at 11% and 10% per annum respectively.

Pursuant to Rules 14A.25 and 14A.31 of the Listing Rules, the loan
to a shareholder constitutes financial assistance and a continuing
connected transaction of the Company. An ordinary resolution was
passed at the special general meeting of the Company held on 19
November 2015 to approve the renewal of the loan and the annual
cap amounts.

Balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of reporting
period are set out in notes 19 and 25.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in note
12.

BEERREEEXEEERAHE

Wi R_E—+tEFEZ_FT-R"F+A=+—
A - A £ @ & F Champion Dynasty — £ % 5
/548,875,000 7T N 77,291,000/ 7T & #X
ZEBFIEEFED B A% K10%T B -

R IE IR BI14A251& R 14A.31 E T AR B - /&
FTREERERTBRENN —EHEEH
BZABNRG - ARRR _TE—AF+
—A+tNBERABREREHEERREF
EERESFEMELD -

HEEALTZXRZ &R
RMEBAR BHEBALZRXHEHFE
R K sE19 K25 ©
FTEEHEASME
FTEEEABMESRME12RIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

45. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 45,
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

ARBRMBRRBR2EHR

N

The Company’s statement of financial position at 31 December RKARRZE—LtFER_ZTE—XRF+=
A=+—

o

2017 and 2016 are as follows: T—BZH BRI mERAT
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T T
Non-current asset IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NB AT 2R 798,684 530,457
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayment and e BAZEREMD
other receivables JE Y 5k 18 14,052 2,604
Loan to a shareholder BEFREER 49,143 77,547
Bank and cash balances RITRRBEH 32,470 64,510
95,665 144,661
Current liabilities REBARE
Accruals, deposits received and FEETSRIE - BEIRE K
other payables Eh FE - RIE 10,425 5,956
Convertible notes A] 2 I = R 75,480 15,039
Derivative financial liabilities PEeRaE 7,316 7,006
Loan from associates 5 & N 7 {8 5K - 12,300
Guaranteed notes and bonds payable EREERENES 120,893 5,680
Other borrowings Hing & 5,000 -
219,114 45,981
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) BEFE (123,449) 98,680
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERAEBERE 675,235 629,137
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital A& A 29,962 25,962
Reserves #H & 544,593 361,270
Total equity BAES BT 574,555 387,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_T—+F+-_H=+—HILFE

45. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF  45.

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

The Company’s statement of financial position at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are as follows:

RAMBRRBRZER

(&

~

N

KRR ZE—+tFRE—R"F+=
A=+—Bz#HBHRRBERET :

2017 2016
—®-—tE  ZB-AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# FHT

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FEfT BB A Rl k1A 7,983 10,431
Convertible notes Al % E & - 70,496
Guaranteed notes and bonds payable EREELEMNES 92,697 160,978
100,680 241,905
675,235 629,137

The financial statement were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 29 March 2018 and
signed on its behalf by:

MBEBREARAEFENR _T—N\F
AT NBHERRERM LA T
RREE

Cheung Wai Kuen Cheng Hau Yan
RER [

Director Director

EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—-Z

o
o

4

—tF+t-A=T—HLFE

Share
Share Share options Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
i IR A IR AR =
BREER RAIEE & REBX B
HK$ 000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET R
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RF
—H—H 25,962 425,198 - (65,453) 385,707
Loss for the year FEERB = - - (2,311) (2,311)
Total comprehensive income 42 & 2 4 Uk %5 48 28
for the year - - - (2,311) (2,311)
Issue of share option EITIE AR B - - 3,836 - 3,836
At 31 December 2016 and R =& — N4
1 January 2017 +=—BA=+—H
KZZE—tF
—H—H 25,962 425,198 3,836 (67,764) 387,232
Loss for the year REEEE - - - (72,677) (72,677)
Total comprehensive income 45 & 2 4 Y125 42 58
for the year - - - (72,677) (72,677)
Lapse of share option HE A% g 2 5& - - (3,836) 3,836 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B Bt B A 4,000 256,000 - - 260,000
At 31 December 2017 R=-T—+t&
+=—HA=+—H 29,962 681,198 - (136,605) 574,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B B B A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Details of the Group’s major subsidiaries at the end of the reporting EUAEERNBREHERZEKNNEBE QA
period are as follows. ZEHIBEHINMAT -

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of Fully paid share capital/ paid capital/
incorporation/ Class of shares/ registered  registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARRFBHER
RS/ A/ EMEREEZ
WEARAE MR Eehd FTMERER BERE/EMER Aok TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# %
']
G-Prop Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Investment and finance
EE TRk 28T REREE
Golden Circle Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Provision of management
Limited services
EAREBERAA EE TR 28T RUEBR R
Guangdong Common The PRC Registered as limited HK$187,282,375/ - 100% Precision life healthcare
Splendor Supply Chain liability company HK$300,000,000 services
Management Limited*
ERAEHERER i AMAEREERR 187,282,375 T,/ TREEDRERS
ARAR 300,000,000/ &
Guangdong Fengshuo Bio The PRC Registered as limited RMB75,000,000/ - 100% Bio-medical technology
Medical Tech Company liability company RMB75,000,000
Limited*
EREEENBENR FE AfMAEREERR 75,000,000 A K1/ KB BRI
BRAA 75,000,000 A & #
Guangdong Weijingfang The PRC Registered as limited RMB15,000,000/ - 51% Natural health food trading
Food Limited* liability company RMB30,000,000
(“Guangdong Weijingfang”)
EREEHRRERAT HE AMAEREEAT 15,000,000 A R %,/ FARERRES
([BREEH]) 30,000,000 A R #
Realyoung International Life  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Precision life healthcare
Medical Group (Hong services
Kong) Company Limited
hREREnREEEE BB TRk 28T TREEDRERS
(BE)ERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 Bt B e A W (7))

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of Fully paid share capital/ paid capital/
incorporation/ Class of shares/ registered  registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARF M ER
FisR®/ X/ EMEREBEZ
WA= AR BRI/ EEhE EMERER BERE/EREXR Bok TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# %
. /]
Guangzhou Common The PRC Registered HK$7,734,289/ - 100% Precision life healthcare
Splendor Health HK$30,000,000 services
Technology Limited*
EMRAEBERRARAR o Al 7,734,289% 7T,/ TR i R AR TS
30,000,0007% 7T
Guangzhou Realyoung Health  The PRC Registered RMB7,900,000/ - 100% Precision life healthcare
Technology Limited* RMB10,000,000 services
B3 5 (R B R B HE Eai AR #7,900,0007T,/ 1B 2 A o (R R PR 75
BRAR AR %10,000,0007T
Huizhou Chuangxing The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000/ = 100% Precision life healthcare
Zhangliang Property RMB1,000,000 services
Limited*
BHTAIRGEESXER HE Al AR #1,000,0007T,/ BEEDERRS
NS AR %1,000,0007T
Huizhou Eastemn Zhongliang ~ The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000/ = 100% Precision life healthcare
Investment Limited* RMB10,000,000 services
BMTRARERE HE Ball AR #10,000,0007T,/ BEEDRRRYE
BRAA AR %10,000,0007T
Huizhou Zhangliang Health ~ The PRC Registered N/A/ = 100% Precision life healthcare
Services Limited* RMB10,000,000 services
BT ERRRY H i TER/ REEDRERS
ARAR AR %10,000,0007T
eAesthetic Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100% Aesthetic and beauty
treatment
BEXEERERRA BB LRk 18T XBRERRE
€Clinix Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 = 100% Aesthetic and beauty
treatment
BYMERERDA Bk ERR 1A ES YT
Medik Pro Aesthetics & Anti Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 = 100% Aesthetic and beauty
Aging Institution Limited treatment
XheESnzEDL FA EER 100,0007% 7 FERERRE
BRAR
* For identification purpose only *EHER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B £ A 5 e Witk (#0)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

47. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 47.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting
period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally, affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of

NG 340 )

RBEHRARBEHAEMER L&
MEBRARETERDAERZEBES

EREFIARREERARTIEFELRE
BXEREENNBERR ARATEEFR
BoREEMCHBARHBHERRER
R °

TRINFTHEEAFERBEENAREE

the Group that have material non-controlling interests: BB ARIBEIE
Proportion of ownership
Place of interests and
incorporation/ voting rights held by Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiaries operation non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERERFERE IEEFERESH
MEARERE AR i B R R R ERELH wA/ (E518) Rt FERER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE-RF ZB-tF T RE ZE—tF ZT—RF
% % HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET TER FHT
/' ' | __________|]
Guangdong Weijingfang Registered as limited 49.00 49.00 (30) 549 10,308 9,604
liability company
in the PRC
BR&SD AR R B 1 B A2 Y
BREEAA
Guangdong Common Splendor Registered as limited 49.00 49.00 (401) (831) 138,566 129,401
Zhongliang Healthcare liability company
Industry Limited in the PRC
BRRAETERREZFARNA ARPEEMALY
BEREEAR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with 8,450 5,347 64,004 64,629
non-controlling interests
TR IR TE fRE 2R 2 (8 5 3F B KB
NG|
8,019 5,065 212,878 203,634
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—T—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

47.

228

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 47.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents

NN P 340 )

FRBEEAFERBERZAKSERNW
BRAAMBEMBEMMT - TXHHE
I E R R RS E AR EE AT

amounts before intragroup eliminations. HE o
Guangdong
Common Splender
Zhongliang
Guangdong Healthcare
Weijingfang Industry
EREEFE
ER#&FH BREEX
HK$’'000 HK$000
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+48%
s=H =515 FAT FAT
1 e X
Current assets mEEE 78,506 111,045
Non-current assets ERBEE 57 349,270
Current liabilities mEAE (57,526) (177,528)
Non-current liabilities el UN=K = -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 78 A &) #E A A JE {5 # 2 10,729 144,221
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR fE 2= 10,308 138,566
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Guangdong

Common Splendor

Zhongliang

Guangdong Healthcare

Weijingfang Industry

BEREE

BREEY hERBEEX

BE-Z—tF HK$’000 HK$’000

For the year ended 31 December 2017 +=ZA=+—HLEE FA&T FAET

Revenue A 323,862 -
Expenses 3 (322,809) (826)
Loss for the year FEEE 62) (819)
Loss attributable to the owners of the KRR AEMLEE

Company (32) (418)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interest JEE R s B (N S 1R (30) (401)
Loss for the year KEEEIE 62) (819)
Other comprehensive income KRR ABRMGEMEE

attributable to the owners of the Company U 25 741 7,373
Other comprehensive income JE 72 1% 25 FE G H Ath 2 T UK

attributable to non-controlling interest == 711 7,084
Other comprehensive income Ha 2wk 1,452 14,457
Total comprehensive income ZiN/NCIE? ¥ =W X e TR

attributable to the owners of the Company FER 709 6,955
Total comprehensive income FERESEGEE

attributable to non-controlling interest W 25 4858 681 6,683
Total comprehensive income 2HW =B 1,390 13,638
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating s oI\ S ORd),/

activities mAFEEE (3,577) 13,563
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEER 2SR F8E = (14,612)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BB ZEERAFRE 2,401 -
Net cash outflow e FRE (1,176) (1,049)

BEERREEEXEEERAHE

—E-LEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—T—+F+-_H=-+—HLFE

48.

49.

50.

230

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following transaction after the end of the
reporting period:

On 10 January 2018, the Company repaid the 2016 CBs in the
principal amount of HK$1,000,000. Details of the repayment was
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 10 January 2018.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
29 March 2018.

48.

49.

50.

BEMBRER
AEBRBERREEUTRS
R-ZFB—N\F—A+H ADRAEESFS
# 51,000,000/ 7L #) = F — N F A 2R
R HEFBERRFIATDNANA T
NE—A+AEMAL-

B HF
ETLBBMFOLENSBUFEAFE
I

BENBRGSHMBHERR

AANEFEER T NE=A-
NEHERERTIREA M BRE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T AF 1 B2

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZT—tF+_A=+T—HIEFE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the lastfve @AEBBETF 722G BEHBGEHE W
years are as follows: T

RESULTS &

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-RA=+-RHILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tf TR ZT-hE ZE-@WE <ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TET TET TET

(restated)
(L E5)
(note (a))
(FI5E ()
' ! ' '/ '/ | ||
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue A 474,933 554,962 530,290 359,818 8,527
Profit/(loss) before tax BEATER(B8) 18,239 56,259 49,052 32,957 (3,334)
Income tax (expense)/credit R (Rx)/ &1 (8,798) (9,098) (6,946) (7,627) 21
Profit/(loss) for the year from FERERBELLERZ
continuing operations wH,/ (BR) 9,441 47,161 42,106 25,330 (3313
Discontinued operation BRIEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued FERE DR IEEEEK
operations gl - - - 7,063 12,365
Profit for the year EEHEA 9,441 47,161 42,106 32,393 9,052

Profit for the year attributable to: AR R A

Owners of the Company ARRHEBA 1,422 42,096 34,009 27,505 9,052
Non-controlling interest I s 8,019 5,065 8,097 4,388 =
9,441 47,161 42,106 32,393 9,052
Eaming per share (HK cents) & & (&AL
Basic EAR 0.05 1.62 1.36 1.13 0.37
Diluted 3] 0.05 1.62 1.36 1.06 0.36
Final and interim dividend BRAMH R HARE (B)

per share (HK cents) - - - - _

Special dividend FRE RIS OBL)
per share (HK cents) - = - - _

FHERREELEEAaRAT —S—+t464% 231



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)
A 0 1822 (4

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—T—+F+-_H=-+—HLFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR

At 31 De

Rt=A=

2017 2016
—g-tF -F-AF %
HK$'000 HK$'000 H

cember
=t

2015 2014 2013
—hF ZE-MFE ZZ-=F%
K$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FTET FTAEL FTAET AL
Total assets BESE 1,372,237 972,649 672,631 559,257 409,243
Total liabilties BfERE (394,026) (305,099) (126,276) (101,468) (1,784)
978,211 667,550 546,355 457,789 407,459
Net asset value per share ARRBEEAELEREE
attrioutable to owners FE(BT)
of the Company (HK$) 0.33 0.26 0.21 0.18 0.17
Number of share issued BETRDEE 2,996,255,008 2,596,255,008 2,596,255,008 2,428,255,008 2,428,255,008
Note: B EE
(@  Figures for the year 2013 have been reclassified in conform with the presentaton (@) @~—ZE—=F 2 HE S5 UARM - —-MOFHFL
of discontinued operation in 2014. M BRIEEEET -
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